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OR
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Georgia 58-2567903
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer
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10 Glenlake Parkway, North Tower, Atlanta, Georgia 30328
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Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (770) 829-8000

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the

preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.
Yes ® No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be
submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to submit and post such files). Yes ® No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions
of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer O
Non-accelerated filer O (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company [
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
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PART 1 - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenues

Operating expenses:
Cost of service
Sales, general and administrative
Processing system intrusion

Operating income

Other income (expense):
Interest and other income
Interest and other expense

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Net income

GLOBAL PAYMENTS INC.

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(in thousands, except per share data)

Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests, net of income tax

Net income attributable to Global Payments

Earnings per share attributable to Global Payments:

Basic

Diluted

See Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.

Three Months Ended
February 28, 2014 February 28, 2013
$ 616,452 $ 578,746
232,937 217,465
286,224 271,696
— (1,189)
519,161 487,972
97,291 90,774
2,944 2,536
(16,457) (7,063)
(13,513) (4,527)
83,778 86,247
(23,657) (23,433)
60,121 62,814
(5,000) (4,352)
$ 55,121 $ 58,462
$ 0.77 $ 0.75
$ 0.76 $ 0.75
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Revenues
Operating expenses:
Cost of service
Sales, general and administrative

Processing system intrusion

Operating income

Other income (expense):
Interest and other income
Interest and other expense

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Net income

GLOBAL PAYMENTS INC.

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(in thousands, except per share data)

Less: Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests, net of income tax

Net income attributable to Global Payments

Earnings per share attributable to Global Payments:

Basic
Diluted

See Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.

Nine Months Ended
February 28, 2014 February 28, 2013
$ 1,880,259 $ 1,757,571
698,852 632,124
871,825 829,292
(7,000) 8,311
1,563,677 1,469,727
316,582 287,844
11,570 6,706
(32,361) (25,217)
(20,791) (18,511)
295,791 269,333
(84,105) (76,986)
211,686 192,347
(18,025) (17,027)
$ 193,661 $ 175,320
2.67 $ 2.24
2.65 $ 2.23
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GLOBAL PAYMENTS INC.

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Net income
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Income tax benefit related to foreign currency translation adjustments

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax

Comprehensive income
Less: comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Comprehensive income attributable to Global Payments

Net income
Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Income tax benefit related to foreign currency translation adjustments

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Comprehensive income
Less: comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Comprehensive income attributable to Global Payments

(in thousands)

Three Months Ended

February 28, 2014 February 28, 2013

$ 60,121 $ 62,814
(10,604) (28,288)

4,805 3,960
(5,799) (24,328)

54,322 38,486
(7,181) (5,230)

$ 47,141 $ 33,256

Nine Months Ended

February 28, 2014

February 28, 2013

$ 211,686  $ 192,347
11,057 30,842
7,058 814
18,115 31,656
229,801 224,003
(26,823) (25,457)
$ 202,978  $ 198,546

See Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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GLOBAL PAYMENTS INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)

February 28, 2014 May 31, 2013
(Unaudited)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,013,560 $ 680,470
Accounts receivable, net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $411 and $509, respectively 174,993 189,435
Claims receivable, net 743 1,156
Settlement processing assets 283,414 259,204
Inventory 7,315 11,057
Deferred income taxes 6,282 6,485
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 46,948 66,685
Total current assets 1,533,255 1,214,492
Goodwill 1,064,868 1,044,222
Other intangible assets, net 364,513 400,848
Property and equipment, net 364,725 348,064
Deferred income taxes 103,182 95,178
Other 25,172 22,252
Total assets $ 3,455,715 $ 3,125,056
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Lines of credit $ 262,055 $ 187,461
Current portion of long-term debt 2,351 72,335
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 243,212 262,890
Settlement processing obligations 171,563 162,558
Income taxes payable 8,821 18,870
Total current liabilities 688,002 704,114
Long-term debt 1,252,056 891,134
Deferred income taxes 165,697 170,723
Other long-term liabilities 86,251 72,478
Total liabilities 2,192,006 1,838,449
Commitments and contingencies (See Note 13)
Equity:
Preferred stock, no par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized and none issued — —
Common stock, no par value; 200,000,000 shares authorized; 71,660,707 issued and outstanding at February 28, 2014 and 75,426,099
issued and outstanding at May 31, 2013 — —
Paid-in capital 195,308 202,396
Retained earnings 940,545 958,751
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (5,745) (15,062)
Total Global Payments shareholders’ equity 1,130,108 1,146,085
Noncontrolling interests 133,601 140,522
Total equity 1,263,709 1,286,607
Total liabilities and equity $ 3,455,715 $ 3,125,056

See Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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GLOBAL PAYMENTS INC.
UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Nine Months Ended

February 28, 2014 February 28, 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $ 211,686 $ 192,347
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment 43,645 40,856
Amortization of acquired intangibles 43,553 42,091
Share-based compensation expense 17,269 14,063
Provision for operating losses and bad debts 14,203 16,681
Deferred income taxes 3,103 27,282
Other, net (1,006) (3,692)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of the effects of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable 14,442 17,706
Claims receivable (9,145) (9,235)
Settlement processing assets and obligations, net (19,669) (12,028)
Inventory 3,811 (1,535)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 18,980 (34,898)
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities (16,422) (78,375)
Income taxes payable (10,049) (6,496)
Net cash provided by operating activities 314,401 204,767
Cash flows from investing activities:
Business, intangible and other asset acquisitions, net of cash acquired (2,519) (433,427)
Capital expenditures (61,270) (75,016)
Net decrease in financing receivables 1,997 2,158
Net proceeds from sales of investments and business 3,521 —
Net cash used in investing activities (58,271) (506,285)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net borrowings (payments) on short-term lines of credit 74,594 (48,239)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 2,390,000 1,085,327
Principal payments under long-term debt (2,099,869) (439,789)
Acquisition of redeemable noncontrolling interest — (242,000)
Payment of debt issuance costs (5,961) (3,987)
Repurchase of common stock (258,562) (137,653)
Proceeds from stock issued under share-based compensation plans 29,740 9,257
Common stock repurchased - share-based compensation plans (5,682) (10,215)
Tax benefit from share-based compensation plans 4,782 1,791
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (33,744) (13,656)
Dividends paid (4,330) (4,688)
Net cash provided by financing activities 90,968 196,148
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash (14,008) 7,055
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 333,090 (98,315)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the period 680,470 781,275
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period $ 1,013,560 $ 682,960

See Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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GLOBAL PAYMENTS INC.

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(in thousands)

Total Global

Accumulated Other Payments
Number of Paid-in Comprehensive (Loss) Shareholders’ Noncontrolling
Shares Capital Retained Earnings Income Equity Interests Total Equity
Balance at May 31, 2013 75,426 $ 202,396 $ 958,751 $ (15,062) $ 1,146,085 $ 140,522 $ 1,286,607
Net income 193,661 193,661 18,025 211,686
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax
of $7,058 9,317 9,317 8,798 18,115
Stock issued under employee stock plans 1,557 29,740 29,740 29,740
Common stock repurchased - share-based compensation
plans (361) (5,682) (5,682) (5,682)
Tax benefit from employee share-based compensation, net 4,657 4,657 4,657
Share-based compensation expense 17,269 17,269 17,269
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (33,744) (33,744)
Repurchase of common stock (4,961) (53,072) (207,537) (260,609) (260,609)
Dividends paid ($0.06 per share) (4,330) (4,330) (4,330)
Balance at February 28, 2014 71,661 $ 195308 $ 940,545 $ (5,745) $ 1,130,108 $ 133,601 $ 1,263,709

See Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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GLOBAL PAYMENTS INC.

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(in thousands)

Accumulated Other Total Global
Number of Paid-in Comprehensive (Loss) Payments Noncontrolling

Shares Capital Retained Earnings Income Shareholders’ Equity Interests Total Equity

Balance at May 31, 2012 78,551 $ 358,728 $ 843,456 $ (30,000) $ 1,172,184 $ 128,737 $ 1,300,921

Net income 175,320 175,320 15,213 190,533

Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax of $814 23,226 23,226 7,857 31,083

Stock issued under employee stock plans 856 9,257 9,257 9,257
Common stock repurchased - share-based compensation plans (335) (10,215) (10,215) (10,215)

Tax benefit from employee share-based compensation, net 784 784 784

Share-based compensation expense 14,063 14,063 14,063
Distributions to noncontrolling interests — (13,656) (13,656)

Redeemable noncontrolling interest valuation adjustment 817 817 817
Repurchase of common stock (2,323) (68,943) (68,710) (137,653) (137,653)
Commitment to purchase redeemable noncontrolling interest (96,008) (96,008) (96,008)
Dividends paid (80.06 per share) (4,688) (4,688) (4,688)

Balance at February 28, 2013 76,749 $ 207,666 $ 946,195 $ (6,774) $ 1,147,087 $ 138,151 $ 1,285,238

See Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business, Consolidation and Presentation— Global Payments Inc. is a high-volume processor of electronic transactions for merchants, multinational corporations,
financial institutions, consumers, government agencies and other business and non-profit business enterprises to facilitate payments to purchase goods and services or further
other economic goals. Our role is to serve as an intermediary in the exchange of information and funds that must occur between parties so that a transaction can be completed.

We were incorporated in Georgia as Global Payments Inc. in September 2000, and we spun-off from our former parent company onJanuary 31, 2001. Including our time
as part of our former parent company, we have been in the payments business since 1967. Global Payments Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries are referred to collectively as
"Global Payments," "we," "our" or "us," unless the context requires otherwise.

These unaudited consolidated financial statements include our accounts and those of our majority-owned subsidiaries, and all intercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated. These unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
("GAAP") for interim financial information and with Rule 10-01 of Regulation S-X.

In the opinion of our management, all known adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the results of the interim periods have been made. These adjustments
consist of normal recurring accruals and estimates that impact the carrying value of assets and liabilities. We suggest that these financial statements be read in conjunction with
the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2013.

Use of estimates— The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue recognition— Our two merchant services segments primarily include processing solutions for credit cards, debit cards, electronic payments and check-related
services. Revenue is recognized as such services are performed. Revenue for processing services provided directly to merchants is recorded net of interchange fees charged by
card issuing banks. Our primary business model provides payment products and services directly to merchants as our end customers. We also provide similar products and
services to financial institutions and a limited number of independent sales organizations ("ISOs") that, in turn, resell our products and services, in which case, the financial
institutions and select ISOs are our end customers. The majority of merchant services revenue is generated on services priced as a percentage of transaction value or a specified
fee per transaction, depending on card type. We also charge other fees based on specific services that are unrelated to the number of transactions or the transaction value.
Revenue from credit cards and signature debit cards is generally based on a percentage of transaction value along with other related fees, while revenue from PIN-based debit
cards is typically based on a fee per transaction.

Cash and cash equivalents— Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and all liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less when purchased.
Cash and cash equivalents include reserve funds collected from our merchants that serve as collateral to minimize contingent liabilities associated with any losses that may
occur under the merchant agreement (“Merchant Reserves”). We record a corresponding liability in settlement processing assets and settlement processing obligations in our
consolidated balance sheet. While this cash is not restricted in its use, we believe that designating this cash to collateralize Merchant Reserves strengthens our fiduciary standing
with our member sponsors and is in accordance with guidelines set by the card networks. As of February 28, 2014 and May 31, 2013, our cash and cash equivalents included
$177.7 million and $280.7 million, respectively, related to Merchant Reserves.

Certain of our member sponsors hold Merchant Reserves on our behalf. In these instances, neither the merchant reserve cash nor the corresponding liability appears on

our consolidated balance sheet; however, we have access to the collateral in the event that we incur a merchant loss. During the three months ended February 28, 2014, we sent a
significant amount of merchant reserve cash to one of our member sponsors to whom we transferred a substantial portion of our processing volume.
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Our cash and cash equivalents include settlement related cash balances. Settlement related cash balances represent surplus funds that we hold on behalf of our member
sponsors when the incoming amount from the card networks precedes the member sponsors’ funding obligation to the merchant. Settlement related cash balances are not
restricted; however, these funds are generally paid out in satisfaction of settlement processing obligations the following day. Please see Note 3 - Settlement Processing Assets
and Obligations and discussion below for further information.

Inventory— Inventory, which includes electronic point of sale terminals, automated teller machines ("ATMs"), and related peripheral equipment, is stated at the lower of
cost or fair value. Cost is determined by using the average cost method.

Settlement processing assets and obligations— Settlement processing assets and obligations represent intermediary balances arising in our settlement process for direct
merchants. In accordance with Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 210-20, Offsetting, we apply offsetting to our settlement processing assets and obligations where
legal right of set-off exists. Please see Note 3 - Settlement Processing Assets and Obligations for further information.

Reserve for operating losses— As a part of our merchant credit and debit card processing and check guarantee services, we experience merchant losses and check
guarantee losses, which are collectively referred to as “operating losses.”

Our credit card processing merchant customers are liable for any charges or losses that occur under the merchant agreement. In the event, however, that we are not able to
collect such amount from the merchants, due to merchant fraud, insolvency, bankruptcy or any other merchant-related reason, we may be liable for any such losses. We require
Merchant Reserves, guarantees, letters of credit, and other types of collateral by certain merchants to minimize any such contingent liability. We also utilize a number of
systems and procedures to manage merchant risk. We have, however, historically experienced losses due to merchant defaults.

We account for our potential liability for the full amount of the operating losses discussed above as guarantees. We estimate the fair value of these guarantees by adding a
fair value margin to our estimate of losses. This estimate of losses is comprised of estimated known losses and estimated incurred but not reported losses. Estimated known
losses arise from specific instances of, for example, merchant bankruptcies, closures or fraud of which we are aware at the balance sheet date, but for which the ultimate amount
of associated loss will not be determined until after the balance sheet date. Estimated known loss accruals are recorded when it is probable that we have incurred a loss and the
loss is reasonably estimable. Estimated known losses are calculated at the merchant level based on chargebacks received to date, processed volume and historical chargeback
ratios. The estimate is reduced for any collateral that we hold. Accruals for estimated known losses are evaluated periodically and adjusted as appropriate based on actual loss
experience. Incurred but not reported losses result from transactions that we process before the balance sheet date for which we have not yet received chargeback notification.
We estimate incurred but not reported losses by applying historical loss ratios to our direct merchant credit card and signature debit card sales volumes processed, or processed
volume. Historically, this estimation process has been materially accurate.

As of February 28, 2014 and May 31, 2013, $2.1 million and $2.3 million, respectively, was recorded to reflect the fair value of guarantees associated with merchant card
processing. These amounts are included in settlement processing obligations in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The expense associated with the fair value of the
guarantees of customer chargebacks is included in cost of service in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. For the three months ended February 28, 2014 and
February 28, 2013, we recorded such expenses in the amounts of$1.5 million and $2.0 million, respectively. For the nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28,
2013, we recorded such expenses in the amounts 0f$4.6 million and $7.3 million, respectively.

In our check guarantee service offering, we charge our merchants a percentage of the gross amount of the check and guarantee payment of the check to the merchant in
the event the check is not honored by the payor’s bank in accordance with the merchant’s agreement with us. The fair value of the check guarantee approximates cost and is
equal to the fee charged for the guarantee service, and we defer this fee revenue until the guarantee is satisfied. We have the right to collect the full amount of the check from the
payor but have not historically recovered 100% of the guaranteed checks. Our check guarantee loss reserve is comprised of estimated losses on returned checks and estimated
incurred but not reported losses. We estimate the loss on returned checks by applying historical collection rates to our claims receivable balance. We estimate incurred but not
reported losses by applying historical loss ratios to the face value of our guaranteed checks. As of February 28, 2014 and May 31, 2013, we had a check guarantee loss reserve
of$3.2 million and $3.1 million, respectively, which is included in net claims receivable in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. For thethree months ended
February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, we recorded expenses of$2.5 million and $2.7 million, respectively, which are included in cost of service in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income. For the nine months
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ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, we recorded expenses 0f$9.6 million and $9.4 million, respectively. The estimated check returns and recovery amounts are
subject to the risk that actual amounts returned and recovered in the future may differ significantly from estimates used in calculating the receivable valuation allowance.

As the potential for merchants’ failure to settle individual reversed charges from consumers in our merchant credit card processing offering and the timing of individual
checks clearing the payors’ banks in our check guarantee offering are not predictable, it is not practicable to calculate the maximum amounts for which we could be liable under
the guarantees issued under the merchant card processing and check guarantee service offerings. It is also not practicable to estimate the extent to which merchant collateral or
subsequent collections of dishonored checks, respectively, would offset these exposures due to these same uncertainties.

Property and equipment— Property and equipment are stated at amortized cost. Depreciation and amortization are calculated using the straight-line method, except for
certain technology assets discussed below. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the remaining term of the lease or the useful life of the asset. Maintenance
and repairs are charged to operations as incurred.

We develop software that is used in providing processing services to customers. Capitalization of internally developed software, primarily associated with operating
platforms, occurs when we have completed the preliminary project stage, management authorizes the project, management commits to funding the project, and it is probable the
project will be completed and used to perform the function intended. The preliminary project stage consists of the conceptual formulation of alternatives, the evaluation of
alternatives, the determination of existence of needed technology and the final selection of alternatives. Costs incurred prior to the completion of the preliminary project stage
are expensed as incurred.

As of February 28, 2014, we had placed into service $92.2 million of hardware and software associated with our technology processing platform, referred to as "G2." G2
serves as a front-end operating environment for merchant processing and is intended to replace a number of legacy platforms. Depreciation and amortization associated with
these costs is calculated based on transactions expected to be processed over the life of the platform. We believe that this method is more representative of the platform's use
than the straight-line method. We are currently processing transactions on our G2 platform in nine markets in our Asia-Pacific region and for a limited number of United States
merchants. As these markets represent a small percentage of our overall transactions, depreciation and amortization related to our G2 platform for the three and nine months
ended February 28, 2014 was not significant. Depreciation and amortization expense will increase as we complete migrations of other merchants to the G2 platform.

Goodwill and other intangible assets— Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting unit level. We test goodwill for impairment at least annually as of January 1st
and more often if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its net carrying value. We have the
option of performing a qualitative assessment of impairment to determine whether any further quantitative testing for impairment is necessary. The option of whether or not to
perform a qualitative assessment is made from year-to-year and can vary by reporting unit.

As of January 1, 2014, we elected to apply the qualitative goodwill impairment assessment guidance in ASC 350-20,Goodwill, for each of our reporting units Factors we
consider in the qualitative assessment include general economic conditions, conditions of the industry and markets in which we operate, competition, regulatory developments,
cost factors and our overall financial performance. If we elect to bypass the qualitative assessment or if we determine, on the basis of qualitative factors, that the fair value of the
reporting unit is more likely than not less than the carrying value, a two-step quantitative test is required. In the first step, the reporting unit's carrying amount, including
goodwill, is compared to its fair value. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit is greater than its fair value, goodwill is considered impaired and step two must be
performed. Step two measures the impairment loss by comparing the implied fair value of reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. The implied fair
value of goodwill is determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit to all the assets and liabilities of that unit (including unrecognized intangibles) as if the reporting
unit had been acquired in a business combination. The excess of the fair value over the amounts allocated to the assets and liabilities of the reporting unit is the implied fair value
of the goodwill. The excess of the carrying amount over the implied value of the goodwill is the impairment loss.

We have six reporting units: North America Merchant Services, U.K. Merchant Services, Asia-Pacific Merchant Services, Central and Eastern Europe Merchant
Services, Russia Merchant Services and Spain Merchant Services. Based on our annual assessment as of January 1, 2014, we determined on the basis of qualitative factors, that
the fair value of the reporting units were not more likely than not less than their respective carrying values and therefore a two-step quantitative test was not required. We
believe that the fair values of our reporting units are substantially in excess of their carrying values.

12



Table of Contents

Our goodwill impairment testing involves the use of estimates and the exercise of judgment on the part of management. Our assessment of the qualitative factors
discussed above, preparation of forecasts and the selection of the discount rates involve significant judgments about expected future business performance and general market
conditions. Significant changes in our forecasts and the discount rates selected or the weighting of the income and market approach could affect the estimated fair value of one
or more of our reporting units and could result in a goodwill impairment charge in a future period.

Other intangible assets primarily represent customer-related intangible assets (such as customer lists and merchant contracts), contract-based intangible assets (such as
non-compete agreements, referral agreements and processing rights), and trademarks associated with acquisitions. Customer-related intangible assets, contract-based intangible
assets and certain trademarks are amortized over their estimated useful lives of from 5 to 30 years. The useful lives for customer-related intangible assets are determined based
primarily on forecasted cash flows, which include estimates for the revenues, expenses, and customer attrition associated with the assets. The useful lives of contract-based
intangible assets are equal to the terms of the agreements. The useful lives of amortizable trademarks are based on our plans to phase out the trademarks in the applicable
markets.

Amortization for most of our customer-related intangible assets is calculated using an accelerated method. In determining amortization expense under our accelerated
method for any given period, we calculate the expected cash flows for that period that were used in determining the acquired value of the asset and divide that amount by the
expected total cash flows over the estimated life of the asset. We multiply that percentage by the initial carrying value of the asset to arrive at the amortization expense for that
period. If the cash flow patterns that we experience differ significantly from our initial estimates, we will adjust the amortization schedule accordingly. These cash flow patterns
are derived using certain assumptions and cost allocations due to a significant amount of asset interdependencies that exist in our business.

Impairment of long-lived assets— We regularly evaluate whether events and circumstances have occurred that indicate the carrying amount of property and equipment
and finite-life intangible assets may not be recoverable. When factors indicate that these long-lived assets should be evaluated for possible impairment, we assess the potential
impairment by determining whether the carrying value of such long-lived assets will be recovered through the future undiscounted cash flows expected from use of the asset and
its eventual disposition. If the carrying amount of the asset is determined not to be recoverable, a write-down to fair value is recorded. Fair values are determined based on
quoted market prices or discounted cash flow analysis as applicable. We regularly evaluate whether events and circumstances have occurred that indicate the useful lives of
property and equipment and finite-life intangible assets may warrant revision. In our opinion, the carrying values of our long-lived assets, including property and equipment and
finite-life intangible assets, were not impaired at February 28, 2014 and May 31, 2013.

Income taxes— Deferred income taxes are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax
laws and rates. A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Eair value measurements— GAAP requires disclosures about assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value. Fair value is defined as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the reporting date. The reporting standard establishes consistency
and comparability by providing a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques into three broad levels. Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 inputs are based on other observable market data, such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities, and inputs other than
quoted prices that are observable such as interest rates and yield curves. Level 3 inputs are developed from unobservable data reflecting our assumptions and include situations
where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability.

Eair value of financial instruments— We consider that the carrying amounts of our financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, receivables, lines of credit,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, approximate their fair value given the short-term nature of these items. Our long-term debt includes variable interest rates based on the
London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR"), the Federal Funds Effective Rate (as defined in the debt agreements) or the prime rate plus a margin based on our leverage position.
At February 28, 2014, the carrying amount of our term loans approximates fair value, which is calculated using Level 2 inputs. AtFebruary 28, 2014, our subsidiary in the
Russian Federation had notes payable with a fixed interest rate of 8.5% and maturity dates ranging from March 2014 through November 2016. At February 28, 2014, we believe
the carrying amount of these notes approximates fair value, which is calculated using Level 3 inputs. Please see Note 6 — Long-Term Debt and Credit Facilities for further
information.
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Financing receivables— Our subsidiary in the Russian Federation purchases ATMs and leases those ATMs to our sponsor bank. We have determined these arrangements
to be direct financing leases. Accordingly, we have $4.2 million and $6.3 million of financing receivables included in ourFebruary 28, 2014 and May 31, 2013 consolidated
balance sheets, respectively.

There is an inherent risk that our customer may not pay the contractual balances due. We periodically review the financing receivables for credit losses and past due
balances to determine whether an allowance should be recorded. Historically, we have not had any credit losses or past due balances associated with these receivables, and
therefore we do not have an allowance recorded. We have had no financing receivables modified as troubled debt restructurings nor have we had any purchases or sales of
financing receivables.

Foreign currencies— We have significant operations in a number of foreign subsidiaries whose functional currency is their local currency. Gains and losses on
transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies are included in determining net income for the period. For the three and nine months ended
February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, our transaction gains and losses were insignificant.

The assets and liabilities of subsidiaries whose functional currency is a foreign currency are translated at the period-end rate of exchange. Income statement items are
translated at the weighted average rates prevailing during the period. The resulting translation adjustment is recorded as a component of other comprehensive income and is
included in equity. Translation gains and losses on intercompany balances of a long-term investment nature are also recorded as a component of other comprehensive income.

Earnings per share— Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing reported earnings available to common shareholders by the weighted average shares outstanding
during the period. Earnings available to common shareholders is the same as reported net income attributable to Global Payments for all periods presented.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing reported earnings available to common shareholders by the weighted average shares outstanding during the period
and the impact of securities that would have a dilutive effect on earnings per share. All options with an exercise price less than the average market share price for the period are
assumed to have a dilutive effect on earnings per share. The diluted share base for the three and nine months ended February 28, 2013 excludes shares of0.1 million and 0.4
million, respectively, related to stock options. These shares were not considered in computing diluted earnings per share because including them would have had an antidilutive
effect. There were no excluded shares for thethree or nine months ended February 28, 2014 related to stock options. No additional securities were outstanding that could
potentially dilute basic earnings per share.

The following table sets forth the computation of diluted weighted average shares outstanding for thethree and nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28,
2013:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
February 28, February 28, February 28, February 28,
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in thousands) (in thousands)
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 71,835 77,756 72,598 78,364
Plus: Dilutive effect of stock options and other share-based awards 599 568 554 383
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 72,434 78,324 73,152 78,747

New _accounting pronouncements— From time-to-time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) or other
standards setting bodies that are adopted by us as of the specified effective date. Unless otherwise discussed, our management believes that the impact of recently issued
standards that are not yet effective will not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements upon adoption.

In July 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2013-11, "Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Loss Carryforward,
a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists" ("ASU 2013-11"). The amendments in ASU 2013-11 require an entity to present an unrecognized tax benefit in the
financial statements as a reduction to a deferred tax asset for a net operating loss ("NOL") carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward except when: (1) ANOL
carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward is not available as of the reporting date under the governing tax
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law to settle taxes that would result from the disallowance of the tax position; or (2) the entity does not intend to use the deferred tax asset for this purpose (provided that the tax
law permits a choice). If either of these conditions exists, an entity should present an unrecognized tax benefit in the financial statements as a liability and should not net the
unrecognized tax benefit with a deferred tax asset. The amendment does not affect the recognition or measurement of uncertain tax positions under ASC 740-5. The
amendments in this ASU are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013. The amendments should be applied
prospectively to all unrecognized tax benefits that exist at the effective date. Retrospective application is permitted. We do not expect this ASU to have an impact to our
consolidated financial statements.

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-10, "Inclusion of the Fed Funds Effective Swap Rate (or Overnight Index Swap Rate) as a Benchmark Interest Rate for Hedge
Accounting Purposes" ("ASU 2013-10"). The amendments in ASU 2013-10 permit an entity to designate Fed Funds Effective Swap Rate, also referred to as the overnight index
swap rate, as a benchmark interest rate for hedge accounting purposes. In addition, the amendment removes the restriction on using different benchmark interest rates for similar
hedges. The amendment is applicable to all entities that elect to apply hedge accounting of the benchmark interest rate under ASC 815. The amendment became effective
immediately. This amendment did not have an impact to our consolidated financial statements.

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-05, "Foreign Currency Matters"” ("ASU 2013-05"). The amendments in ASU 2013-05 resolve the diversity in practice about
whether current literature applies to the release of the cumulative translation adjustment into net income when a parent either sells a part or all of its investment in a foreign
entity or no longer holds a controlling financial interest in a subsidiary or group of assets that is a nonprofit activity or a business within a foreign entity. In addition, the
amendments in ASU 2013-05 resolve the diversity in practice for the treatment of business combinations achieved in stages (sometimes also referred to as step acquisitions)
involving a foreign entity. ASU 2013-05 is effective prospectively for fiscal years and interim reporting periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2013. This
standard is effective for us beginning June 1, 2014. We are currently evaluating the impact of ASU 2013-05 on our consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 2—PROCESSING SYSTEM INTRUSION

In early March of 2012, we identified and self-reported unauthorized access into a limited portion of our North America card processing system. Our investigation also
revealed potential unauthorized access to servers containing personal information collected from merchants who applied for processing services. As a result of this incident,
certain card networks removed us from their list of Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards ("PCI DSS") compliant service providers. We have since received reports
on compliance covering our systems that process, store, transmit or otherwise utilize card data and we have been returned to the network list of PCI DSS compliant service
providers. During the nine months ended February 28, 2014, we recorded a credit of$7.0 million associated with this incident related to insurance recoveries. This brings total
insurance recoveries recognized to date to $27.0 million, and we do not expect any additional recoveries. During the three months ended February 28, 2013, we recorded a net
credit of $1.2 million associated with this incident. This net credit reflects$18.0 million of insurance recoveries that we recorded during the three months endedFebruary 28,
2013. During the nine months ended February 28, 2013, we recorded $8.3 million of expense, net of insurance recoveries, associated with this incident. To date, we have not
experienced a material loss of revenue that we can confirm has been related to this incident. However, this incident and our related remediation efforts could potentially have a
negative impact on future revenues.

NOTE 3—SETTLEMENT PROCESSING ASSETS AND OBLIGATIONS

We are designated as a Merchant Service Provider by MasterCard and an Independent Sales Organization by Visa. These designations are dependent upon member
clearing banks ("Member") sponsoring us and our adherence to the standards of the networks. We have primary financial institution sponsors in the various markets where we
facilitate payment transactions with whom we have sponsorship or depository and clearing agreements. These agreements allow us to route transactions under the member
banks' control and identification numbers to clear credit card transactions through MasterCard and Visa. In certain markets, we are members in various payment networks,
allowing us to process and fund transactions without third-party sponsorship.

Funds settlement refers to the process of transferring funds for sales and credits between card issuers and merchants. For transactions processed on our systems, we use
our internal network telecommunication infrastructure to provide funding instructions to the Members who in turn fund the merchants. In markets where we utilize third-party
sponsorship, the standards of the card networks restrict us from performing funds settlement or accessing merchant settlement funds, and, instead, require that these funds be in
the possession of the Member until the merchant is funded. However, in practice and in accordance with the terms of our sponsorship agreements with our Members, we
generally follow a net settlement process whereby, if the incoming amount
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from the card networks precedes the Member's funding obligation to the merchant, we temporarily hold the surplus on behalf of the Member in our account at the Member bank
and record a corresponding liability. Conversely, if the Member's funding obligation to the merchant precedes the incoming amount from the card networks, the amount of the
Member's net receivable position is either subsequently advanced to the Member by us or the Member satisfies this obligation with its own funds. If the Member uses its own
funds, the Member may assess funding cost, which is included in interest and other expense on the accompanying consolidated statements of income. Each participant in the
transaction process receives compensation for its services.

Timing differences, interchange expense, Merchant Reserves and exception items cause differences between the amount the Member receives from the card networks
and the amount funded to the merchants. These intermediary balances arising in our settlement process for direct merchants are reflected as settlement processing assets and
obligations on our balance sheet. Settlement processing assets and obligations consist of the components outlined below:

* Interchange reimbursement - our receivable from merchants for the portion of the discount fee related to reimbursement of the interchange
expense.

*  Receivable from Members - our receivable from the Members for transactions we have funded merchants on behalf of the Members in advance of receipt of card
association funding.

*  Receivable from networks - our receivable from the card networks for transactions processed on behalf of merchants where we are a Member of that particular

network.

*  Exception items - items such as customer chargeback amounts received from
merchants.

*  Merchant Reserves - reserves held to minimize contingent liabilities associated with losses that may occur under the merchant
agreement.

»  Liability to Members - our liability to the Members for transactions for which we have received funding from the Members but have not funded merchants on behalf of
the Members. Also cases in which the Member uses its own funds to satisfy a funding obligation to merchants that precedes the incoming amount from the card
network.

* Liability to merchants - our liability to merchants for transactions that have been processed but not yet funded where we are a Member of that particular
network.

* Reserve for operating losses - see Note 1 -Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies.

*  Reserve for sales
allowances.

In accordance with ASC 210-20, Offsetting, we apply offsetting to our settlement processing assets and obligations where legal right of set-off exists. We apply this
offsetting by Member because the Member is ultimately responsible for funds settlement. With these Member transactions, we do not have access to the gross proceeds of the
receivable from the networks and, thus, do not have a direct obligation or any ability to satisfy the payable that funds the merchant. In these situations, we apply offsetting to
determine a net position with each member sponsor. If that net position is an asset, we reflect the net amount in settlement processing assets on our balance sheet and we present
the individual components in the settlement processing assets table below. If that net position is a liability, we reflect the net amount in settlement processing obligations on our
consolidated balance sheet and we present the individual components in the settlement processing obligations table below. In markets where we have direct membership,
offsetting is not applied, and the individual components are presented as an asset or obligation based on the nature of that component.
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February 28, 2014 May 31, 2013

(in thousands)

Settlement processing assets:

Interchange reimbursement $ 184,195 $ 70,348
Receivable from Members 57,670 117,404
Receivable from networks 114,822 126,136
Exception items 8,757 2,725
Merchant Reserves (82,030) (57,409)
$ 283,414 $ 259,204

Settlement processing obligations:

Interchange reimbursement $ 43,676 $ 200,319
Receivable from (liability to) Members 19,229 (27,717)
Liability to merchants (139,820) (120,875)
Exception items 4,245 12,308
Merchant Reserves (95,717) (223,314)
Reserve for operating losses (2,104) (2,318)
Reserves for sales allowances (1,072) 961)
$ (171,563) $ (162,558)

NOTE 4—BUSINESS AND INTANGIBLE ASSET ACQUISITIONS AND JOINT VENTURES
Fiscal 2014
Comercia Global Payments Brazil

Effective September 30, 2013, CaixaBank, S.A. ("CaixaBank"), which owns49% of Comercia Global Payments ("Comercia"), our subsidiary in Spain, purchased50% of
Global Payments Brazil for $2.1 million in cash and a commitment to fund the capital needs of the business until such time as its cumulative funding is equal to funding that we
have provided from inception through the effective date of the transaction. The transaction created a new joint venture which does business as Comercia Global Payments
Brazil. As a result of the transaction, we deconsolidated Global Payments Brazil, and we apply the equity method of accounting to our retained interest in Comercia Global
Payments Brazil. We recorded a gain on the transaction of $2.1 million which is included in interest and other income in the consolidated statement income for thenine months
ended February 28, 2014. The results of the Brazil operation from inception until the restructuring into a joint venture onSeptember 30, 2013 were not material to our
consolidated results of operations, and the assets and liabilities that we derecognized were not material to our consolidated balance sheet.

American Express Portfolio

In October 2013, we acquired a merchant portfolio in the Czech Republic from American Express Limited for$1.9 million. The acquired assets have been classified as
customer-related intangible assets and contract-based intangible assets with estimated amortization periods of 10 years.

Fiscal 2013
Accelerated Payment Technologies
On October 1, 2012, we completed the acquisition of 100% of the common stock of Accelerated Payment Technologies ("APT") for $413.0 million less working capital.
We funded the acquisition using proceeds from a term loan. We acquired APT, a provider of fully-integrated payment technology solutions for small and medium sized

merchants, to expand our direct distribution capabilities in the United States. This acquisition has been recorded as a business combination, and the purchase price was allocated
to the assets
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acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values. The purchase price of APT was determined by analyzing the historical and prospective financial
statements. Acquisition costs associated with this purchase were not material.

The following table summarizes the purchase price allocation (in thousands):

Goodwill $ 308,518
Customer-related intangible assets 97,200
Contract-based intangible assets 30,600
Acquired technology 15,000
Fixed assets 1,309
Other assets 3,708
Total assets acquired 456,335
Deferred income taxes (46,167)
Net assets acquired $ 410,168

The goodwill associated with the acquisition is not deductible for tax purposes. The customer-related intangible assets have estimated amortization periods of 12 years.
The contract-based intangible assets have amortization periods of 1.5 to 10 years. The acquired technology has an amortization period of8 years.

Prior to the acquisition, we processed transactions for the majority of APT's merchants via an ISO relationship. As a result, our revenue did not materially change with this
acquisition and the amount of incremental revenue and earnings of APT since the acquisition date included in the consolidated statement of income for the three and nine
months ended February 28, 2014 is not material. With the acquisition, we no longer pay a monthly residual to APT. The following pro forma information shows the results of
our operations for the nine months ended February 28, 2013 as if the APT acquisition had occurred June 1, 2012. The pro forma information is presented for information
purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of what would have occurred if the acquisition had been made as of that date. The pro forma information is also not intended to
be a projection of future results due to the integration of the acquired business.

Unaudited
Nine Months Ended
February 28, February 28,
2013 2013

(Actual) (Pro forma)
(in thousands, except per share data)
Total revenues $ 1,757,571 $§ 1,761,746
Net income attributable to Global Payments $ 175,320  $ 164,124
Net income per share attributable to Global Payments, basic $ 224§ 2.09
Net income per share attributable to Global Payments, diluted $ 223 § 2.08

Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest Acquisition

On July 26, 2012, we entered into an agreement to purchase HSBC Asia's ("HSBC")44% interest in Global Payments Asia-Pacific Limited ("GPAP") for fair value of
$242.0 million. Effective December 1, 2012, we completed the purchase. We used a combination of excess cash and existing borrowings to complete the transaction.

The purchase was treated as an equity transaction and reflected as a financing cash outflow in our statement of cash flows. Accordingly, no additional value was ascribed
to the assets of GPAP. The difference between the maximum redemption amount of the redeemable noncontrolling interest at July 26, 2012 and our purchase price was recorded
as a reduction of paid-in capital of $96.0 million. In accordance with ASC 480, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity ("ASC 480"), from the agreement date through the close
of the transaction, we accounted for our commitment to purchase the remaining 44% of GPAP as a freestanding forward contract. Accordingly as of July 26, 2012, we stopped
attributing income to redeemable noncontrolling interest and any subsequent distributions
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to holders of the redeemable noncontrolling interest were characterized as interest expense. HSBC was entitled to dividends through the closing of the transaction pursuant to the
GPAP shareholders' agreement and the purchase agreement. During fiscal 2013, we declared a dividend for fiscal year 2012 of which $8.4 million was paid to HSBC. During
the three months ended February 28, 2014, we declared an additional dividend related to GPAP operations for fiscal year 2013 through the closing date of whicl$3.3 million
was paid to HSBC. Such dividends are reflected as interest expense in our consolidated statements of income in the accordance with the provisions of ASC 480.

Banca Civica

On December 12, 2012, Comercia completed the acquisition of the merchant acquiring business of Banca Civica, S.A. ("Civica") from CaixaBank for €7.5 million ($22.9
million equivalent as of the acquisition date). This transaction has been recorded as a business combination, and the purchase price is allocated to the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values. The purchase price of Civica was determined by analyzing the historical and prospective financial statements. The results
of operations of this business were not significant to our consolidated results of operations and accordingly, we have not provided pro forma information relating to this
acquisition. Acquisition costs associated with this purchase were not material.

The following table summarizes the purchase price allocation (in thousands):

Goodwill $ 4,445
Customer-related intangible assets 4,576
Contract-based intangible assets 13,858

Net assets acquired $ 22,879

The goodwill associated with the acquisition is not deductible for tax purposes. The customer-related and contract-based intangible assets have estimated amortization
periods of 10 and 18 years, respectively.

NOTE 5—GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As of February 28, 2014 and May 31, 2013, goodwill and intangible assets consisted of the following:

February 28, 2014 May 31, 2013
(in thousands)
Goodwill $ 1,064,868 § 1,044,222
Other intangible assets:

Customer-related intangible assets $ 566,680 $ 559,884
Trademarks 6,004 6,390
Acquired technology 15,000 15,000
Contract-based intangible assets 115,134 110,234
702,818 691,508

Less accumulated amortization:
Customer-related intangible assets 301,974 262,649
Trademarks 4,023 3,967
Acquired technology 2,652 1,248
Contract-based intangible assets 29,656 22,796
338,305 290,660
$ 364,513 § 400,848
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The following table discloses the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for thenine months ended February 28, 2014:

North America International
merchant services merchant services Total

(in thousands)
Balance at May 31, 2013 $ 519,175 $ 525,047 $ 1,044,222

Accumulated impairment losses

$ 519,175 $ 525,047 $ 1,044,222
Goodwill acquired — — —
Effect of foreign currency translation (5,891) 26,537 20,646
Balance at February 28, 2014 $ 513,284 $ 551,584 $ 1,064,868
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NOTE 6—LONG-TERM DEBT AND CREDIT FACILITIES

Outstanding debt consisted of the following:

February 28, 2014 May 31, 2013
Lines of credit: (in thousands)
Corporate Credit Facility - long-term $ — $ 309,955
Short-term lines of credit:
United Kingdom Credit Facility 72,752 74,146
Global Payments Canada Financial Corporation Credit Facility 89,097 —
U.S. Wells Fargo Credit Facility — —
Hong Kong Credit Facility 31,078 38,134
Spain Credit Facility 29,756 28,041
Malaysia Credit Facility 9,397 14,025
Taiwan Credit Facility 8,752 8,359
Canada Credit Facility — 6,866
Singapore Credit Facility 6,206 6,459
Philippines Credit Facility 6,901 6,384
Sri Lanka Credit Facility 3,434 1,978
Macau Credit Facility 2,314 1,966
Maldives Credit Facility 2,155 741
Brunei Credit Facility 188 362
Malta Credit Facility 25 —
Total short-term lines of credit $ 262,055 $ 187,461
Total lines of credit 262,055 497,416
Notes payable 4,407 6,014
Term loan 1,250,000 647,500
Total debt $ 1,516,462 $ 1,150,930
Current portion $ 264,406 $ 259,796
Long-term debt 1,252,056 891,134
Total debt $ 1,516,462 $ 1,150,930

On February 28, 2014, we entered into an amended and restated term loan agreement ("Term Loan") and an amended and restated credit agreement ("Corporate Credit
Facility") with a syndicate of financial institutions. The Term Loan and the Corporate Credit Facility amended and restated the term loan agreement dated September 28, 2012
and the credit agreement dated December 7, 2010, respectively.

The Term Loan is a five-year senior unsecured $1,250.0 million Term Loan with a syndicate of financial institutions. We used proceeds from the Term Loan to partially
fund our acquisition of Payment Processing, Inc. ("PayPros") on March 4, 2014 and to repay the outstanding balances on our previously existing revolving credit facility and
our previously existing term loan. Please see Note 14 - Subsequent Event for further information about our acquisition of PayPros.

The Term Loan expires February 28, 2019 and bears interest, at our election, at eitherLIBOR or a base rate, in each case plus a leverage-based margin. The base rate is
the highest of (a) the Federal Funds Effective Rate (as defined in the Term Loan agreement) plus 0.50%, (b) the prime rate and (c) LIBOR plus 1.0%. As of February 28, 2014,

the interest rate on the Term Loan was 1.62%. Commencing in May 2015 and ending in November 2018, the Term Loan has scheduled quarterly principal payments ofl.25%,
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increasing up to2.50%. At maturity, 27.50% of the Term Loan will have been repaid through scheduled amortization and the remaining principal balance will be due. As of
February 28, 2014, the outstanding balance of the Term Loan was $1,250.0 million.

The Corporate Credit Facility is a five-year senior unsecured revolving $1,000.0 million Corporate Credit Facility with a syndicate of financial institutions. The Corporate
Credit Facility expires February 28, 2019 and bears interest, at our election, at eitherLIBOR or a base rate, in each case plus a leverage-based margin. The base rate is the
highest of (a) the Federal Funds Effective Rate (as defined in the Corporate Credit Facility agreement ) plus 0.50%, (b) the prime rate and (c) LIBOR plus 1.0%. Borrowing
under the Corporate Credit Facility is available in various currencies. As of February 28, 2014, there was no outstanding balance on the Corporate Credit Facility. The Corporate
Credit Facility is available for general corporate purposes and to fund future acquisitions and common share repurchases.

Upon closing of the Term Loan and the Corporate Credit Facility, which occurred on February 28, 2014, we repaid the outstanding balance of$612.5 million on our
previously existing term loan and the outstanding balance of $290.0 million on our previously existing revolving credit facility together with accrued interest and fees on each.
The debt exchange associated with the new Term Loan was accounted for as a debt extinguishment in connection with which we recorded a loss of $4.8 million, primarily
representing the fees paid to the lenders under the new Term Loan and the write off of debt issuance costs associated with the previously existing term loan. We have reported
this loss on extinguishment in Interest and other expense in our consolidated statements of income for the three and nine months ended February 28, 2014. We incurred fees and
expenses associated with these new arrangements of approximately $6.0 million, of which $3.3 million was capitalized as debt issuance costs. Debt issuance costs are included
in Other assets in our consolidated balance sheet at February 28, 2014 and will be amortized over the remaining term of these new arrangements.

The agreements contain customary affirmative and restrictive covenants, including, among others, financial covenants based on our leverage and fixed charge coverage
ratios. Please see "Compliance with Covenants" below. Each of the agreements includes customary events of default, the occurrence of which, following any applicable cure
period, would permit lenders to, among other things, declare the principal, accrued interest and other obligations to be immediately due and payable.

Short-term Lines of Credit

Our short-term lines of credit are primarily used to fund settlement. For certain of our lines of credit, the line of credit balance is reduced by the amount of cash we have
on deposit in specific accounts with the lender when determining compliance with the credit limit. Accordingly, the line of credit balance may exceed the stated credit limit at
any given point in time, when in fact the combined position is less than the credit limit. The total available incremental borrowings at February 28, 2014 were $1,000.0 million
under our Corporate Credit Facility. As of February 28, 2014, we had $860.8 million of additional borrowing capacity under our short-term lines of credit to fund settlement.

During the nine months ended February 28, 2014, we entered into the following additional short-term lines of credit:

*  Global Payments Canada Financial Corporation - On September 30, 2013, we entered into a revolving overdraft facility for up t0$80.0 million CAD to fund
interchange and merchants prior to receipt of corresponding settlement funds from the card associations. This credit facility has a variable short-term interest rate.

¢ Malta - OnOctober 9, 2013, we entered into an amendment to our revolving overdraft facility for up to2.5 million EUR to fund interchange and merchants
prior to receipt of corresponding settlement funds from the card associations. This credit facility has a variable short-term interest rate plus a margin.

+ U.S. Wells Fargo Credit Facility - OnSeptember 26, 2013, we entered into a revolving overdraft facility for up t0$50.0 million to fund interchange and

merchants prior to receipt of corresponding settlement funds from the card associations. Interest expense is incurred based on a variable short-term interest rate plus a
margin.
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Notes Payable

United Card Services, our subsidiary in the Russian Federation, had notes payable with a total outstanding balance of approximately$4.4 million at February 28, 2014.
These notes had fixed annual interest rates of 8.5% with maturity dates ranging from March 2014 through November 2016.

Compliance with Covenants

There are certain financial and non-financial covenants contained in our various credit facilities and Term Loan. Our Term Loan and Corporate Credit Facility agreements
include financial covenants requiring (i) a leverage ratio no greater than 3.50 to 1.00 and (ii) a fixed charge coverage ratio no less than2.50 to 1.00. We complied with all
applicable covenants as of and for the three and nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013.

NOTE 7—INCOME TAX

We had a deferred tax asset of $95.7 million at February 28, 2014 primarily associated with the purchase of the remaining49% interest in GPUK LLP (fk.a. HSBC
Merchant Services LLP) in fiscal 2010 ("U.K. Deferred Tax Asset").

Our effective tax rates were 28.3% and 27.2% for the three months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, respectively. Our effective tax rates were 28.4% and
28.6% for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, respectively. The effective tax rates for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28,
2013 reflect reductions to our U.K. Deferred Tax Asset due to enacted corporate tax rate reductions in the United Kingdom 08% and 2%, respectively.

As of February 28, 2014 and May 31, 2013, Other long-term liabilities included liabilities for unrecognized income tax benefits 0f$65.2 million and $53.8 million,
respectively. During the three months ended February 28, 2014, we recognized an increase in liabilities 0f$3.0 million for unrecognized income tax benefits. During the nine
months ended February 28, 2014, we recognized an increase in liabilities of$11.4 million for unrecognized income tax benefits. During the three and nine months ended
February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, amounts recorded for accrued interest and penalty expense related to the unrecognized income tax benefits were insignificant.

We conduct business globally and file income tax returns in the United States federal jurisdiction and various state and foreign jurisdictions. In the normal course of
business, we are subject to examination by taxing authorities throughout the world, including such major jurisdictions as the United States, the United Kingdom and Canada. We
are no longer subject to income tax examinations for years ended on or before May 31, 2006. We completed an audit with the United States Internal Revenue Service ("IRS")
for fiscal years 2011 and 2010 with no significant adjustments, after which we are no longer subject to U.S. federal income tax examinations by the IRS for fiscal years prior to
2012.

NOTE 8—SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

On July 25, 2013, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up t0$250.0 million of our common stock. OnOctober 7, 2013, pursuant to this authorization, we
entered into an accelerated share repurchase program ("ASR") with Goldman, Sachs & Co. to repurchase an aggregate of $100.0 million of our common stock. In exchange for
an upfront payment of $100.0 million, Goldman, Sachs & Co. committed to deliver a number of shares during the ASR's purchase period, which ended onJanuary 9, 2014. The
total number of shares delivered under this ASR was 1.6 million shares at an average price 0f$60.96 per share. These shares were retired and accounted for as a reduction of
shareholders' equity in the consolidated balance sheet.

In addition to shares repurchased under the ASR, we repurchased and retired 0.2 million shares of our common stock at a cost of$10.5 million, or an average of$67.65
per share, including commissions, during the three months ended February 28, 2014. During the nine months endedFebruary 28, 2014, we repurchased and retired
approximately 5.0 million shares of our common stock at a cost 0f$260.6 million, or an average 0f$52.53 per share, including commissions. As of February 28, 2014, we had
$114.0 million of remaining authorized share repurchases.
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NOTE 9—SHARE-BASED AWARDS AND OPTIONS

As ofFebruary 28, 2014, we had awards outstanding under four share-based employee compensation plans. The fair value of share-based awards is amortized as
compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.

Non-qualified stock options and restricted stock have been granted to officers, key employees and directors under the Global Payments Inc. 2000 Long-Term Incentive
Plan, as amended and restated (the "2000 Plan"), the Global Payments Inc. Amended and Restated 2005 Incentive Plan (the "2005 Plan"), the Amended and Restated 2000 Non-
Employee Director Stock Option Plan (the "Director Plan"), and the Global Payments Inc. 2011 Incentive Plan (the "2011 Plan") (collectively, the "Plans"). There were no
further grants made under the 2000 Plan after the 2005 Plan was effective, and the Director Plan expired by its terms on February 1, 2011. As a result, there will be no future
grants under the Director Plan.

The 2011 Plan permits grants of equity to employees, officers, directors and consultants. A total of7.0 million shares of our common stock was reserved and made
available for issuance pursuant to awards granted under the 2011 Plan. Effective with the adoption of the 2011 Plan, there will be no future grants under the 2005 Plan.

The following table summarizes the share-based compensation cost charged to income for (i) all stock options granted, (ii) our restricted stock program (including
PRSUs and TSRs, each as defined below), and (iii) our employee stock purchase plan. The total income tax benefit recognized for share-based compensation in the
accompanying statements of income is also presented.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
February 28, February 28,
February 28, 2014 2013 February 28, 2014 2013
(in millions)
Share-based compensation expense $ 5.3 $ 5.0 $ 17.3 $ 14.1
Income tax benefit $ 2.0 $ 1.5 $ 52 $ 4.1
Restricted Stock

Shares and performance units awarded under the restricted stock program of the Plans are held in escrow and released to the grantee upon the grantee’s satisfaction of
conditions of the grantee’s restricted stock agreement. The grant date fair value of restricted stock awards is based on the quoted market value of our common stock at the
award date.

Certain executives are granted two different types of performance units under our restricted stock program. A portion of those performance units represent the right to
earn 0% to 200% of a target number of shares of our common stock depending upon the achievement level of certain performance measures during the grant year (“PRSUs”).
The target number of PRSUs and the performance measures (at threshold, target, and maximum) are set by the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors. PRSUs are
converted to a time-based restricted stock grant only if our performance during the fiscal year exceeds pre-established goals. The other portion of these performance units
represents the right to earn 0% to 200% of target shares of our common stock based on our relative total shareholder return compared to peer companies over ahree-year
performance period ("TSRs"). The target number of TSRs for each executive is set by the Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors and a monte carlo simulation is
used to calculate the estimated share payout.

Grants of restricted stock awards are subject to forfeiture if a grantee, among other conditions, leaves our employment prior to expiration of the restricted period. New
grants of restricted stock awards generally vest in 25% increments over each of the first four anniversaries of the grant date. TSRs vest after a three-year period.

24



Table of Contents

The following table summarizes the changes in non-vested restricted stock awards for thenine months ended February 28, 2014 (shares in thousands):

Weighted Average

Grant-Date

Shares Fair Value
Non-vested at May 31, 2013 1,096 $ 44
Granted 550 47
Vested (360) 44
Forfeited (104) 44
Non-vested at February 28, 2014 1,182 45

The total fair value of share awards vested during thenine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013 was $15.9 million and $13.5 million, respectively.

We recognized compensation expense for restricted stock of$5.0 million and $4.4 million in the three months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013,
respectively. We recognized compensation expense for restricted stock of $16.2 million and $12.4 million in the nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013,
respectively. As of February 28, 2014, there was $41.2 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock awards that is expected to be
recognized over a weighted average period of 2.6 years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

We have an Employee Stock Purchase Plan under which the sale of 2.4 million shares of our common stock has been authorized. Employees may designate up to the
lesser of $25,000 or 20% of their annual compensation for the purchase of our common stock. The price for shares purchased under the plan is 85% of the market value on the
last day of the quarterly purchase period. As of February 28, 2014, 1.1 million shares had been issued under this plan, with 1.3 million shares reserved for future issuance. We
recognized compensation expense for the plan of $0.1 million and $0.2 million in the three months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, respectively. We recognized
compensation expense for the plan of $0.4 million and $0.4 million in the nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, respectively.

The weighted average grant-date fair value of each designated share purchased under this plan during thenine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013
was $7 and $6, respectively, which represents the fair value of the 15% discount.

Stock Options

Stock options are granted at 100% of fair market value on the date of grant and have 10-year terms. Stock options granted vest in 25% increments over each of the first
four anniversaries of the grant date. The Plans provide for accelerated vesting under certain conditions. There were no options granted under the Plans during the nine months
ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013.
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The following is a summary of our stock option activity as of and for thenine months ended February 28, 2014:

‘Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Options Price Term Value
(in thousands) (years) (in millions)
Outstanding at May 31, 2013 1,765  $ 35 35§ 23.9
Granted — —
Forfeited (64) 39
Exercised 911) 30
Outstanding at February 28, 2014 790 $ 40 41 $ 232
Options vested and exercisable at February 28, 2014 732 $ 41 39 § 21.3

The aggregate intrinsic value of stock options exercised during thenine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013 was $24.0 million and $5.8 million,
respectively. As of February 28, 2014, we had $0.3 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested options which we expect to recognize over a weighted
average period of 0.44 years. We recognized compensation expense for stock options of $0.2 million and $0.4 million in the three months ended February 28, 2014 and
February 28, 2013, respectively. We recognized compensation expense for stock options of $0.7 million and $1.3 million in the nine months ended February 28, 2014 and
February 28, 2013, respectively.

NOTE 10—SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Supplemental cash flow disclosures are as follows:

Nine Months Ended
February 28,
February 28, 2014 2013

(in thousands)

Supplemental cash flow information:
Income taxes paid, net of refunds $ 72,457 $ 48,966
Interest paid $ 26,100 $ 22,892
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NOTE 11—NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS
The following table details the components of redeemable noncontrolling interest for thenine months ended February 28, 2013:
Nine Months Ended

February 28, 2013

(in thousands)

Beginning balance $ 144,422
Net income attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interest 1,814
Foreign currency translation adjustment 573
Decrease in the maximum redemption amount of redeemable noncontrolling interest (817)
Derecognition of redeemable noncontrolling interest (145,992)
Ending balance $ =

For the nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, net income included in the consolidated statements of changes in equity is reconciled to net income
presented in the consolidated statements of income as follows:

Nine Months Ended

February 28, 2014 February 28, 2013

(in thousands)
Net income attributable to Global Payments $ 193,661 $ 175,320
Net income attributable to nonredeemable noncontrolling interests 18,025 15,213
Subtotal per statement of changes in equity 211,686 190,533
Net income attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interest — 1,814
Net income $ 211,686 $ 192,347

The following table is the reconciliation of net income attributable to noncontrolling interests to comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests for the
three and nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013:

Three Months Ended

February 28, 2014 February 28, 2013

(in thousands)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests, net of tax $ 5,000 $ 4,352
Foreign currency translation attributable to nonredeemable noncontrolling interests 2,181 878
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests, net of tax $ 7,181 $ 5,230
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Nine Months Ended
February 28, 2014 February 28, 2013

(in thousands)

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests, net of tax $ 18,025 $ 17,027
Foreign currency translation attributable to nonredeemable noncontrolling interests 8,798 7,857
Foreign currency translation attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interest — 573
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests, net of tax $ 26,823 $ 25,457

NOTE 12—SEGMENT INFORMATION
General Information

We operate intwo reportable segments, North America merchant services and International merchant services. The merchant services segments primarily offer
processing solutions for credit cards, debit cards, and check-related services.

Information About Profit and Assets
We evaluate performance and allocate resources based on the operating income of each segment. The operating income of each segment includes the revenues of the
segment less those expenses that are directly related to those revenues. Operating overhead, shared costs and certain compensation costs are included in Corporate in the

following table. Interest expense and income and income tax expense are not allocated to the individual segments. We do not evaluate performance or allocate resources using
segment asset data. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in Note 1.
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Information on segments, including revenue by geographic distribution within segments, and reconciliations to consolidated revenues and consolidated operating income
are as follows for the three and nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
February 28, February 28, February 28,
February 28, 2014 2013 2014 2013

(in thousands)

Revenues:

United States $ 355,880 $ 336,354 $ 1,081,506 $ 1,022,250

Canada 73,467 72,218 245,379 233,885
North America merchant services 429,347 408,572 1,326,885 1,256,135

Europe 143,832 130,750 433,886 390,376

Asia-Pacific 43,273 39,424 119,488 111,060
International merchant services 187,105 170,174 553,374 501,436

Consolidated revenues $ 616,452 $ 578,746 $ 1,880,259 $ 1,757,571

Operating income (loss) for segments:

North America merchant services $ 61,695 $ 55,478 $ 201,831 $ 189,809

International merchant services 58,077 51,820 182,085 162,947

Corporate () (22,481) (16,524) (67,334) (64,912)
Consolidated operating income $ 97,291 $ 90,774 $ 316,582 $ 287,844

Depreciation and amortization:

North America merchant services $ 14,422 $ 14,267 $ 41,488 $ 36,092
International merchant services 13,790 15,147 40,934 43,004
Corporate 1,594 1,478 4,776 3,851
Consolidated depreciation and amortization $ 29,806 $ 30,892 $ 87,198 $ 82,947

() Includes a processing system intrusion credit of $1.2 million for the three months ended February 28, 2013. Includes a processing system intrusion credit of $7.0 million
and a charge of $8.3 million for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, respectively.

Our results of operations and our financial condition are not significantly reliant upon any single customer.

NOTE 13—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
BIN/ICA Agreements

We have entered into sponsorship or depository and processing agreements with certain banks. These agreements allow us to use the banks' identification numbers,
referred to as a Bank Identification Number ("BIN") for Visa transactions and an Interbank Card Association ("ICA") number for MasterCard transactions, to clear credit card

transactions through Visa and MasterCard. Certain of these agreements contain financial covenants, and we were in compliance with all such covenants as of February 28, 2014.

Effective September 30, 2013, Global Payments Canada Financial Corporation commenced operations and became a direct member of Visa Canada. Accordingly, we no
longer use third party Visa sponsorship in Canada.
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NOTE 14—SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On March 4, 2014, we completed the acquisition of PayPros for$420.0 million in cash, subject to adjustment based on a final determination of working capital. We
funded the acquisition with a combination of cash on hand and proceeds from our new Term Loan. PayPros, based in California, is an innovative provider of fully-integrated
payment solutions for 58,000 small-to-medium sized merchants in the United States. PayPros delivers its products and services through a network of overl,000 technology-
based enterprise software partners to vertical markets that are complementary to the markets served by APT. This transaction will be recorded as a business combination, and the
purchase price will be allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values. Due to the timing of this transaction, the allocation of
purchase price has not been finalized pending valuation of intangible assets acquired.

ITEM 2 - MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

For an understanding of the significant factors that influenced our results, the following discussion should be read in conjunction with our unaudited consolidated
financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this report. This management’s discussion and analysis should also be read in conjunction with the management’s
discussion and analysis and consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2013. This discussion contains
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ from those indicated in the forward-looking statements. See "Special Cautionary
Notice Regarding Forward-Looking Statements" below for additional information.

General

We are a provider of electronic payments transaction processing services for consumers, merchants, independent sales organizations ("ISOs"), financial institutions,
government agencies and multi-national corporations located throughout the United States, Canada, Brazil, the United Kingdom, Spain, the Republic of Malta, the Czech
Republic, the Russian Federation and the Asia-Pacific region. We serve as an intermediary to facilitate payment transactions and operate in two business segments, North
America merchant services and International merchant services.

We were incorporated in Georgia as Global Payments Inc. in September 2000 and spun-off from our former parent company on January 31, 2001. Including our time as
part of our former parent company, we have been in the payments business since 1967. Global Payments Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries are referred to collectively as
"Global Payments," "we," "our" or "us," unless the context requires otherwise.

Our North America merchant services and International merchant services segments target customers in many vertical industries including financial services, gaming,
government, health care, professional services, restaurants, retail, universities, nonprofit organizations and utilities.

Our offerings provide merchants, ISOs and financial institutions with credit and debit card transaction processing and check-related services. Our primary business model
provides payment products and services directly to merchants as our end customers. We also provide similar products and services to financial institutions and a limited number
of ISOs that, in turn, resell our products and services, in which case, the financial institutions and select ISOs are our end customers. These particular services are marketed in
the United States, Canada and parts of Europe.

The majority of merchant services revenue is generated on services priced as a percentage of transaction value or a specified fee per transaction, depending on card type.
We also charge other fees based on specific services that are unrelated to the number of transactions or the transaction value. Revenue from credit cards and signature debit
cards is generally based on a percentage of transaction value along with other related fees, while revenue from PIN-based debit cards is typically based on a fee per transaction.

Our products and services are marketed through a variety of sales channels that include our integrated solutions channel, a dedicated direct sales force, ISOs, an internal
telesales group, retail outlets, trade associations, alliance bank relationships and financial institutions. We seek to leverage the continued shift to electronic payments by
expanding market share in our existing markets through our distribution channels or through acquisitions in North America, the Asia-Pacific region and Europe, and investing in
and leveraging technology and people, thereby maximizing shareholder value. We also seek to enter new markets through acquisitions in the Asia-Pacific region, Europe and
Latin America.
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Our business does not have pronounced seasonality in which more than 30% of our revenues occur in one quarter. However, each geographic channel has somewhat
higher and lower quarters given the nature of the portfolio. While there is some variation in seasonality across markets, the first and fourth quarters are generally the strongest,
and the third quarter tends to be the weakest due to lower volumes processed in the months of January and February.

Executive Overview

For the nine months ended February 28, 2014, revenues increased 7.0% to $1,880.3 million from $1,757.6 million for the prior year, reflecting growth in all of our
markets.

Consolidated operating income was $316.6 million for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 compared to $287.8 million for the prior year. Consolidated operating
income for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013 includes a processing system intrusion credit of$7.0 million and a charge of $8.3 million,
respectively. Net income attributable to Global Payments increased $18.4 million, or 10.5%, to $193.7 million for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 from $175.3 million
in the prior year, resulting in a $0.42 increase in diluted earnings per share t0$2.65 for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 from $2.23 for the nine months ended
February 28, 2013.

North America merchant services segment revenue increased $70.8 million, or 5.6%, to $1,326.9 million for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 from $1,256.1
million for the nine months ended February 28, 2013. North America merchant services segment operating income increased to $201.8 million for the nine months ended
February 28, 2014 from $189.8 million for the nine months ended February 28, 2013, with operating margins of 15.2% and 15.1% for the nine months ended February 28, 2014
and February 28, 2013. The growth in the North America merchant services segment is primarily due to growth in our United States integrated solutions and direct sales
channels and growth in Canada, which was partially offset by the impact of changes in exchange rates.

International merchant services segment revenue increased$52.0 million, or 10.4%, to $553.4 million for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 from $501.4 million
for the nine months ended February 28, 2013. International merchant services operating income also increased to $182.1 million for the nine months ended February 28, 2014
from $162.9 million for the nine months ended February 28, 2013, with operating margins 0£32.9% and 32.5% for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28,
2013, respectively. The growth in the International merchant services segment is due to growth across our European markets and in the Asia-Pacific region.

On February 28, 2014, we closed on a five-year senior unsecured $1,250.0 million term loan and $1,000.0 million revolving credit facility with a syndicate of financial
institutions. The proceeds from the term loan were used to repay the outstanding balance of the previously existing term loan and credit facilities and to partially fund the
acquisition of Payment Processing, Inc. ("PayPros") on March 4, 2014. We intend to use the remaining capacity to support strategic growth initiatives, including acquisitions
and ongoing share repurchases. In connection with the debt refinancing, we recorded a loss of $4.8 million, primarily representing the fees paid to the lenders under the new
term loan and the write off of debt issuance costs associated with the previously existing term loan.

On March 4, 2014, we completed the acquisition of PayPros for$420.0 million in cash, subject to adjustment based on a final determination of working capital. We
funded the acquisition with a combination of cash on hand and proceeds from our new debt facilities discussed above. PayPros, based in California, is an innovative provider of
fully-integrated payment solutions for 58,000 small-to-medium sized merchants in the United States. PayPros delivers its products and services through a network of over
1,000 technology-based enterprise software partners to vertical markets that are complementary to the markets served by Accelerated Payment Technologies ("APT"), which we
acquired in October 2012. Please see Note 4 - Business and Intangible Asset Acquisitions and Joint Ventures in the notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statements for
further discussion. This transaction will be recorded as a business combination and the purchase price will be allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on
their estimated fair values. Due to the timing of this transaction, the allocation of purchase price has not been finalized pending valuation of intangible assets acquired.
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Results of Operations

The following table shows key selected financial data for the three months endedFebruary 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, this data as a percentage of total revenues,
and the changes between three months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, in dollars and as a percentage of the prior year.

Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
February 28, 2014 % of Revenue® February 28, 2013 % of Revenue® Change % Change
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Revenues:
United States $ 355,880 57.7%  $ 336,354 581% $ 19,526 5.8%
Canada 73,467 11.9% 72,218 12.5 % 1,249 1.7 %
North America merchant services 429,347 69.6% 408,572 70.6 % 20,775 51 %
Europe 143,832 23.3% 130,750 22.6 % 13,082 10.0 %
Asia-Pacific 43,273 7.0% 39,424 6.8 % 3,849 9.8 %
International merchant services 187,105 30.4% 170,174 29.4 % 16,931 9.9 %
Total revenues $ 616,452 100% $ 578,746 100 % $ 37,706 6.5 %

Consolidated operating expenses:

Cost of service $ 232,937 378% $ 217,465 376 %  $ 15,472 7.1 %
Sales, general and administrative 286,224 46.4% 271,696 46.9 % 14,528 53%
Processing system intrusion — —% (1,189) 0.2)% 1,189 (100.0)%

Operating income $ 97,291 158% $ 90,774 157%  $ 6,517 7.2 %

Operating income (loss) for segments:

North America merchant services $ 61,695 $ 55,478 $ 6,217 11.2 %
International merchant services 58,077 51,820 6,257 12.1 %
Corporate® (22,481) (16,524) (5,957) 36.1 %

Operating income $ 97,291 $ 90,774 $ 6,517 72 %

Operating margin for segments:
North America merchant services 14.4% 13.6% 0.8%

International merchant services 31.0% 30.5% 0.5%

(D) Percentage amounts may not sum to the total due to rounding.
@ Includes a processing system intrusion credit of $1.2 million in the three months ended February 28, 2013.
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The following table shows key selected financial data for thenine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, this data as a percentage of total revenues, and
the change between nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, in dollars and as a percentage of the prior year. APT's results of operations are included in our
consolidated results of operations and results of operations of our North America merchant services segment from October 1, 2012, the date we acquired APT. Accordingly,
results of operations for the nine months ended February 28, 2013 reflect the results of APT's operations for five months, while results of operations for thenine months ended
February 28, 2014 reflect the results of APT's operations fornine months.

Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended
February 28, 2014 % of Revenue® February 28, 2013 % of Revenue® Change % Change
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Revenues:
United States $ 1,081,506 575%  $ 1,022,250 582% $ 59,256 5.8 %
Canada 245,379 13.1 % 233,885 13.3% 11,494 49 %
North America merchant services 1,326,885 70.6 % 1,256,135 71.5% 70,750 5.6 %
Europe 433,886 23.1 % 390,376 22.2% 43,510 11.1 %
Asia-Pacific 119,488 6.4 % 111,060 6.3% 8,428 7.6 %
International merchant services 553,374 294 % 501,436 28.5% 51,938 10.4 %
Total revenues $ 1,880,259 100% $ 1,757,571 100% $ 122,688 7.0 %

Consolidated operating expenses:

Cost of service $ 698,852 372%  $ 632,124 36.0% § 66,728 10.6 %
Sales, general and administrative 871,825 46.4 % 829,292 47.2% 42,533 51 %
Processing system intrusion (7,000) 0.4)% 8,311 0.5% (15,311) (184.2)%

Operating income $ 316,582 168 % $ 287,844 164% $ 28,738 10.0 %

Operating income (loss) for segments:

North America merchant services $ 201,831 $ 189,809 $ 12,022 6.3 %
International merchant services 182,085 162,947 19,138 11.7 %
Corporate (67,334) (64,912) (2,422) 3.7 %

Operating income $ 316,582 $ 287,844 $ 28,738 10.0 %

Operating margin for segments:
North America merchant services 152% 15.1% 0.1%

International merchant services 32.9% 32.5% 0.4%

(1) Percentage amounts may not sum to the total due to rounding.
@ Includes a processing system intrusion credit of $7.0 million and a charge of $8.3 million in the nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, respectively.

Processing System Intrusion

In early March of 2012, we identified and self-reported unauthorized access into a limited portion of our North America card processing system. Our investigation also
revealed potential unauthorized access to servers containing personal information collected from merchants who applied for processing services. As a result of this incident,
certain card networks removed us from their list of Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards ("PCI DSS") compliant service providers. We have since received reports
on
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compliance covering our systems that process, store, transmit or otherwise utilize card data and we have been returned to the network list of PCI DSS compliant service
providers. During the nine months ended February 28, 2014, we recorded a credit of $7.0 million associated with this incident related to insurance recoveries. This brings total
insurance recoveries recognized to date to $27.0 million, and we do not expect any additional recoveries. During the three months endedFebruary 28, 2013, we recorded a net
credit of $1.2 million associated with this incident. This net credit reflects$18.0 million of insurance recoveries that we recorded during the three months endedFebruary 28,
2013. During the nine months ended February 28, 2013, we recorded $8.3 million of expense, net of insurance recoveries, associated with this incident. To date, we have not
experienced a material loss of revenue that we can confirm has been related to this incident. However, this incident and our related remediation efforts could potentially have a
negative impact on future revenues.

As previously reported, this incident did lead to legal proceedings and governmental inquiries and could result in further such actions in the future. We have not recorded
any loss accruals related to these items or any other claims that may be asserted against us in relation to this incident as we have not determined that losses associated with any
such potential claims are probable. Further, we do not have sufficient information to estimate the amount or range of possible losses associated with such matters. If we should
determine that an unfavorable outcome is probable on such a claim and that the amount of such probable loss that we will incur on that claim is reasonably estimable, we will
accrue our estimate of such loss. If and when we record such an accrual, it could be material and could adversely impact our results of operations.

Revenues

We derive our revenues from four primary sources: charges based on volumes and fees for services, charges based on transaction quantity, service fees and equipment
sales and rentals. Revenues generated by these areas depend upon a number of factors, such as demand for and price of our services, the technological competitiveness of our
product offerings, our reputation for providing timely and reliable service, competition within our industry and general economic conditions.

For the three months ended February 28, 2014, revenues increased 6.5% to $616.5 million compared to the prior year. For the nine months ended February 28, 2014,
revenues increased 7.0% to $1,880.3 million compared to the prior year. This revenue growth was due to growth in North America, Europe, and the Asia-Pacific region.

North America Merchant Services Segment

For the three months ended February 28, 2014, revenue from our North America merchant services segment increased5.1% to $429.3 million compared to the prior year.
For the nine months ended February 28, 2014, revenue from our North America merchant services segment increased5.6% to $1,326.9 million compared to the prior year.
North America revenue growth was driven by our United States integrated solutions, direct sales and ISO channels and growth in Canada.

We grow our United States revenue primarily by adding small and mid-market merchants in diversified vertical markets. For the three months ended February 28, 2014,
our United States credit and debit card processed transactions grew 6.0% compared to the prior year. For the nine months ended February 28, 2014, our United States credit and
debit card processed transactions grew 7.7% compared to the prior year.

For the three months ended February 28, 2014, our Canadian revenue increased1.7% to $73.5 million due to credit transaction growth and assessment-based pricing
changes. For the nine months ended February 28, 2014, our Canadian revenue increased4.9% to $245.4 million due to credit transaction growth and assessment-based pricing
changes. For the nine months ended February 28, 2014, our total Canadian transactions grew 2.9% compared to the prior year, including 5.2% growth in credit transactions.
These increases for the three and nine months ended February 28, 2014 were partially offset by the impact of changes in exchange rates.

International Merchant Services Segment

For the three months ended February 28, 2014, International merchant services revenue increased9.9% to $187.1 million compared to the prior year. For the nine months
ended February 28, 2014, International merchant services revenue increased 10.4% to $553.4 million compared to the prior year. Our Europe merchant services revenue for the
three months ended February 28, 2014 increased 10.0% to $143.8 million compared to the prior year, driven primarily by transaction growth in most markets as well as growth

in our e-commerce services. Our Europe merchant services revenue for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 increased
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11.1% to $433.9 million compared to the prior year, driven primarily by transaction growth in all markets as well as growth in our e-commerce services. Asia-Pacific merchant
services revenue of $43.3 million for the three months ended February 28, 2014 represents an increase of 9.8% compared to the prior year, driven primarily by pricing increases.
Asia-Pacific merchant services revenue of $119.5 million for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 represents an increase of 7.6% compared to the prior year.

Consolidated Operating Expenses

Cost of service consists primarily of compensation or personnel expenses paid to operations and technology-related personnel; assessments and other fees paid to card
networks; transaction processing expenses, including third-party services; network telecommunications capability; depreciation and occupancy costs associated with the
facilities performing these functions; amortization of intangible assets; and provisions for operating losses. Cost of service increased 7.1% and 10.6% during the three and nine
months ended February 28, 2014, respectively, compared to the prior year, driven primarily by an increase in the variable costs associated with revenue growth. Cost of service
for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 further increased over the prior year as a result of intangible amortization expense related to APT. The increase in amortization
expense in our North America merchant services segment was partially offset by a decrease in amortization expense in our International merchant services segment, resulting
from fully amortized intangible assets. As a percentage of revenue, cost of service increased to 37.8% for the three months ended February 28, 2014 from 37.6% in the prior
year. As a percentage of revenue, cost of service increased to 37.2% for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 from 36.0% in the prior year.

Sales, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of compensation or personnel expenses paid to sales personnel; non-revenue producing customer support
functions, administrative employees and management; commissions paid to ISOs, independent contractors, and other third parties; advertising costs; share-based compensation
expense and occupancy of leased space directly related to these functions. Sales, general and administrative expenses increased 5.3% for the three months ended February 28,
2014 compared to the prior year. Sales, general and administrative expenses increased5.1% for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 compared to the prior year. This
increase is primarily due to an increase in commission payments to ISOs. This increase was partially offset by the elimination of ISO commission payments previously made to
APT as a result of our acquisition of APT on October 1, 2012. As a percentage of revenues, sales, general and administrative expenses decreased to 46.4% for the three months
ended February 28, 2014 from 46.9% in the prior year. As a percentage of revenues, sales, general and administrative expenses decreased t046.4% for the nine months ended
February 28, 2014 from 47.2% in the prior year.

Operating Income and Operating Margin for Segments

For the purpose of discussing segment operations, we refer to operating income as calculated by subtracting segment direct expenses from segment revenue. Overhead
and shared expenses, including share-based compensation, are not allocated to segment operations; they are reported in the caption “Corporate.” Similarly, references to
operating margin regarding segment operations mean segment operating income divided by segment revenue.

North America Merchant Services Segment

Operating income in North America merchant services segment increased 11.2% for the three months ended February 28, 2014 compared to the prior year. Operating
income in North America merchant services segment increased 6.3% for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 compared to the prior year. The increase in operating income
was primarily due to the increase in transactions and volume in our United States integrated solutions and direct sales channels and growth in Canada. This increase was
partially offset by foreign currency translation in Canada. The operating margin was 14.4% and 13.6% for the three months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013,
respectively. The operating margin was 15.2% and 15.1% for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, respectively.
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International Merchant Services Segment

Operating income in International merchant services segment increased12.1% to $58.1 million for the three months ended February 28, 2014 compared to the prior year.
Operating income in International merchant services segment increased 11.7% to $182.1 million for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 compared to the prior year. The
increase in operating income was primarily due to the increase in transactions and volume in Europe and the Asia-Pacific region as well as pricing increases in the Asia-Pacific
region. The operating margin was 31.0% and 30.5% for the three months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, respectively. The operating margin was 32.9% and
32.5% for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, respectively.

Corporate

Our corporate expenses include costs associated with our Atlanta headquarters, global data security expenses, expenses related to our Global Service Center in Manila,
Philippines that have not been allocated to our business segments, insurance, employee incentive programs, share-based compensation programs, and certain corporate staff,
including finance, accounting, information technology, legal, human resources, marketing and executive. We also consider costs and cost recoveries associated with the
processing system intrusion to be a corporate expense. Our corporate expenses increased 36.1% to $22.5 million for the three months ended February 28, 2014 compared to the
prior year as a result of higher data security costs. In addition, Corporate results for the three months ended February 28, 2013 included a credit of $1.2 million related to the
processing system intrusion.

Our corporate expenses increased 3.7% to $67.3 million for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 compared to the prior year due primarily to higher data security
costs and employee termination benefits. Corporate expenses included a processing system intrusion credit of $7.0 million and a charge of $8.3 million during the nine months

ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, respectfully.

Consolidated Operating Income

For the three months ended February 28, 2014, our consolidated operating income increased7.2% to $97.3 million from $90.8 million in the prior year. For the nine
months ended February 28, 2014, our consolidated operating income increased 10.0% to $316.6 million from $287.8 million in the prior year. These increases are primarily due
to revenue growth in our North America and International merchant services segments offset by (i) higher variable costs of services associated with the revenue growth, (ii)
higher data security costs and (iii) the adjustments from the processing system intrusion credit of $7.0 million and charge of $8.3 million during the nine months ended
February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, respectively.

Consolidated Other Income/Expense, Net

Other expense, net, increased to $13.5 million for the three months ended February 28, 2014 compared to $4.5 million in the prior year. Other expense, net, increased to
$20.8 million for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 compared to $18.5 million in the prior year. The increase during the three months ended February 28, 2014 was due
primarily to the loss on extinguishment of debt of $4.8 million that we recorded in connection with the refinancing of our term loan and revolving credit facilities. In addition,
during the three months ended February 28, 2014, we made a final dividend payment to HSBC in the amount 0f$3.3 million related to a redeemable noncontrolling interest that
HSBC Asia ("HSBC") held in Global Payments Asia-Pacific ("GPAP"). During the nine months ended February 28, 2013, we made a similar dividend payment to HSBC in the
amount of $8.4 million. Such dividends are reflected as interest expense in our consolidated statements of income in the accordance with the provisions of ASC 480. Please see
Note 4 - Business and Intangible Asset Acquisition and Joint Ventures-Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest Acquisition in the notes to the unaudited consolidated financial
statements for further discussion.

The impact of the expenses discussed above was partially offset during the nine months endedFebruary 28, 2014 by a $2.1 million gain that we recorded in connection

with the sale of 50% of our Brazil business. Please see Note 4 - Business and Intangible Asset Acquisition and Joint Ventures-Comercia Global Payments Brazil in the notes to
the unaudited consolidated financial statements for further discussion.
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Provision for Income Taxes

Our effective tax rates were 28.3% and 27.2% for the three months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, respectively. Our effective tax rates were 28.4% and
28.6% for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, respectively. The effective tax rates for nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013
reflect adjustments to our U.K. Deferred Tax Asset due to enacted corporate tax rate reductions in the United Kingdom of 3% and 2%, respectively. Our effective tax rates differ
from United States statutory rates due to domestic and international tax planning initiatives and income generated in lower tax jurisdictions due to international expansion.

Noncontrolling Interests, Net of Tax

Noncontrolling interests, net of tax increased to $5.0 million from $4.4 million for the three months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, respectively.
Noncontrolling interests, net of tax increased to $18.0 million from $17.0 million for the nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

A significant portion of our liquidity comes from operating cash flows. Cash flow from operations is used to make planned capital investments in our business, to pursue
acquisitions that meet our corporate objectives, to pay dividends, and to pay down debt and repurchase shares of our common stock at the discretion of our Board of Directors.
Accumulated cash balances are invested in high quality and marketable short-term instruments.

Our capital plan objectives are to support the Company’s operational needs and strategic plan for long-term growth while maintaining a low cost of capital. Lines of credit
are used in certain of our markets to fund settlement and as a source of working capital and, along with other bank financing, to fund acquisitions. We regularly evaluate our
liquidity and capital position relative to cash requirements, and we may elect to raise additional funds in the future, either through the issuance of debt, equity or otherwise.

At February 28, 2014, we had cash and cash equivalents totaling$1,013.6 million. Of this amount, we consider $660.4 million to be available cash. Available cash at
February 28, 2014 was higher than usual as it included the net proceeds 0f$341.0 million from our debt refinancing which we closed onFebruary 28, 2014 in anticipation of our
then pending acquisition of PayPros. On March 4, 2014, shortly after our third fiscal quarter end, we used available cash of $420.0 million to complete the acquisition of
PayPros. Please see Note 14 - Subsequent Event in the notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statements for further information about our acquisition of PayPros.

Our available cash balance includes $212.2 million of cash held by foreign subsidiaries whose earnings are considered permanently reinvested for United States tax
purposes. These cash balances reflect our capital investments in these subsidiaries and the accumulation of cash flows generated by each subsidiary's operations, net of cash
flows used to service debt locally and fund non-United States acquisitions. We believe that we are able to maintain a sufficient level of liquidity for our domestic operations and
commitments without repatriation of the earnings of these foreign subsidiaries. If we were to repatriate some or all of the cash held by such foreign subsidiaries, we do not
believe that the associated income tax liabilities would have a significant impact on our liquidity.

Available cash excludes settlement related and merchant reserve cash balances. Settlement related cash balances represent funds that we hold on behalf of our member
sponsors when the incoming amount from the card networks precedes the member sponsors' funding obligation to the merchant. Settlement related cash balances are not
restricted; however these funds are generally paid out in satisfaction of settlement processing obligations the following day. Merchant reserve cash balances represent funds
collected from our merchants that serve as collateral to minimize contingent liabilities associated with any losses that may occur under the merchant agreement (“Merchant
Reserves”). At February 28, 2014, our cash and cash equivalents included$177.7 million related to Merchant Reserves. While this cash is not restricted in its use, we believe
that designating this cash to collateralize Merchant Reserves strengthens our fiduciary standing with our member sponsors and is in accordance with the guidelines set by the
card networks.

Operating activities provided net cash of $314.4 million for the nine months ended February 28, 2014. Operating activities provided net cash 0of$204.8 million during the
nine months ended February 28, 2013. In the prior year, we paid a substantial amount
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of previously accrued expenses associated with a processing system intrusion. The decrease of such incident-related payments in thenine months ended February 28, 2014 is the
primary reason for the favorable change in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities of $62.0 million.

Net cash used in investing activities decreased from$506.3 million for the nine months ended February 28, 2013 to $58.3 million for the nine months ended February 28,
2014, primarily due to the reduction in business, intangible and other asset acquisitions, net of cash acquired due to use of $408.8 million for the acquisition of APT during the
nine months ended February 28, 2013.

For the nine months ended February 28, 2014, financing activities provided $91.0 million in cash compared to$196.1 million in cash in the prior year. During the nine
months ended February 28, 2014, we closed on a five-year senior unsecured $1,250.0 million term loan facility, paid off previously existing debt 0f$902.5 million and paid fees
and expenses of $6.0 million. In addition, we spent $258.6 million to repurchase shares of our common stock. In the prior year, we borrowed$700.0 million under a five-year
unsecured term loan facility of which we repaid $95.0 million during the nine months ended February 28, 2013. In addition, we spent $242.0 million to purchase HSBC's44%
interest in GPAP and $137.7 million to repurchase shares of our common stock during thenine months ended February 28, 2013.

We believe that our current level of cash and borrowing capacity under our lines of credit described below, together with future cash flows from operations, are sufficient

to meet the needs of our existing operations and planned requirements for the foreseeable future. During fiscal year 2014, we expect capital expenditures to approximate $90
million.
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Contractual Obligations

The operating lease commitments disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year endedMay 31, 2013 have not changed significantly. Our remaining current
contractual and other obligations are as follows:

Long-Term Debt and Credit Facilities

Outstanding debt consisted of the following:

February 28, 2014 May 31, 2013
Lines of credit: (in thousands)
Corporate Credit Facility - long-term $ — $ 309,955
Short-term lines of credit:
United Kingdom Credit Facility 72,752 74,146
Global Payments Canada Financial Corp Credit Facility 89,097 —
U.S. Wells Fargo Credit Facility — —
Hong Kong Credit Facility 31,078 38,134
Spain Credit Facility 29,756 28,041
Malaysia Credit Facility 9,397 14,025
Taiwan Credit Facility 8,752 8,359
Canada Credit Facility — 6,866
Singapore Credit Facility 6,206 6,459
Philippines Credit Facility 6,901 6,384
Sri Lanka Credit Facility 3,434 1,978
Macau Credit Facility 2,314 1,966
Maldives Credit Facility 2,155 741
Brunei Credit Facility 188 362
Malta Credit Facility 25 —
Total short-term lines of credit $ 262,055 $ 187,461
Total lines of credit 262,055 497,416
Notes payable 4,407 6,014
Term loan 1,250,000 647,500
Total debt $ 1,516,462 $ 1,150,930
Current portion $ 264,406 $ 259,796
Long-term debt 1,252,056 891,134
Total debt $ 1,516,462 $ 1,150,930

On February 28, 2014, we entered into an amended and restated term loan agreement ("Term Loan") and an amended and restated credit agreement ("Corporate Credit
Facility") with a syndicate of financial institutions. The Term Loan and the Corporate Credit Facility amended and restated the term loan agreement dated September 28, 2012
and the credit agreement dated December 7, 2010, respectively.

The Term Loan is a five-year senior unsecured $1,250.0 million Term Loan with a syndicate of financial institutions. We used proceeds from the Term Loan to partially

fund our acquisition of PayPros on March 4, 2014 and to repay the outstanding balances on our previously existing revolving credit facility and our previously existing term
loan.
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The Term Loan expires February 28, 2019 and bears interest, at our election, at eitherLIBOR or a base rate, in each case plus a leverage-based margin. The base rate is
the highest of (a) the Federal Funds Effective Rate (as defined in the Term Loan agreement) plus 0.50%, (b) the prime rate and (c) LIBOR plus 1.0%. As of February 28, 2014,
the interest rate on the Term Loan was 1.62%. Commencing in May 2015 and ending in November 2018, the Term Loan has scheduled quarterly principal payments ofl.25%,
increasing up to 2.50%. At maturity, 27.50% of the Term Loan will have been repaid through scheduled amortization and the remaining principal balance will be due. As of
February 28, 2014, the outstanding balance of the Term Loan was $1,250.0 million.

The Corporate Credit Facility is a five-year senior unsecured revolving $1,000.0 million Corporate Credit Facility with a syndicate of financial institutions. The Corporate
Credit Facility expires February 28, 2019 and bears interest, at our election, at eitherLIBOR or a base rate, in each case plus a leverage-based margin. The base rate is the
highest of (a) the Federal Funds Effective Rate (as defined in the Corporate Credit Facility agreement) plus 0.50%, (b) the prime rate and (c) LIBOR plus 1.0%. Borrowing
under the Corporate Credit Facility is available in various currencies. As of February 28, 2014, there was no outstanding balance on the Corporate Credit Facility. The Corporate
Credit Facility is available for general corporate purposes and to fund future acquisitions and common share repurchases.

Upon closing of the Term Loan and the Corporate Credit Facility, which occurred on February 28, 2014, we repaid the outstanding balance 0of$612.5 million on our
previously existing term loan and the outstanding balance of $290.0 million on our previously existing revolving credit facility together with accrued interest and fees on each.
The debt exchange associated with the new Term Loan was accounted for as a debt extinguishment in connection with which we recorded a loss of $4.8 million, primarily
representing the fees paid to the lenders under the new Term Loan and the write off of debt issuance costs associated with the previously existing term loan. We have reported
this loss on extinguishment in Interest and other expense in our consolidated statements of income for the three and nine months ended February 28, 2014. We incurred fees and
expenses associated with these new arrangements of approximately $6.0 million, of which $3.3 million was capitalized as debt issuance costs. Debt issuance costs are included
in Other assets in our consolidated balance sheet at February 28, 2014 and will be amortized over the remaining term of these new arrangements.

The agreements contain customary affirmative and restrictive covenants, including, among others, financial covenants based on our leverage and fixed charge coverage
ratios. Please see "Compliance with Covenants" below. Each of the agreements includes customary events of default, the occurrence of which, following any applicable cure
period, would permit lenders to, among other things, declare the principal, accrued interest and other obligations to be immediately due and payable.

Short-term Lines of Credit

Our short-term lines of credit are primarily used to fund settlement. For certain of our lines of credit, the line of credit balance is reduced by the amount of cash we have
on deposit in specific accounts with the lender when determining compliance with the credit limit. Accordingly, the line of credit balance may exceed the stated credit limit at
any given point in time, when in fact the combined position is less than the credit limit. The total available incremental borrowings at February 28, 2014 were $1,000.0 million
under our Corporate Credit Facility. As of February 28, 2014, we had $860.8 million of additional borrowing capacity under our short-term lines of credit to fund settlement.

During the nine months ended February 28, 2014, we entered into the following additional short-term lines of credit:

*  Global Payments Canada Financial Corporation - On September 30, 2013, we entered into a revolving overdraft facility for up t0$80.0 million CAD to fund
interchange and merchants prior to receipt of corresponding settlement funds from the card associations. This credit facility has a variable short-term interest rate.

¢ Malta - OnOctober 9, 2013, we entered into an amendment to our revolving overdraft facility for up to2.5 million EUR to fund interchange and merchants
prior to receipt of corresponding settlement funds from the card associations. This credit facility has a variable short-term interest rate plus a margin.

+ U.S. Wells Fargo Credit Facility - OnSeptember 26, 2013, we entered into a revolving overdraft facility for up t0$50.0 million to fund interchange and

merchants prior to receipt of corresponding settlement funds from the card associations. Interest expense is incurred based on a variable short-term interest rate plus a
margin.
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Notes Payable

United Card Services, our subsidiary in the Russian Federation, had notes payable with a total outstanding balance of approximately$4.4 million at February 28, 2014.
These notes had fixed annual interest rates of 8.5% with maturity dates ranging from March 2014 through November 2016.

Compliance with Covenants

There are certain financial and non-financial covenants contained in our various credit facilities and Term Loan. Our Term Loan and Corporate Credit Facility agreements
include financial covenants requiring (i) a leverage ratio no greater than 3.50 to 1.00 and (ii) a fixed charge coverage ratio no less than2.50 to 1.00. We complied with all
applicable covenants as of and for the three and nine months ended February 28, 2014 and February 28, 2013.

Critical Accounting Estimates

In applying the accounting policies that we use to prepare our consolidated financial statements, we necessarily make accounting estimates that affect our reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. Some of these accounting estimates require us to make assumptions about matters that are highly uncertain at the time we
make the accounting estimates. We base these assumptions and the resulting estimates on historical information and other factors that we believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances, and we evaluate these assumptions and estimates on an ongoing basis; however, in many instances we reasonably could have used different accounting
estimates, and in other instances, changes in our accounting estimates are reasonably likely to occur from period to period, which could result in a material change in the
financial statement presentation of our financial condition or results of operations. We refer to accounting estimates of this type as “critical accounting estimates.”

Accounting estimates necessarily require subjective determinations about future events and conditions. During the nine months ended February 28, 2014, we have not
adopted any new critical accounting policies, have not changed any critical accounting policies and have not changed the application of any critical accounting policies from the
year ended May 31, 2013, except as discussed in the following paragraphs. You should read the Critical Accounting Estimates in Item 7 — Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, Item 1A — Risk Factors included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2013 and our
summary of significant accounting policies in Note 1 of the notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

As of January 1, 2014, we elected to apply the qualitative goodwill impairment assessment guidance in ASC 350-20,Goodwill, for each of our reporting units Factors we
consider in the qualitative assessment include general economic conditions, conditions of the industry and markets in which we operate, competition, regulatory developments,
cost factors and our overall financial performance. If we elect to bypass the qualitative assessment or if we determine, on the basis of qualitative factors, that the fair value of the
reporting unit is more likely than not less than the carrying value, a two-step quantitative test is required. In the first step, the reporting unit's carrying amount, including
goodwill, is compared to its fair value. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit is greater than its fair value, goodwill is considered impaired and step two must be
performed. Step two measures the impairment loss by comparing the implied fair value of reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. The implied fair
value of goodwill is determined by allocating the fair value of the reporting unit to all the assets and liabilities of that unit (including unrecognized intangibles) as if the reporting
unit had been acquired in a business combination. The excess of the fair value over the amounts allocated to the assets and liabilities of the reporting unit is the implied fair value
of the goodwill. The excess of the carrying amount over the implied value of the goodwill is the impairment loss.

We have six reporting units: North America Merchant Services, U.K. Merchant Services, Asia-Pacific Merchant Services, Central and Eastern Europe Merchant
Services, Russia Merchant Services and Spain Merchant Services. Based on our annual assessment as of January 1, 2014, we determined on the basis of qualitative factors, that
the fair value of the reporting units were not more likely than not less than their respective carrying values and therefore a two-step quantitative test was not required. We
believe that the fair values of our reporting units are substantially in excess of their carrying values.

Our goodwill impairment testing involves the use of estimates and the exercise of judgment on the part of management. Our assessment of the qualitative factors
discussed above, preparation of forecasts and the selection of the discount rates involve significant judgments about expected future business performance and general market

conditions. Significant changes in our forecasts and the
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discount rates selected or the weighting of the income and market approach could affect the estimated fair value of one or more of our reporting units and could result in a
goodwill impairment charge in a future period.

Special Cautionary Notice Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

We believe that it is important to communicate our plans and expectations about the future to our shareholders and to the public. Investors are cautioned that some of the
statements we use in this report, and in some of the documents we incorporate by reference in this report, contain forward-looking statements and are made pursuant to the
“safe-harbor” provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-looking statements involve a number of risks and uncertainties, are predictive
in nature, and depend upon or refer to future events or conditions. You can sometimes identify forward-looking statements by our use of the words “believes,” “anticipates,”

“expects,” “intends,” “plans” and similar expressions. Actual events or results might differ materially from those expressed or forecasted in these forward-looking statements.

Although we believe that the plans and expectations reflected in or suggested by our forward-looking statements are reasonable, those statements are based on a number
of assumptions, estimates, projections or plans that are inherently subject to significant risks, uncertainties, and contingencies that are subject to change. Accordingly, we cannot
guarantee you that our plans and expectations will be achieved. Our actual revenues, revenue growth and margins, other results of operations and shareholder values could differ
materially from those anticipated in our forward-looking statements as a result of many known and unknown factors. Important factors that may cause actual events or results to
differ materially from those anticipated by our forward-looking statements include our potential failure to safeguard our data; our ability to maintain Visa and MasterCard
registration and financial institution sponsorship; our reliance on financial institutions to provide clearing services in connection with our settlement activities; our potential
failure to comply with card network requirements; increased merchant, referral partner or ISO attrition; our ability to increase our share of existing markets and expand into new
markets; political, economic and regulatory changes in the foreign countries in which we operate; system interruptions in service; increases in credit card network fees; future
performance, integration and conversion of acquired operations; and other risk factors presented in Item 1A — Risk Factors of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended May 31, 2013 and this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, which we advise you to review.

Our forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made and should not be relied upon as representing our plans and expectations as of any subsequent
date. We specifically disclaim any obligation to release publicly the results of any revisions to our forward-looking statements. You are advised, however, to consult any further
disclosures we make in our reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") and in our press releases.

Where to Find More Information

We file annual and quarterly reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. You may read and print materials that we have filed with the SEC from its
website at www.sec.gov. In addition, certain of our SEC filings, including our annual report on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our current reports on Form 8-
K and amendments thereto can be viewed and printed from the investor information section of our website at www.globalpaymentsinc.com free of charge. Certain materials
relating to our corporate governance, including our senior financial officers’ code of ethics, are also available in the investor information section of our website. Copies of our
filings and specified exhibits and these corporate governance materials are also available, free of charge, by writing or calling us using the address or phone number on the cover
of this Form 10-Q. You may also telephone our investor relations office directly at (770) 829-8234. We are not including the information on our website as a part of, or
incorporating it by reference into, this report.
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Our SEC filings may also be viewed and copied at the following SEC public reference room, and at the offices of the New York Stock Exchange, where our common
stock is quoted under the symbol “GPN.”

SEC Public Reference Room

100 F Street, N.E.

Washington, DC 20549

(You may call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room.)

NYSE Euronext
20 Broad Street
New York, NY 10005

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk related to changes in interest rates on our debt and cash investments. Our long-term debt has the option of variable interest rates based on
LIBOR, the Federal Funds Effective Rate (as defined in the debt agreements) or the prime rate plus a margin based on our leverage position. We invest our excess cash in
securities that we believe are highly liquid and marketable in the short term. These investments are not held for trading or other speculative purposes. Interest rates on our lines
of credit are based on market rates and fluctuate accordingly. Under our current policies, we do not use interest rate derivative instruments to manage exposure to interest rate
changes and believe the market risk arising from investment instruments and debt to be minimal.

A substantial amount of our operations are conducted in foreign currencies. Consequently, a portion of our revenues and expenses may be affected by fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates. We are also affected by fluctuations in exchange rates on assets and liabilities related to our foreign operations. We have not hedged our
translation risk on foreign currency exposure.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

As of February 28, 2014, management carried out, under the supervision and with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, an
evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934). Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of February 28, 2014, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in applicable rules and forms and are designed to ensure that information required
to be disclosed in those reports is accumulated and communicated to management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter endedFebruary 28, 2014, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to

materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Part II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

None.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

There have been no material changes from the risk factors disclosed in Part 1, Item 1A, of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2013 other
than as set forth below:

We conduct a portion of our business in various European and Asia-Pacific countries, including the Russian Federation, where the risk of continued political, economic
and regulatory change that could impact our operating results is greater than in the United States.

We generate a significant portion of our revenues outside the United States. We expect to continue to expand our operations into various countries in Europe and the
Asia-Pacific region. Some of these countries, and other foreign countries in which we operate, such as the Russian Federation, have undergone significant political, economic
and social change in recent years, and the risk of new, unforeseen changes in these countries remains greater than in the United States. Our business, growth, financial condition
or results of operations could be materially adversely affected by instability or changes in a country’s or region’s economic conditions; changes in laws or regulations or in the
interpretation of existing laws or regulations, whether caused by a change in government or otherwise; increased difficulty of conducting business in a country or region due to
actual or potential political or military conflict; or action by the European Union or the U.S., Canada or other governments that may restrict our ability to transact business in a
foreign country or with certain foreign individuals or entities, such as sanctions by or against the Russian Federation.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

(c) Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

The shares repurchased in the third quarter of fiscal 2014, the approximate average price paid, including commissions, and the approximate dollar value remaining
available for purchase are as follows:

Maximum
Number (or
Approximate
Total Number of Dollar Value) of
Shares Purchased as Part Shares that May Yet Be
of Purchased Under
Total Number of Approximate Average Publicly Announced the Plans or
Plan category Shares Purchased Price Paid per Share Plans or Programs Programs
December 1, 2013 - December 31, 2013 — $ — —
January 1, 2014 - January 31, 2014 181,375 60.96 181,375
February 1, 2014 - February 28, 2014 154,886 67.65 154,886
Total 336,261 $ 64.04 336,261 $ 114,041,764

On October 7, 2013, we entered into an accelerated share repurchase program ("ASR") with Goldman, Sachs & Co. to repurchase an aggregate 0$100.0 million of our
common stock. In exchange for an upfront payment of $100.0 million, Goldman, Sachs & Co. committed to deliver a number of shares during the ASR's purchase period, which
ended on January 9, 2014. The total number of shares delivered under this ASR was 1.6 million shares at an average price 0f$60.96 per share. In addition to shares repurchased
under the ASR program, we repurchased and retired 0.2 million shares of our common stock at a cost of$10.5 million, or an average of$67.65 per share, including
commissions, during the three months ended February 28, 2014. As of February 28, 2014, we had $114.0 million of remaining authorized share repurchases.
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List of Exhibits
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10.1

31.1%

31.2%

32.1%

101*

* Filed herewith.

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 23, 2014, by and among the Company, Payment Processing, Inc. and, solely for the limited
purposes set forth therein, certain additional parties thereto.

Amended and Restated Term Loan Agreement, dated as of February 28, 2014, by and among the Company and Global Payments Direct, Inc., as
borrowers, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, and certain additional lenders party thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 5, 2014.

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of February 28, 2014, by and among the Company and certain wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company, as borrowers, Bank of America, N.A., as administrative agent, swing line lender and letter of credit issuer, and certain other lenders
party thereto, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 5, 2014.

Transition and Separation Agreement, dated December 12, 2013, by and between the Company and Suellyn P. Tornay, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 16, 2013.

Certification of the Principal Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of the Principal Executive Officer and the Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

The following financial information from the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the third quarter ended February 28, 2014, formatted in XBRL
(eXtensible Business Reporting Language) and filed electronically herewith: (i) the Consolidated Statements of Income; (ii) the Consolidated

Statements of Comprehensive Income; (iii) the Consolidated Balance Sheets; (iv) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows; (v) the Consolidated
Statements of Changes in Equity; and (vi) the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly
authorized.

Global Payments Inc.
(Registrant)

Date: April 3, 2014 /s/ David E. Mangum
David E. Mangum
Chief Financial Officer

Date: April 3, 2014 /s/ Daniel C. O’Keefe
Daniel C. O’Keefe
Chief Accounting Officer
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Exhibit 2.1

AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

by and among
PAYMENT PROCESSING, INC.,
PUMA ACQUISITION CORP.,

GLOBAL PAYMENTS INC.,

PPI REPRESENTATIVE, LLC, solely in
its capacity as the Representative,

TRANQUILO MANAGEMENT, LLC, solely in its capacity as Trustee of Buenas Olas
Trust and CHARLES R. SMITH and MARYANNE ELIZABETH SMITH, or their successors,
as Trustees of the 2003 Charles and Maryanne Smith Family Trust dated
September 25, 2003, solely for purposes of Section 4.06(a), Section 8.02(d) and Section
10.01,

JOSEPH MONTEIL, PHILIP WIMBERLY, CHARLES RIEGEL and JOHN MYERS,
solely for purposes of Section 4.06(b), Section 8.02(d), Section 10.01, and Section 10.03, and

CHARLES R. SMITH, individually, solely for purposes of Section 10.03

January 23, 2014
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AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER

THIS AGREEMENT AND PLAN OF MERGER (“Agreement”), dated as of January 23, 2014 (“Agreement Date”), is made by and
among Payment Processing, Inc., a California corporation (the “Company”), Global Payments Inc., a Georgia corporation (the “Purchaser”),
Puma Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of the Purchaser (the “Merger Sub”), PPI Representative, LLC,
solely in its capacity as the representative for the Common Security Holders (the “Representative™), Tranquilo Management, LLC, solely in its
capacity as Trustee of Buenas Olas Trust, and Charles R. Smith and Maryanne Elizabeth Smith, or their successors, as Trustees of the 2003
Charles and Maryanne Smith Family Trust dated September 25, 2003 (collectively, the “Management Shareholders™), Joseph Monteil, Philip
Wimberly, Charles Riegel and John Myers (collectively, the “Management Optionholders”), and Charles R. Smith, individually. The
Management Shareholders are a party to this Agreement solely for purposes of Section 4.06(a), Section 8.02(d) and Section 10.01, and the
Management Optionholders are a party to this Agreement solely for purposes of Section 4.06(b), Section 8.02(d), Section 10.01, and Section
10.03, and Charles R. Smith, individually, is a party to this Agreement solely for purposes of Section 10.03. Capitalized terms used and not
otherwise defined herein have the meanings set forth in Article XI below.

WHEREAS, the Purchaser desires to acquire 100% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of the Company in a reverse subsidiary
merger on the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein;

WHEREAS, this Agreement and the related transactions contemplated hereby, including the Merger, have been approved b y the
holders of a majority of the capital stock of the Company, voting together as a single class; and

WHEREAS, the respective boards of directors of the Purchaser, the Merger Sub, and the Company have approved this Agreement, the
Merger (as defined below), and the related transactions contemplated hereby, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
THE MERGER

1.01 The Merger.

(a) Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, at the Effective Time, the Merger Sub shall merge (the “Merger”) with and into
the Company in accordance with the California Code and the DGCL, whereupon the separate existence of the Merger Sub shall cease, and the
Company shall be the surviving corporation (the “Surviving Corporation”).

(b) At the Closing, the Company and the Merger Sub shall cause (i) a Merger
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Agreement substantially in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto and separate certificates from the authorized officers of the Company and
Merger Sub substantially in the forms of Exhibits B-1 and B-2, respectively, attached hereto (collectively, the “Agreement of Merger”) to be
executed, acknowledged and filed with the Secretary of State of the State of California and (ii) a Certificate of Merger, in substantially the form
of Exhibit B-3 attached hereto (the “DE Certificate of Merger”) to be filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, and make all
other filings or recordings required by the California Code and the DGCL in connection with the Merger. The Merger shall become effective at
such time as each of the Agreement of Merger and the DE Certificate of Merger is duly filed with the Secretary of State of the States of
California and Delaware, as applicable, or at such other time as the Purchaser and the Company shall agree and specify in the Agreement of
Merger and the DE Certificate of Merger (the “Effective Time”).

(c) From and after the Effective Time, the Surviving Corporation shall succeed to all the assets, rights, privileges, powers and
franchises, and be subject to all of the liabilities, restrictions, disabilities and duties of the Company and the Merger Sub, all as provided under
the California Code and the DGCL.

1.02 Merger Consideration and Related Payments; Effect on Company Securities; Effect on Capital Stock of Merger Sub.

(a) Amount of Initial Merger Consideration Calculation Amount. The “Initial Merger Consideration Calculation Amount”
means an amount equal to the following:

(i) $420,000,000; minus

(i) the Estimated Transaction Costs; minus

(iii) the Estimated Indebtedness; minus

(iv) the Holdback Amount; minus

(v) the Indemnity Escrow Amount; minus

(vi) the Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Amount; plus
(vii) the Estimated Cash amount; plus

(viii) the Estimated Residual Amount; plus

(ix) the Option Exercise Amount; plus

(x) the Option Loan Amount; plus

(xi) the Management Loan Amount; plus

(xii) the amount, if any, by which the Estimated Working Capital exceeds the Target Working Capital; minus
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(xiii) the amount, if any, by which the Estimated Working Capital is less than the Target Working Capital.

As more specifically provided in Section 2.02, the cash portion of the Initial Merger Consideration Calculation Amount to be
paid by or at the direction of Purchaser or Merger Sub to the Common Security Holders on the Closing Date shall equal the Initial
Merger Consideration Calculation Amount minus the Option Exercise Amount minus the Option Loan Amount minus the Management
Loan Amount. On the Closing Date, the Option Loan Amount shall be deemed to be repaid by the Stockholders (and the security
interests related thereto shall be deemed to be released, discharged and terminated) and the proceeds thereof paid to the Common
Security Holders in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Interest shall cease to accrue and be payable to the Company on any
promissory notes related to the Loan Amounts as of the date immediately prior to the Closing Date. On the Closing Date, the
Management Loan Amount shall be deemed to be repaid by Charles R. Smith and Maryanne Elizabeth Smith, or their successors, as
Trustees of the 2003 Charles and Maryanne Smith Family Trust dated September 25, 2003 (and the security interests related thereto
shall be deemed to be released, discharged and terminated) and the proceeds thereof paid to the Common Security Holders in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Interest shall cease to accrue and be payable to the Company on the Smith Promissory
Note as of the date immediately prior to the Closing Date.

(b) Effect on Company Securities. At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of the
holders thereof:

(i) Common Stock. Subject to the adjustments set forth in Section

1.11, each share of Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be converted into the right to
receive in cash, payable to the holder thereof in accordance with this Section 1.02(b)(i), the consideration set forth in Section 2.02(b)
and any Subsequent Merger Consideration Payments in accordance with Section 2.03, as and when it becomes payable pursuant to this
Agreement; provided, however, that Purchaser, Merger Sub or the Surviving Corporation, or any of their designees, as applicable, shall
not have any obligation to deliver to such holder of any such Common Stock any cash or other consideration for such holder’s
outstanding shares of such Common Stock until such holder has delivered to Purchaser (or its designee) a duly executed and completed
Letter of Transmittal, substantially in the form of Exhibit C-1 attached hereto (a “Letter of Transmittal) to accompany the certificates
for such shares of Common Stock; provided further, however, that upon receipt by Purchaser (or its designee) of duly executed Letter of
Transmittal from any holder of such Common Stock, Purchaser (or its designee) shall make any payments owed to such holder of such
Common Stock in accordance with this ARTICLE I and ARTICLE II; and provided further however, that if a holder of such Common
Stock has not delivered to Purchaser (or its designee) such Letter of Transmittal at Closing, Purchaser (or its designee) may hold such
amount and shall not have any obligation to pay such amount to such holder of such Common Stock until such Letter of Transmittal is
delivered. Each certificate that is surrendered pursuant to this Section 1.02(b)(i) shall forthwith be canceled. Until so surrendered, each
such certificate shall, after the Effective Time, represent for all purposes, only the right to receive the consideration outlined in Section
2.02(b) and any Subsequent Merger Consideration Payments in accordance with Section 2.03, as and when it becomes payable pursuant
to this Agreement.




No interest (other than any interest on the Escrow Fund) will be paid or will accrue on such portion of the initial Merger consideration
payable pursuant to Section 2.02(b) or any Subsequent Merger Consideration Payments. The Purchaser shall act as paying agent in
effecting the exchange of cash for certificates which, immediately prior to the Effective Time, represent shares of Common Stock (other
than any Dissenting Shares) entitled to payment pursuant to Section 1.02.

(ii) Options. All outstanding Options, whether or not then vested or exercisable in accordance with their terms, shall be
terminated or canceled as of the Effective Time, at which time each Optionholder shall cease to have any rights with respect thereto, except
the right to receive from the Surviving Corporation the consideration set forth in Section 2.02(c) and any Subsequent Merger Consideration
Payments in accordance with Section 2.03, as and when it becomes payable pursuant to this Agreement, if any, provided, however, that
Purchaser, Merger Sub or the Surviving Corporation, or any of their designees, as applicable, shall not have any obligation to deliver to such
holder of such Options any payment or other consideration for such cancelled Options until such holder has delivered to Purchaser (or its
designee) a duly executed and completed Option Letter of Transmittal substantially in the form of Exhibit C-2 attached hereto (“Option
Letter of Transmittal) with respect to such Options;provided further, however, that upon receipt by Purchaser (or its designee) of any
Option Letter of Transmittal from any holder of such Options, Purchaser (or its designee) shall make any payments due to such holder of
Options in accordance with this ARTICLE I; provided further, however that if such a holder of Options has not delivered to Purchaser (or its
designee) such Option Letter of Transmittal at Closing, Purchaser may hold such amount and shall have no obligation to pay such amount to
the holder of Options until such Option Letter of Transmittal is delivered. No interest (other than any interest on the Escrow Fund) will be
paid or will accrue on such portion of the initial Merger consideration payable pursuant to Section 2.02(c) or any Subsequent Merger
Consideration Payments payable to any such holder of such Options. From and after the Effective Time, each Option shall no longer
represent the right to acquire Common Stock and shall represent for all purposes only the right to receive the consideration outlined in
Section 2.02(c) and any Subsequent Merger Consideration Payments in accordance with Section 2.03, as and when it becomes payable
pursuant to this Agreement. The Purchaser shall act as paying agent for the Surviving Corporation in effecting the exchange of cash for
Option Letters of Transmittal and cancelling the outstanding Options as provided in this Section 1.02. The Purchaser shall further cause the
Surviving Corporation to make timely payment to the appropriate taxing authority or authorities of any amounts withheld from payment to
the Optionholders under this Section 1.02.

(iii) Cancellation of Treasury Stock. Each share of Common Stock held immediately prior to the Effective Time by the
Company as treasury stock, if any, shall be canceled and no payment shall be made with respect thereto.
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(c) Effect on Capital Stock of Merger Sub. At the Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of
the holders thereof, each share of the Merger Sub’s common stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be
converted into and become one validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable share of common stock of the Surviving Corporation.

(d) No Further Rights. Each share of Common Stock and each Option, when canceled pursuant to this Section 1.02, as
applicable, shall no longer be outstanding and shall automatically be canceled and retired, to the extent applicable, and each holder of a
certificate or certificates representing any such shares of Common Stock or any evidence of any Option shall cease to have any rights with
respect thereto, except the right to receive the respective consideration provided for in this Agreement. At the Effective Time, the stock
transfer books of the Company shall be closed, and no transfer of shares of any Common Stock or Options shall be made thereafter. If, after the
Effective Time, certificates representing any shares of Common Stock or any evidence of any Options are presented to the Surviving
Corporation, they shall be canceled and retired by Purchaser (or its designee) as provided for in this Agreement.

(e) Dissenters’ Rights. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, shares of Common Stock that are
outstanding immediately prior to the Effective Time and that are held by any Person who is entitled to exercise, and who properly exercises
and perfects, his or her dissenters’ rights and demands payment for the fair value of such shares (“Dissenting Shares™) pursuant to, and who
complies in all respects with Chapter 13 of the California Code (“Chapter 13”) shall not be converted into the right to receive any portion of the
Initial Merger Consideration Calculation Amount (or any portion of the Subsequent Merger Consideration Payments), if any, as provided in
this ARTICLE I, but rather the holders of Dissenting Shares shall be entitled to payment of the fair market value of such Dissenting Shares in
accordance with Chapter 13; provided, however, that if any such holder shall fail to perfect or otherwise shall waive, withdraw or lose the right
to payment under Chapter 13, then the right of such holder to be paid the fair value of such holder’s Dissenting Shares shall cease and such
Dissenting Shares shall be deemed to have been converted as of the Effective Time into, and to have become exchangeable solely for the right
to receive, the portion of the Initial Merger Consideration Calculation Amount (plus a portion of the Subsequent Merger Consideration
Payments) as provided in this ARTICLE I. Prior to the Closing, Purchaser and the Company shall comply, and after the Closing, Purchaser
shall comply, with the information delivery and other requirements pursuant to Chapter 13 and applicable California law. Prior to the Closing,
the Company shall give Purchaser notice of any written demands of intent to assert dissenters’ rights under the California Code of any shares of
Common Stock, withdrawals of such demands, and any other instruments served pursuant to the California Code and received by the
Company. Each dissenting shareholder who, pursuant to Chapter 13, becomes entitled to payment of the fair value of the Dissenting Shares
will receive payment therefor (but only after the value therefore has been agreed upon or finally determined pursuant to such provisions).

() Certain Duties and Responsibilities in connection with the Merger. Subject to the provisions of ARTICLE VIII, Purchaser
(or its designee) shall be responsible for and bear all costs and expenses associated with representing the Company and the Surviving
Corporation following the Closing with respect to complying with all applicable Laws, including escheat and withholding laws. Any initial
Merger consideration amount payable pursuant to Section 2.02 remaining unclaimed as of a date which is six (6) months following the Closing
Date



or any Subsequent Merger Consideration Payments remaining unclaimed as of the date which is six (6) months after the date such payment is
determined in accordance with this Agreement (“Unclaimed Amounts”) shall, to the extent permitted by applicable Law, become the property
of the Surviving Corporation; provided, that the Surviving Corporation shall thereafter remain solely liable for the payment of any Unclaimed
Amounts without interest to any holder of Common Stock or Options after surrender of such Common Stock or evidence of such Options and
delivery of the Letter of Transmittal or Option Letter of Transmittal (as applicable).

1.03 Lost Certificates. If any certificate representing shares of Common Stock shall have been lost, stolen or destroyed, then, upon the
making of an affidavit of such fact by the Person claiming such certificate to be lost, stolen or destroyed, the Purchaser shall issue, upon receipt
of such affidavit and in exchange for such lost, stolen or destroyed certificate, the amounts set forth in this Agreement to be paid in respect of
the shares of Common Stock represented by such certificate, as contemplated by Section 1.02.

1.04 Withholding Rights. Each of Purchaser, Merger Sub and the Surviving Corporation shall be entitled to deduct and withhold from,
or in respect of, payments made in connection with any of the transactions contemplated hereby such amounts as it is required to deduct and
withhold with respect to the making of such payment under the Code or any provision of applicable Law relating to Taxes. To the extent that
amounts are so withheld or paid over to or deposited with the relevant Governmental Entity by Purchaser, Merger Sub or the Surviving
Corporation, such amounts shall be treated for all purposes of this Agreement as having been paid to the applicable Common Security Holder
in respect of which such deduction and withholding was made.

1.05 Escrow Deposits.

(a) At the Closing, Purchaser or Merger Sub shall deposit, or shall cause to be deposited:

(i) with the Escrow Agent, by wire transfer of immediately available funds, into separate accounts, amounts equal to the
Indemnity Escrow Amount and the Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Amount (collectively, the “ Escrow Fund”) each to be governed
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and an escrow agreement in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit D (the
“Escrow Agreement”), among Purchaser, the Escrow Agent and the Representative; and

(i1) with the Representative, by wire transfer of immediately available funds, an aggregate amount equal to $500,000, or
such higher amount as the Representative may designate in writing to the Purchaser prior to Closing (the “Holdback Amount™).

(b) The Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Amount shall be used solely to satisfy any amounts owed to Purchaser from the
Common Security Holders pursuant to Section 1.11(i). Any portion of the Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Amount that is not then subject
to any claims under Section 1.11(i) shall be released to the Common Security Holders, in accordance with the Escrow Agreement. Purchaser
and the Representative agree to cooperate to provide prompt notice to the Escrow Agent to satisfy the funding timing requirements of this
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Section 1.05(b).

(¢) The Indemnity Escrow Amount shall be used solely to satisfy (i) any amounts owed to Purchaser from the Common Security
Holders pursuant to Section 1.11(i) and (ii) any indemnification amounts owed to the Purchaser Indemnified Parties from the Common
Security Holders pursuant to Section 8.02. The Indemnity Escrow Amount shall be paid out or released in accordance with the Escrow
Agreement.

(d) Any fees owed to the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Escrow Agreement shall be paid by the Purchaser. Any indemnification
obligations owed to the Escrow Agent pursuant to the Escrow Agreement shall be borne in accordance with the Escrow Agreement.

(e) The Escrow Fund shall be held as a trust fund and shall not be subject to any encumbrance, attachment, trustee process or
any other judicial process of any creditor of any party, and shall be held and disbursed solely for the purposes and in accordance with the terms
of this Agreement and the Escrow Agreement.

(f) All parties hereto agree for all Tax purposes that (i) the right of the Common Security Holders to the Escrow Fund shall be
treated as deferred contingent purchase price eligible for installment sale treatment under Code Section 453 and any corresponding provision of
foreign, state or local Law, as appropriate, (ii) any interest and earnings earned from the investment and reinvestment of the Escrow Fund, or
any portion thereof, shall be allocable to the Purchaser pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.468B-8, (iii) if and to the extent any amount
of the Escrow Fund is actually distributed to the Common Security Holders, interest may be imputed on such amount, as required by Code
Section 483 or 1274 and (iv) to the extent income and earnings on the Escrow Fund exceed imputed interest under the relevant provisions of
the Code, such excess shall be treated as additional stated interest for U.S. federal income Tax purposes. The intention of clause (iv) of the
preceding sentence is to ensure that the rights of the Common Security Holders to any amounts in the Escrow Fund are not treated as part of a
contingent payment sale lacking a stated maximum selling price. No party shall take any action or filing position that is inconsistent with the
foregoing.

1.06 Holdback. The Holdback Amount shall be held for the benefit of the Representative, on behalf of the Common Security Holders,
to satisfy potential future obligations of the Common Security Holders to the Representative, including expenses of the Representative arising
from the defense or enforcement of claims pursuant to Sections 1.11, 8.02 and 10.01. The Holdback Amount shall be retained in whole or in
part by the Representative for such time as the Representative shall determine in his sole discretion in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, any remaining portion of the Holdback Amount available for distribution to the Common
Security Holders, if any, shall be paid by the Representative to the Common Security Holders no later than five (5) years after the Effective
Time. Any amounts distributed from the Holdback Amount to the Common Security Holders shall be distributed to them by the Representative
in accordance with Section 10.01(f). Neither the Purchaser nor the Surviving Corporation shall have any obligation or responsibility with
respect to the distribution of funds from the Holdback Amount, or interest in or claim to the Holdback Amount.



1.07 Articles of Incorporation. At the Effective Time, the Articles of Incorporation of the Surviving Corporation shall be amended and
restated as set forth in Exhibit E attached hereto until amended in accordance with the California Code. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Articles of Incorporation of Surviving Corporation shall include the provisions relating to the limitation of liability and exculpation of directors
and the indemnification of directors, officers, employees and agents of the Company and other entities as described in Section 7.03 of this
Agreement and any amendment of such provisions shall be subject to the terms of Section 7.03 of this Agreement.

1.08 Bylaws. The Bylaws of the Merger Sub, as in effect immediately prior to the Effective Time, shall be the Bylaws of the Surviving
Corporation until amended in accordance with the provisions thereof and the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation of the Surviving
Corporation and in accordance with the California Code. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Bylaws of Surviving Corporation shall include the
provisions relating to the limitation of liability and exculpation of directors and the indemnification of directors, officers, employees and agents
of the Company and other entities as described in Section 7.03 of this Agreement and any amendment of such provisions shall be subject to the
terms of Section 7.03 of this Agreement.

1.09 Directors and Officers. From and after the Effective Time, until successors are duly elected or appointed in accordance with the
California Code, the directors of the Merger Sub at the Effective Time shall be the directors of the Surviving Corporation, and the officers of
the Merger Sub at the Effective Time shall be the officers of the Surviving Corporation.

1.10 Estimated Closing Statement; Allocation Schedule; Accounting Policies.

(a) At least five (5) business days prior to the Closing Date, the Company shall deliver to the Purchaser a statement (the
‘Estimated Closing Statement”) setting forth the Company’s good faith estimate of:

3

(i) the consolidated balance sheet of Company as of the Closing Date
(the “Estimated Closing Balance Sheet”);

(i1) a calculation from the Estimated Closing Balance Sheet of the estimated Working Capital (the “Estimated Working
Capital”);

(iii) Indebtedness as of the close of business on the Closing Date, including any prepayment penalties or fees that would
be incurred at the Closing (the “Estimated Indebtedness”);

(iv) all Cash on the Estimated Closing Balance Sheet as of the close of business on the Closing Date (the “Estimated
Cash”);

(v) all Transaction Costs as of the close of business on the Closing Date (the “Estimated Transaction Costs”); and
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(vi) all Residual Amounts as of the close of business on the Closing Date (the “Estimated Residual Amount™).

(b) At least five (5) business days prior to the Closing Date, the Company shall deliver to the Purchaser an allocation schedule in
the form attached hereto as Schedule 1.10(b) (with the form attached as ofthe date hereof provided solely as an example for illustration
purposes) (the “Allocation Schedule”) which shall set forth an updated detailed breakdown of all amounts payable at Closing under this
ARTICLE I and ARTICLE II (subject to and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement), including:

(i) the Estimated Indebtedness, the Estimated Working Capital, Estimated Cash, the Estimated Transaction Costs and the
Estimated Residual Amount;

(ii) the Escrow Amount, the Holdback Amount and the Initial Merger Consideration Calculation Amount;

(iii) each Common Security Holder’s name and address, and for each Common Security Holder desiring to receive
payments by wire transfer, wire instructions for receipt of such payments (and any Common Security Holders for whom wire
instructions are not provided shall receive payment by check);

(iv) the Option Exercise Amount, the Option Loan Amount and the Management Loan Amount;

(v) the specific amounts payable to, or for the benefit of, as applicable, each Person under Section 2.02 (including the
portion of the Initial Merger Consideration Calculation Amount payable to each Common Security Holder); and

(vi) a breakdown of the number of shares of Common Stock and the number of Options, each on a fully-adjusted and
fully-diluted basis after accounting for any applicable stock splits, anti-dilution provisions and any other similar provisions or events,
along with the name of each holder thereof and each holder’s pro rata percentage for calculating any pro rata amounts payable hereunder
with respect to such holders of Common Stock and the number of Options and each Common Security Holder’s Pro Rata Share.

(c) The Estimated Closing Statement, the Proposed Closing Statement and the Final Closing Statement shall be prepared in
accordance with GAAP consistent with the same accounting principles, policies, methodologies or procedures used in preparing the Latest
Balance Sheet (the “Accounting Policies”) to the extent consistent with GAAP, except that, in calculating the component line items of
Working Capital other than income Tax liabilities, no effect shall be given to (i) the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the
financing thereof, and (ii) any purchase accounting or other similar adjustments resulting from the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, current liabilities in Working Capital shall include the employer’s share of
Medicare Taxes (but not any Social Security Taxes) attributable to the exercise of Options on or prior to the Closing Date or payments in
respect of Options to Optionholders on or around the Closing Date. For purposes of clarity, net income Tax liabilities in Working Capital shall
be equal to zero.



1.11 Post-Closing Working Capital Adjustment.

(a) As soon as practicable (and in any event within 90 days following the Closing Date), the Purchaser shall prepare and deliver
to the Representative and its counsel a statement (the “Proposed Closing Statement”) setting forth a good faith determination of consolidated
balance sheet of Company as of the Closing Date prepared by the Purchaser in accordance with Section 1.10(c) (the “Closing Balance Sheet”),
a calculation of the Working Capital, Indebtedness, Cash, Transaction Costs and Residual Amount in the same manner as described in Section
1.10(a) and based on such Closing Balance Sheet, and all work papers and back-up materials relating thereto.

(b) On or prior to the 30th day following the Purchaser’s delivery of the Proposed Closing Statement, the Representative may
give the Purchaser a written notice stating in reasonable detail the Representative’s objections (an “Objection Notice”) to the Proposed Closing
Statement. Any Objection Notice shall specify in reasonable detail the dollar amount of any objection and the basis therefor. Any
determination set forth on the Proposed Closing Statement which is not specifically objected to in the Objection Notice shall be deemed
accepted and shall be final and binding upon the Representative, the Common Security Holders, the Surviving Corporation and the Purchaser
upon delivery of the Objection Notice and shall not be subject to the Dispute Resolution Procedure set forth below. If the Representative does
not give the Purchaser an Objection Notice within such 30-day period, then the Proposed Closing Statement shall be conclusive and binding
upon the Representative, the Common Security Holders, the Surviving Corporation and the Purchaser, and the Adjustment Amount set forth in
the Proposed Closing Statement will constitute the “Adjustment Amount” for purposes of this Section 1.11. Purchaser shall, and shall cause
the Surviving Corporation and its and their respective employees and agents to, assist the Representative and its agents in their review of the
Proposed Closing Statement and shall provide the Representative and its agents with access at all reasonable times to the books and records of
the Surviving Corporation and its personnel, properties and accountants as may be reasonably necessary for the Representative to review the
Proposed Closing Statement and for the other purposes set forth in this Section 1.11. Each party shall bear its own costs in connection with the
purposes set forth in this Section 1.11. For the avoidance of doubt, neither the Purchaser nor the Representative shall seek to charge the other
for any costs incurred by such party in connection with this Section 1.11.

(c) Following the Purchaser’s receipt of any Objection Notice, the Representative and the Purchaser shall attempt to negotiate in
good faith to resolve such dispute. In the event that the Representative and the Purchaser fail to resolve the Representative’s proposed
adjustments set forth in the Objection Notice within 30 days after the Purchaser receives the Objection Notice, the Representative and the
Purchaser agree that a mutually acceptable accounting firm of nationally recognized standing (the “Independent Accounting Firm™) shall be
retained for review and resolution of any and all matters specified in such Objection Notice that remain in dispute (and as to no other matter),
and the Independent Accounting Firm shall resolve each such matter that remains in dispute based solely on the presentations and supporting
material provided by the Representative or Purchaser and not pursuant to any independent review. The Independent Accounting Firm shall
reach a final, binding resolution of all such matters that remain in dispute, which final resolution shall not be subject to collateral attack for any
reason (other than fraud or manifest error) and shall be (i) in writing and signed by the Independent Accounting Firm, (ii) equal to or in the
range between the amount contested by the Representative and Purchaser for each matter specified in the Objection Notice, (iii) furnished to
Purchaser and the Representative



as soon as practicable after the items in dispute have been referred to the Independent Accounting Firm, which shall not be more than sixty (60)
days after such referral, (iv) made in accordance with this Agreement and the Accounting Policies and (v) conclusive and binding upon the
parties on the date of delivery of such written resolution. The Surviving Corporation and the Representative (on behalf of the Common
Security Holders) each agree to execute, if requested by the Independent Accounting Firm, a reasonable engagement letter in customary form.
The Surviving Corporation, Purchaser and the Representative agree to cooperate fully with the Independent Accounting Firm and promptly
provide all documents and information requested by the Independent Accounting Firm so as to enable it to make such determination as quickly
and as accurately as practicable. The procedure outlined in Section 1.11(b) and this Section 1.11(c) is referred to as the “Dispute Resolution
Procedure”. Notwithstanding the above, the Independent Accounting Firm shall serve as an arbitrator of the dispute rather than an auditor.

(d) Purchaser and the Representative (subject to Section 10.01) shall each pay their own costs and expenses incurred in
connection with such Dispute Resolution Procedure; provided, that the fees and expenses of the Independent Accounting Firm incurred in the
resolution of the disputed matter(s) set forth in the Objection Notice shall be borne by (i) the Representative, on behalf of the Common
Security Holders (pro rata in accordance with each Common Security Holder’s Pro Rata Share) on the one hand (from the Holdback Amount),
and (ii) the Purchaser, on the other hand, in inverse relation to their success with respect to any dispute submitted to the Independent
Accounting Firm for resolution.

(e) The Proposed Closing Statement shall become the “Final Closing Statement” on the applicable one of the following dates:
(i) the earlier of (x) the thirtieth (30m) day following the delivery of the Proposed Closing Statement if an Objection Notice has not been
delivered to Purchaser by the Representative and (y) the date upon which the Representative acknowledges in writing that it has no objections
to the Proposed Closing Statement, (ii) with such changes as are necessary to reflect matters resolved pursuant to any written resolution
executed pursuant to Section 1.11(c), on the date such resolution is executed, if all outstanding matters are resolved through such resolution
and (iii) with such changes as are necessary to reflect the Independent Accounting Firm’s resolution of matters in dispute, on the date the
Independent Accounting Firm delivers its final, binding resolution pursuant to Section 1.11(c). The date on which the Proposed Closing
Statement shall become the Final Closing Statement pursuant to the immediately foregoing sentence is referred to as the “Final Determination
Date”.

(f) Purchaser agrees, solely with respect to the calculations required pursuant to this Section 1.11, that it will not take any actions
with respect to the Accounting Policies and the Company’s books and records as applicable to the Final Closing Statement.
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(g) Neutral Adjustment Amount. If the Adjustment Amount equals zero, the Purchaser shall promptly (but in any event within
five (5) Business Days) cause the Escrow Agent to deliver to the Common Security Holders, by wire transfer of immediately available United
States funds to one or more accounts designated in writing by the Representative, or in such other manner as Representative may direct, all
funds remaining in the Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Account, as set forth more fully in the Escrow Agreement.

(h) Positive Adjustment Amount. Subject to Sections 1.02(b)(i) and 1.02(b)(ii), if the Adjustment Amount is a positive number,
Purchaser shall promptly (but in any event within five (5) Business Days of the Final Determination Date) (i) pay to the Common Security
Holders, pro rata in accordance with each Common Security Holder’s Pro Rata Share, such Adjustment Amount, by wire transfer of
immediately available United States funds to one or more accounts designated in writing by the Representative to the Purchaser and (ii) cause
the Escrow Agent to distribute to the Common Security Holders, pro rata in accordance with each Common Security Holder’s Pro Rata Share,
all funds remaining in the Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Account, by wire transfer of immediately available funds to one or more
accounts designated in writing by the Representative, or in such other manner as Representative may direct, as set forth more fully in the
Escrow Agreement.

(1) Negative Adjustment Amount. Subject to Sections 1.02(b)(i) and 1.02(b)(ii), if the Adjustment Amount is a negative
number, the Representative and the Purchaser shall promptly (but in any event within five (5) Business Days of the Final Determination Date)
cause the Escrow Agent to (i) pay to the Purchaser solely from and only to the extent of the Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Account the
absolute value of such Adjustment Amount by wire transfer of immediately available United States funds to one or more accounts designated
by the Purchaser to the Representative; provided, that if the Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Amount is insufficient to pay the absolute
value of such Adjustment Amount in full, the shortfall shall be paid from the Indemnity Escrow Account, to the extent funds are available
therein, and (ii) distribute to the Common Security Holders, pro rata in accordance with each Common Security Holder’s Pro Rata Share, all
funds remaining in the Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Account, if any, following the payment set forth in the immediately preceding
clause (i), by wire transfer of immediately available United States funds to one or more accounts designated in writing by the Representative,
or in such other manner as Representative may direct, as set forth more fully in the Escrow Agreement. The Deductible shall not apply to any
amounts owed to the Purchaser under this Section 1.11. The Common Security Holders and the Representative shall not have any liability for
any amounts due pursuant to this Section 1.11, except to the extent of the funds available in the Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Account
and the Indemnity Escrow Account. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, holders of Dissenting Shares shall not participate in the
provisions of this Section 1.11 and shall not be entitled to receive any portion of the Holdback Amount or the amounts paid pursuant to this
Section 1.11.

ARTICLE 11
THE CLOSING

2.01 The Closing. The closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall take place at the offices of
Hopkins & Carley, A Law Corporation, located at 70 South First Street, San Jose, California, at 10:00 a.m. Pacific Daylight Time, on the first
Business
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Day following full satisfaction or due waiver of all of the closing conditions set forth in Article IIT hereof (other than those to be satisfied at the
Closing itself) or on such other date and place as is mutually agreeable to the Purchaser and the Representative; provided, however, in no event
shall the Closing occur later than May 31, 2014 (or such later date as the Company and Purchaser may agree to in writing, the “Outside Date”).
The date and time of the Closing are referred to herein as the “Closing Date.”

2.02 The Closing Transactions. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, the parties hereto shall consummate the
following transactions (the “Closing Transactions”) on the Closing Date:

(a) the Company and the Merger Sub shall cause each of the Agreement of Merger and the DE Certificate of Merger to be
executed, acknowledged and filed with the Secretary of State of the States of California and Delaware, as applicable;

(b) inaccordance with Section 1.02(b) and the Allocation Schedule, the Purchaser shall pay to each Stockholder that has
delivered to the Purchaser a Letter of Transmittal, an amount in cash equal to the excess of (x) the Per Share Initial Merger Consideration
multiplied by the number of shares of Common Stock such Stockholder owned immediately prior to the Closing over (y) the outstanding Loan
Amount (and, solely with respect to Charles R. Smith and Maryanne Elizabeth Smith, or their successors, as Trustees of the 2003 Charles and
Maryanne Smith Family Trust dated September 25, 2003, the outstanding Management Loan Amount), if any, payable by such Stockholder to
the Company, by wire transfer of immediately available United States funds to the account(s) designated by such holder in such holder’s Letter
of Transmittal;

(c) immediately prior to the Effective Time, all unexercised and unexpired Options then outstanding shall be cancelled by the
Company, and in accordance with Section1.02(b) and the Allocation Schedule, the Purchaser shall cause the Company to pay to each
Optionholder that has delivered to the Purchaser an Option Letter o f Transmittal, in consideration for the cancellation of such Options, an
amount in cash equal to the excess of the Per Share Initial Merger Consideration over the exercise price of such Option multiplied by the
number of shares of Common Stock for which such Option is exercisable reduced by applicable withholding tax or other amounts required to
be withheld by applicable Law, by wire transfer of immediately available United States funds to the account(s) designated by such holder in
such holder’s Option Letter of Transmittal. For the avoidance of doubt, in the event that the exercise price of any such cancelled Option is
equal to or greater than the Per Share Initial Merger Consideration with respect to the shares of Common Stock subject to the Option, the
holder of such cancelled Option shall not be entitled to receive any payment under this Section 2.02(c). Prior to the Effective Time, the
Company shall take all reasonably necessary or appropriate action to effectuate the transactions contemplated by this Section 2.02(c). Payments
made in respect of Options at the Closing (other than amounts contributed to the Escrow Fund) shall be treated as compensation paid by the
Company to the Optionholders at the Closing. Amounts that would be payable in respect of Options that are contributed to the Escrow Fund
shall be treated as compensation paid to the Optionholders if and when such amounts held in escrow are released from escrow and paid to the
Optionholders;
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(d) the Purchaser shall deposit the Holdback Amount with the Representative, by wire transfer of immediately available United
States funds to one or more bank accounts designated by the Representative;

(e) the Purchaser shall deposit $1,000,000 (the “Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Amount”) into an escrow account (the
‘Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Account”) established pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Escrow Agreement;

3

(f) the Purchaser shall deposit $31,500,000 (the “Indemnity Escrow Amount” and together with the Purchase Price Adjustment
Escrow Amount, the “Escrow Amount”) into an escrow account (the “Indemnity Escrow Account™) established pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the Escrow Agreement;

(g) Purchaser or Merger Sub shall, or shall cause the Surviving Corporation to, deliver to each holder of Estimated Indebtedness
set forth on Schedule 2.02(g), the amount necessary to satisfy such Estimated Indebtedness with the result that, immediately following the
Closing, there will be no further monetary obligations of the Company with respect to any Indebtedness outstanding immediately prior to the
Closing;

(h) Purchaser or Merger Sub shall pay, or shall cause to be paid, to each payee owed any portion of the Estimated Transaction
Costs, by wire transfer of immediately available United States funds to one or more bank accounts designated by the Company (as previously
designated to the Company by each such payee), the respective amount of Estimated Transaction Costs owed to such payee; and

(1) the Purchaser, the Company, and the Representative (on behalf of the Common Security Holders) shall make such other
deliveries as are required by Article I1I hereof.

2.03 Payments to be Made Following the Closing. Any amounts payable to the Common Security Holders after the Closing pursuant to
this Agreement, including pursuant to Section 1.11 and any distribution of the Escrow Amount (collectively, the “Subsequent Merger
Consideration Payments™), shall be paid to the Common Security Holders in accordance with each such Common Security Holder’s Pro Rata
Share and in accordance with Section 1.11; provided that, to the extent necessary to avoid adverse Tax consequences to an Optionholder under
Section 409A of the Code and applicable treasury regulations promulgated thereunder, no Optionholder shall receive with respect to Options
cancelled pursuant to Section 1.02(b)(ii) and 2.02(¢c) any Subsequent Merger Consideration Payments after the fifth year anniversary of the
Effective Time.

ARTICLE III

CONDITIONS TO CLOSING

3.01 Conditions to the Purchaser’s and the Merger Sub’s Obligations. The obligations of the Purchaser and the Merger Sub to
consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are subject to the satisfaction (or waiver by the Purchaser and Merger Sub in
writing) of the following conditions as of the Closing Date:



(a) (1) The representations and warranties set forth in Article IV (other than those representations and warranties that address
matters as of particular dates) shall be true and correct as of the Closing Date as though then made and as though the Closing Date was
substituted for the date o fthis Agreement throughout such representations and warranties (without giving effect to materiality, Material
Adverse Effect, or similar phrases in the representations and warranties except with respect to Sections 4.02, 4.07, and 4.09), and (ii) the
representations and warranties set forth in Article IV that address matters as of particular dates shall be true and correct as of such dates
(without regard to materiality, Material Adverse Effect, or similar phrases in the representation and warranties except with respect to Sections
4.02, 4.07, and 4.09), except where the failure of such representations and warranties referenced in the immediately preceding clauses (i) and
(ii) to be so true and correct would not, in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect;

(b) The Company shall have performed in all material respects all of the covenants and agreements required to be performed by
it under this Agreement at or prior to the Closing;

(c) The applicable waiting periods, if any, under the HSR Act shall have expired or been terminated;

(d) As of the Closing Date, the aggregate number of Dissenting Shares shall not exceed ten percent (10%) of the number of
issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock;

(e) The Representative and the Escrow Agent shall have executed and delivered the Escrow Agreement;

(f) All required approvals or consents for those contracts identified o n Schedule 3.01(f) (“Key Contracts™) as requiring the
counterparty’s consent shall have been obtained, and all such consents which have been obtained shall be on terms that shall not adversely
affect the Company’s, Purchaser’s or the Surviving Corporation’s rights under the applicable contract;

(g) The Company shall deliver to the Purchaser payoff letters from the holders of Indebtedness set forth on Schedule 2.02(g)
and cause such holders of Indebtedness to deliver, subject to the receipt of the applicable payoff amounts, all related Lien releases;

(h) No judgment, decree or order shall have been entered and remain in effect which would prevent the performance of this
Agreement or the consummation of any of the transactions contemplated hereby, declare unlawful the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, or cause such transactions to be rescinded;

(i) The Company shall have delivered to the Purchaser each of the
following:

(i) a certificate of the Company, dated as of the Closing Date, statingthat the preconditions specified in Sections 3.01(a)
and 3.01(b), as they relate to the Company, have been satisfied;
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(i1) certified copies of resolutions duly adopted by the requisite Stockholders of the Company approving the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement in accordance with the California Code; and

(iii) certified copies of resolutions duly adopted by the Company’s Board of Directors authorizing the execution, delivery
and performance o fthis Agreement and the other agreements contemplated hereby, and the consummation of all transactions
contemplated hereby and thereby.

(j) The Company shall have terminated its participation as a Covered Entity in the Insperity 401(k) Plan, with such termination
to be effective no later than 11:59 p.m. on the day immediately prior to the Closing Date and, no later than three (3) days before the Closing
Date, the Company shall provide Purchaser with documents evidencing that the 401(k) Plan will be terminated prior to the Closing Date; and

(k) The Company shall have provided the Purchaser with the Allocation Schedule.

If the Closing occurs, all closing conditions set forth in this Section 3.01 which have not been fully satisfied as of the Closing shall be deemed
to have been waived by the Purchaser and Merger Sub.

3.02 Conditions to the Company’ s Obligations. The obligation of the Company to consummate the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement is subject to the satisfaction of the following conditions as of the Closing Date:

(a) The representations and warranties set forth in Article V of this Agreement shall be true and correct in all material respects as
of the Closing Date as though then made and as though the Closing Date was substituted for the date of this Agreement throughout such
representations and warranties (without giving effect t o materiality, Material Adverse Effect, or similar phrases in the representations and
warranties);

(b) The Purchaser and the Merger Sub shall have performed in all material respects all the covenants and agreements required to
be performed by them under this Agreement at or prior to the Closing;

(c) The applicable waiting periods, if any, under the HSR Act shall have expired or been terminated,
(d) The applicable waiting period under California Code Section 603(b)(1) shall have expired.

(e) The Company, the Purchaser and Merger Sub shall have timely obtained from each Governmental Entity all approvals,
waivers and consents, if any, necessary for consummation of or in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby;
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(f) There shall not be in effect any law of any Governmental Entity of competent jurisdiction restraining, enjoining or otherwise
preventing consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement;

(g) No judgment, decree or order shall have been entered which would prevent the performance of this Agreement or the
consummation of any of the transactions contemplated hereby, declare unlawful the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, or cause
such transactions to be rescinded;

(h) The Purchaser shall have delivered to the Representative (on behalf of the Stockholders, the Optionholders, and the
Company, as applicable) each of the following:

(i) a certificate of the Purchaser, dated as of the Closing Date, stating that the preconditions specified in Sections 3.02(a)
and 3.02(b) have been satisfied;

(i1) certified copies of resolutions of the requisite holders of the voting stock of the Merger Sub approving the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement; and

(ii1) certified copies of the resolutions duly adopted by the Purchaser’s Board of Directors (or its equivalent governing
body) and the Merger Sub’s Board of Directors authorizing the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement;

(i) The Purchaser and the Escrow Agent shall have executed and delivered the Escrow Agreement; and
(j) Purchaser or Merger Sub shall be ready, willing and able to complete the payments at Closing set forth in Section 2.02.

If the Closing occurs, all closing conditions set forth in this Section 3.02 which have not been fully satisfied as of the Closing shall be
deemed to have been waived by the Company.

ARTICLE 1V

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company (and, solely for purposes of Section 4.06(a), the Management Shareholder, and solely for purposes of Section 4.06(b),
the Management Optionholders) represents and warrants to the Purchaser that the statements in this Article IV are correct as of the date of this
Agreement, except asset forth i nthe schedules accompanying this Agreement (each, a “Schedule” and, collectively, the “Disclosure
Schedules™). Capitalized terms used in the Disclosure Schedules and not otherwise defined therein have the meanings given to them in this
Agreement.

4.01 Organization and Corporate Power; No Conflict; No Violation. The Company is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and
in good standing under the laws of the State of California, and the Company has all requisite corporate power and authority to carry on its
businesses as now conducted, except where the failure to have such power and authority would not have a Material Adverse Effect. The
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement
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by the Company and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby do not conflict with or result in any material breach of,
constitute a material default under, or result in a material violation of, the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation or bylaws.

4.02 Qualification. Except as set forth in Schedule 4.02, the Company is qualified to do business in every jurisdiction in which its
ownership of property or the conduct of business as now conducted requires it to qualify, except where the failure to be so qualified would not
have a Material Adverse Effect.

4.03 Subsidiaries. The Company does not own or hold the right to acquire any stock, partnership interest or joint venture interest or
other equity ownership interest in any other corporation, organization or entity.

4.04 Authorization; No Breach; Valid and Binding Agreement. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by the
Company and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized by all requisite corporate
action and shareholder action required by the California Code, evidence of which has been previously provided to Purchaser and which has not
been revoked, and no other corporate or shareholder proceedings are necessary with respect to Company to authorize the execution, delivery or
performance of this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. Except as set forth on the Schedule 4.04, the
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by the Company and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby do not
conflict with or result in any material breach of, constitute a material default under, result in a material violation of, result in the creation of any
material Lien upon any material assets of the Company under, or require any material authorization, consent, approval, exemption or other
action by or notice to any Person, court or other governmental body under, any material indenture, mortgage, lease, loan agreement or other
material agreement or instrument to which the Company is bound, or any law, statute, rule or regulation or order, judgment or decree to which
the Company is subject. This Agreement constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable in accordance with its terms,
except as enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy laws, other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights and general principles of equity
affecting the availability of specific performance and other equitable remedies.

4.05 Capital Stock. The authorized number of shares of capital stock of the Company consists of 15,000,000 authorized shares, all of
which have been designated as Common Stock, no par value per share. As of the date hereof, (a) 9,610,498 shares of Common Stock are issued
and outstanding and are owned of record by the holders and in the amounts set forth on the attached Schedule 4.05 and (b) 2,555,233 shares of
Common Stock are reserved for issuance upon exercise of outstanding options to acquire shares of Common Stock. Schedule 4.05 sets forth a
list of all holders of outstanding Options, the exercise price per share of such Options and whether such Options are vested or will vest in
connection with the Merger. All of the outstanding shares of capital stock of the Company have been duly authorized and are validly issued,
fully paid and nonassessable. Except as set forth on the attached Schedule 4.05, the Company does not have any other capital stock, equity
securities or securities containing any equity features authorized, issued or outstanding, and there are no agreements, options, warrants or other
rights or arrangements existing or outstanding which provide for the sale or issuance of any of the foregoing by the Company. Except as set
forth on Schedule 4.05, there are no agreements or other obligations (contingent or otherwise) which require the Company to repurchase or
otherwise acquire any shares



of the Company’s capital stock or other equity securities that would survive the Closing.
4.06 Title to Shares.

(a) Each Management Shareholder is the owner of all right, title and interest (legal and beneficial) in and to the number of shares
of Common Stock as set forth next to its name on Schedule 4.06(a), free and clear of all Liens. The representation and warranty of each
Management Shareholder under this Section 4.06(a) is the sole and exclusive representation and warranty of such Management Shareholder
under this Agreement.

(b) Each Management Optionholder severally represents, each for himself only, that he is the owner of all right, title and interest
(legal and beneficial) in and to one or more options to purchase the number of shares of Common Stock as set forth next to his name on
Schedule 4.06(b), free and clear of all Liens. The representation and warranty of each Management Optionholder under this Section 4.06(b) is
the sole and exclusive representation and warranty of such Management Optionholder under this Agreement.

4.07 Financial Statements. Schedule 4.07 attached hereto consists of: (a) theCompany’s unaudited consolidated balance sheet (the
“Latest Balance Sheet”) as of November 30, 2013, and the related statement of income and cash flows for the eleven (11) month period then
ended, and (b) the Company’s audited consolidated balance sheet and statements of income and cash flows for the calendar years ended
December 31, 2010, December 31, 2011, and December 31, 2012 (collectively, the “Financial Statements™). Except as set forth on the attached
Schedule 4.07, the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with GAAP, as applied by the Company consistent with past
practice (except as may be indicated in the footnotes thereto), and present fairly in all material respects the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company as of the times and for the periods referred to therein, subject in the case of the unaudited financial statements to (i)
the absence of footnote disclosures and other presentation items and (ii) changes resulting from normal year-end adjustments.

4.08 Undisclosed Liabilities. To the Knowledge of the Company, the Company has no liabilities required to be accrued, reserved for, or
disclosed in the Financial Statements (absolute, contingent, or otherwise) except for (a) liabilities and obligations shown on the Latest Balance
Sheet, (b) liabilities and obligations incurred since the date of the Latest Balance Sheet in the ordinary course of business consistent with past
practice, and (c) liabilities and obligations disclosed in this Agreement or the Disclosure Schedules.

4.09 Absence of Certain Developments. Except as set forth in Schedule 4.09, from December 31, 2012, to the date hereof, there has not
been any Material Adverse Effect. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.09, and except as expressly contemplated by this Agreement, from
December 31, 2012, to the date hereof, the Company has not:



(a) borrowed any amount or incurred or become subject to any liabilities (other than liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of
business, liabilities under contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business and borrowings from banks (or similar financial institutions)
incurred to meet ordinary course working capital requirements and liabilities under this Agreement);

(b) mortgaged, pledged or subjected to any lien, charge or other encumbrance, any portion of its assets in excess of $300,000,
except Permitted Liens;

(c) sold, assigned or transferred any portion of its tangible assets in excess of $300,000;

(d) sold, assigned or transferred any material Intellectual Property;
(e) suffered damage to any portion of its assets in excess of $300,000;
(f) entered into any amendment, modification, cancellation or termination of any contract listed on Schedule 4.12;

(g) except for issuances of Common Stock upon exercise o f outstanding options to acquire shares of Common Stock or as
otherwise contemplated hereby, issued, sold, transferred, or split any of its capital stock or other equity securities, securities convertible into its
capital stock or other equity securities or warrants, options or other rights to acquire its capital stock or other equity securities, or any bonds or
debt securities;

(h) made any material capital investment in, or any material loan to, any other Person;

(1) declared, set aside, or paid any dividend or made any distribution with respect to its capital stock (other than dividends in
cash) or except for repurchases of Common Stock from former employees pursuant to agreements in effect on the date hereof, redeemed,
purchased, or otherwise acquired any of its capital stock;

(j) made any material capital expenditures or commitments therefor, except in the ordinary course of business;
(k) made any loan to, or entered into any other transaction with, any of its directors or officers;

(1) made any material change in its accounting methods, principles or practices (including tax accounting methods and tax
elections), except as required by concurrent changes in GAAP;

(m) made any material revaluation of any of its assets, including writing off notes or accounts receivable;

(n) entered into any severance or termination agreement with any officer or director; or

20



(o) entered into any employment contract (or modification of an existing employment contract or contract with an existing
employee for any additional compensation) with payments exceeding $200,000 per year, or any collective bargaining agreement.

4.10 Title to Properties.

(a) Except as set forth on the Schedule 4.10(a), the Company owns good title to, or holds pursuant to valid and enforceable
leases for, all of the personal property shown to be owned or leased by it on the Latest Balance Sheet, free and clear of all Liens, except for
Permitted Liens.

(b) The real property demised by the leases described on the Schedule 4.10(b) (the “Leased Real Property”) constitutes all of the
real property leased by the Company. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.10(b), the Leased Real Property leases are in full force and effect, and
the Company holds a valid and existing leasehold interest under each such lease, subject to the application of any bankruptcy or creditor’s
rights laws. The Company has delivered or made available to the Purchaser complete and accurate copies of each of the leases described on
Schedule 4.10(b), and none of such leases have been modified in any material respect, except to the extent that such modifications are
disclosed by the copies delivered or made available to the Purchaser. The Company is not in default in any material respect under any of such
leases.

(c) The Company does not own a frechold estate in any real property.
4.11 Tax Matters.

(a) Except as set forth on the attached Schedule 4.11(a), the Company has filed all federal and all foreign, state and local
income, excise, property and other Tax Returns which are required to be filed by them (taking into account any extensions of time to file).
Except as set forth on Schedule 4.11(a), all Taxes due and owing by the Company have been fully paid or properly accrued (and to the extent
any accrual is not otherwise offset by losses (including Transaction Deductions), included as a liability in the calculation of Estimated Working
Capital), and the Company is not currently the beneficiary of any extension of time to file a Tax Return. In addition, (i) all such Tax Returns
are true and correct in all material respects and (ii) the provision for Taxes on the Latest Balance Sheet is sufficient for all accrued and unpaid
Taxes as of the date thereof.

(b) The Company has withheld all Taxes required to have been withheld by the Company in connection with any amounts paid
or owing to any employee, independent contractor, creditor, stockholder, or other third party and remitted such amounts to the proper
Governmental Entity.

(c) No foreign, federal, state or local Tax audits or administrative or judicial Tax proceedings are pending with respect to the
Company or, to the Company’s Knowledge, being contemplated. The Company has not received from any foreign, federal, state or local
Governmental Entity any (i) written notice indicating an intent to open an audit or other review, (ii) request for information related to Tax
matters, or (iii) notice of deficiency or proposed adjustment for any amount of Tax proposed, asserted, or assessed by any Governmental
Entityagainst the Company. Schedule 4.11(c) identifies all income and other material Tax Returns filed by the Company since December 31,
2012.
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(d) The Company has not waived any statute of limitations in respect of Taxes or agreed to any extension of time with respect to
a Tax assessment or deficiency.

(e) The Company (i) has not made any payments, (ii) is not obligated to make any payments, and (iii) is nota party to any
agreement, plan or arrangement that would reasonably be expected to obligate it to make any payments, separately or in the aggregate, that
would be disallowed as a deduction under Section 280G of the Code, or which would give rise to the payment of any excise Tax under Section
4999 of the Code.

(f) The Company has not engaged in any transaction that constitutes a “listed transaction” as described under Section 6707A of
the Code and the Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder.

(g) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.11(g), the Company is not a party to or has any obligation under any Tax sharing, Tax
indemnity or Tax allocation agreement or any similar contract or arrangement, whether or not written (other than pursuant to the customary
provisions of an agreement entered into in the ordinary course of business the primary purpose of which is not related to Taxes, such as leases,
licenses or credit agreements).

(h) The Company has not been a United States real property holding corporation within the meaning of Code Section 897(c)(2)
during the applicable period specified in Code Section 897(c)(1)(A)(ii). The Company (i) has not been a member of an Affiliated Group filing
a consolidated federal income Tax Return (other than a group the common parent of which was the Company) and (ii) does not have any
liability for the Taxes of any Person (other than the Company) under Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-6 (or any similar provision of state,
local or foreign Law), as a transferee or successor, by contract, or otherwise.

(i) The Company has never been a party to a Code Section 355 transaction.

(j) There are no Liens for Taxes (other than Taxes not yet due and payable)
upon any of the assets of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.

(k) No written claim has been made within the past three (3) years by any authority in a jurisdiction where the Company or any
of its Subsidiaries does not file tax returns that the Company or any of its Subsidiaries may be subject to taxation in that jurisdiction.

(1) The Company will not be required to include any material item of income in, or exclude any material item of deduction from,
taxable income for any taxable period (or portion thereof) ending after the Closing Date as a result of any:

(i) change in method of accounting for a taxable period ending on or prior to the Closing Date;
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(i1) “closing agreement” as described in Code Section 7121 (or any corresponding or similar provision of state, local or
foreign income Tax Law) executed on or prior to the Closing Date;

(iii) installment sale or open transaction disposition made on or prior to the Closing Date; or
(iv) prepaid amount received on or prior to the Closing Date.

The representations and warranties set forth in this Section 4.11 shall constitute the only representations and warranties by the
Company with respect to Taxes. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, (A) each Purchaser Indemnified Party’s sole remedy
under this Agreement for Losses related to Taxes resulting from a breach of a representation or warranty under this Section 4.11 shall be
limited to Taxes arising in a Pre-Closing Tax Period and (B) the Company makes no representation or warranty with respect to the amount,
validity or usability of any net operating losses, asset bases, Tax credits, depreciation or amortization periods, or any other Tax attributes of the
Company.

4.12 Contracts and Commitments.

(a) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.12, and except for agreements entered into by the Company after the date hereof in
accordance with Section 6.01, the Company is not currently a party to any: (i) collective bargaining agreement or contract with any labor
union; (ii) written bonus, pension, employee profit sharing, retirement or other form of deferred compensation plan; (iii) stock purchase, stock
option or similar plan; (iv) contract for the employment of any officer, individual employee or other person on a full-time or consulting basis
providing for base salary compensation in excess of $200,000 per annum; (v) agreement or indenture relating to the borrowing of money or to
mortgaging, pledging or otherwise placing a Lien on any material portion of the assets of the Company; (vi) guaranty of any obligation for
borrowed money or other material guaranty; (vii) lease or agreement under which it is lessee of, or holds or operates any personal property
owned by any other party, for which the annual rental exceeds $250,000; (viii) lease or agreement under which it is lessor of or permits any
third party to hold or operate any property, real or personal, for which the annual rental exceeds $250,000; (ix) contract or group of related
contracts with the same party for the purchase of products or services which provide for annual payments by the Company in excess of
$300,000 during the trailing twelve-month period ending on the date of the Latest Balance Sheet; (x) agreements relating to any completed
material business acquisition by the Company within the last three (3) years; (xi) contract or group of related contracts with a client or customer
that provides annual net revenues (defined solely for this clause (xi) as the gross merchant discount rate less interchange) (based on the trailing
twelve-month period ending on the date of the Latest Balance Sheet) to the Company in excess of $900,000; (xii) material license or royalty
agreement relating to the use of any third party intellectual property other than commercially available off-the-shelf software licenses; (xiii)
contract which prohibits the Company from freely engaging in business anywhere in the world; or (xiv) agreement relating to the provision of
merchant processing or settlement services involving consideration from the Company in excess of $300,000 for the 12- month period ending
on the date of the Latest Balance Sheet.
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(b) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.12, the Purchaser either has been supplied with, or has been given access to, a true, correct
and complete copy of all written contracts which are referred to on Schedule 4.12. There are no non-written contracts which, but for the fact
that they are non-written, would otherwise be contained on the Schedule 4.12. There are no non-written amendments or modifications to any
contract contained on Schedule 4.12.

(c) Each contract listed on Schedule 4.12 is in full force and effect, is a legal, valid and binding agreement of the Company, and
is enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms, except as enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy laws, other similar
laws affecting creditors’ rights and general principles of equity affecting the availability of specific performance and other equitable remedies.
The Company is not in material default under any contract listed on Schedule 4.12.

(d) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.12, as of November 1, 2013, neither the Company nor, to the Company’s Knowledge, any
party to any Merchant Agreement, is in default in any material respect of any Merchant Agreement except for those parties to Merchant
Agreements (i) for which a reserve account has been established by Company or its processor; or (ii) an ACH reject for the merchant’s
settlement has occurred;

(e) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.12, as of the date hereof, there are no suits or proceedings pending, or, to the Company’s
Knowledge, threatened against the Company, at law or in equity, before any Governmental Entity related to any Merchant Agreement. As of
the date of this Agreement, to the Knowledge of the Company, no Merchant has (i) informed the Company in writing that it intends, after the
date of this Agreement, to cease or materially alter, in a manner adverse to the Company, such Merchant’s relationship with the Company or
(i1) threatened in writing to terminate any Merchant Agreement;

(f) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.12(f), to the Company’s Knowledge, no Merchant is, as of the date hereof, the subject of
any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding before any Governmental Entity;

(g) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.12, to the Knowledge of the Company, there exists no outstanding or threatened fine or
penalty to Company from a Card Association arising out of or relating to a Merchant Agreement; and

(h) Neither the Company nor, to the Company’s Knowledge, any party to any Reseller Agreement, is in default in any material
respect of any Reseller Agreement.

4.13 Intellectual Property.

(a) Patents, registered trademarks, registered service marks, registered copyrights, Internet domain names, trade dress, industrial
design registrations, applications for any of the foregoing, and material unregistered trademarks, service marks, copyrights, trade names and
corporate names owned by Company or licensed by the Company in connection with its business (collectively, “Intellectual Property™) are set
forth on Schedule 4.13. Except (i) as set forth on Schedule 4.13 or (ii) any non-material nonconformance with clauses (A), (B), (C), (D), (E),
and (F) below: (A) the Company owns and possesses all right, title and interest in and to or is licensed to use, or otherwise possesses legally
enforceable rights to use the Intellectual Property
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in connection with the conduct of Company business in the manner and to the extent used by the Company; (B) the registered trademarks,
registered service marks, registered copyrights, Internet domain names, and industrial design registrations are validly registered and subsisting;
(C) during the three (3) year period prior to the date of this Agreement, the Company has not received any written notices of infringement or
misappropriation from any third party with respect to any third party intellectual property (and there are no pending claims to that effect); (D)
to the Company’s Knowledge, no Person has made a claim during the three (3) year period prior to the date of this Agreement that the
Company is infringing on the intellectual property of any other Person; (E) to the Company’s Knowledge the Company is not currently
infringing on the United States intellectual property rights of any other Person; and (F) to the Company’s Knowledge, none of the Intellectual
Property that is owned by the Company is being infringed by another Person.

(b) For purposes of this Section 4.13, “software” means computer files, programs, systems of programs, or related input data,
together with descriptions, flow-charts, library functions, algorithms, architecture, structure, display screens and development tools, and other
information, work product or tools used to design, plan, organize or develop any of the foregoing, and all documentation, including user
manuals and training materials, relating to any of the foregoing. Schedule 4.13 contains a true, complete and correct list of: (i) all the software
(other than commercially available, off the shelf software) that the Company licenses to or otherwise makes available to customers, (ii) each
item of third-party software that constitutes an element of any of the software that the Company licenses to or otherwise makes available to
customers, (iii) each license or other contract with respect to each such item of third-party software, and (iv) all other third-party software used
by the Company (other than commercially available, off the shelf software) and each license or other contract with respect to such third-party
software. For purposes of this Section 4.13, “third party software” means any software in which all intellectual property rights are not owned
by the Company.

(c) Except (i) as set forth on Schedule 4.13 or (ii) any non-material nonconformance with clauses (A), (B), (C), (D), and (E)
below: (A) the Company owns and possesses all right, title and interest in and to, or is licensed to use, or otherwise possesses legally
enforceable rights to use, the software, as used by the Company in connection with the conduct of its business; (B) during the three (3) year
period prior to the date of this Agreement, the Company has not received any written notices of infringement or misappropriation from any
third party with respect to any third party software (and there are no pending claims to that effect); (C) to the Company’s Knowledge, no
Person has made a claim during the two (2) year period prior to the date of this Agreement that the Company is infringing on the intellectual
property of any other Person with regard to the Company’s use of software; (D) to the Company’s Knowledge, the Company is not currently
infringing on the intellectual property of any other Person with regard to the Company’s use of software; and (E) to the Company’s
Knowledge, none of the software that is owned by the Company is being infringed by another Person.

(d) To the Company’s Knowledge, all present and former contractors, agents, consultants and employees of the Company who
are or were materially involved in the creation of the Intellectual Property or the software in the scope of their engagement or employment with
the Company, have executed an agreement or assignment to vest in the Company, as between such party and the Company, ownership of such
Intellectual Property and/or such software and intellectual property rights therein, to the extent allowed by applicable Law. The Company has
no Knowledge of any claim by any present or former contractor, agent, consultant, employee or
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other Person to any rights in the Intellectual Property, software or Confidential Information. To the Company’s Knowledge, in the ordinary
course of business all present and former contractors, agents, consultants and employees of the Company who have or had access to the
Confidential Information have executed nondisclosure agreements which restrict them from disclosing any such Confidential Information. The
Company has taken commercially reasonable measures, as appropriate, to maintain in confidence all Confidential Information.

4.14 Litigation. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.14, as of the date hereof, there are no suits or proceedings pending or, to the
Company’s Knowledge, threatened against the Company, at law or in equity, or before or by any federal, state, municipal or other
governmental department, commission, board, bureau, agency or instrumentality, domestic or foreign, and the Company is not subject to any
outstanding judgment, order or decree of any court or governmental body the violation of which would have a Material Adverse Effect or
restrict the Company from doing business.

4.15 Governmental Consents, etc. Except for the applicable requirements of the Hart- Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of
1976 (the “HSR Act”), and except as set forth on Schedule 4.15, no material permit, consent, license, approval or authorization of, or
registration or declaration to or filing with, any governmental or regulatory authority or any court of competent jurisdiction is required in
connection with any of the execution, delivery or performance of this Agreement by the Company or the consummation by the Company of
any transaction contemplated hereby.

4.16 Employee Benefit Plans.

(a) Except as listed on Schedule 4.16, with respect to employees of the Company, the Company does not maintain or contribute
to any “pension plans” (as defined under Section 3(2) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”)) (the
“Pension Plans”) or “welfare plans” (as defined under Section 3(1) of ERISA) (the “Welfare Plans”). The Pension Plans and the Welfare Plans
that are specifically identified on Schedule 4.16 are collectively referred to as the “Plans.”

(b) The Plans comply in form and in operation in all respects with the requirements of the Code and ERISA, except where any
failure to comply would not have a Material Adverse Effect. Each of the Plans that is intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code
as amended, has received a favorable determination letter from the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) or is a prototype plan that is entitled to
rely on an opinion letter issued by the IRS to the prototype plan sponsor regarding qualification of the form of the prototype plan. All
amendments and actions required to bring the Plans into conformity with the applicable provisions of ERISA, the Code, and other applicable
Law have been made or taken, except to the extent such amendments or actions are not required by Law to be made or taken until after the
Closing Date. Each of the Plans has been operated in all material respects in accordance with its terms and applicable Law. Each of the Plans
that is a “nonqualified deferred compensation plan” (within the meaning of Section 409A(d)(1) of the Code) subject to Section 409A of the
Code was, as of January 1, 2013, and has remained, in documentary and operational compliance in all material respects with Section 409A of
the Code and the then applicable guidance issued by the IRS thereunder in both operation and documentation. Each Option was issued with an
exercise price for purposes of Section 409A of the Code to be no less than the fair market value of the underlying equity on the date of grant
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(determined in a manner permitted by Section 409A) or otherwise is exempt from Section 409A of the Code.

(c) With respect to the Plans, all required contributions have been made or properly accrued, except where the failure to make or
accrue for such contributions would not have a Material Adverse Effect.

(d) With respect to each of the Plans, the Company has provided or made available to the Purchaser, to the extent applicable: (i)
all plan documents, trust agreements, insurance contracts or other funding arrangements; (ii) the most recent trust reports for financial
statement purposes; (iii) the most recent Form 5500 with all attachments required to have been filed with the IRS or the U.S. Department of
Labor (“DOL”) or any similar reports filed with any comparable Governmental Entity in any non-U.S. jurisdiction having jurisdiction over any
such Plans, and all schedules thereto; (iv) in the case of each Plan, the most recent IRS determination letter or, in the case of a prototype plan,
an opinion letter issued by the IRS to the prototype plan sponsor regarding qualification of the form of the prototype plan; (v) all current
summary plan descriptions; (vi) all material communications received from or sent to the IRS, the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation, the
DOL or any other Governmental Entity (including a written description of any oral communication); (vii) any actuarial study of any pension,
disability, post- employment life or medical benefits provided under any such Plans; (viii) all current employee handbooks and manuals; and,
(x) all amendments and modifications to any such Plans or related documents. The Company has not communicated in writing to any current or
former employee any intention or commitment to amend or modify any such Plans or to establish or implement any other employee or retiree
benefit or compensation plan or arrangement.

(e) Except with respect to the Pension Plans identified on Schedule 4.16(e), the Company has not at any time maintained,
sponsored, contributed to, or been obligated to contribute to an “employee pension plan”, as defined in Section 3(2) of ERISA, subject to Title
IV of ERISA, including a “multi-employer plan” (as defined in ERISA Section 3(37) and 4001(a)(3)), or a “multiple employer plan” (meaning
a plan sponsored by more than one employer within the meaning of ERISA Sections 4063 or 4064 or Code Section 413(c)).

(f) The Company has not incurred (either directly or indirectly, including as a result of an indemnification obligation) any
liability under or pursuant to Title IV of ERISA, or any material liability under or pursuant to Title I of ERISA or the penalty, excise Tax or
joint and several liability provisions of the Code relating to employee benefit plans, and, to the Knowledge of the Company, no event,
transaction or condition has occurred or exists that would reasonably be expected to result in any such liability to Company, or following the
Closing Date, to Purchaser or any of its Affiliates in any material respect. Except as listed on Schedule 4.16(f), all contributions and premiums
required to have been paid by the Company (or on its behalf) to any of the Plans under the terms of any such plan or its related trust, insurance
contract or other funding arrangement, or pursuant to any applicable Law (including ERISA and the Code) or collective bargaining agreement
have been paid within the time prescribed by any such plan, agreement or applicable law in all material respects.
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(g) There are no pending or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened claims by or on behalf of any participant in any of
the Plans, or otherwise involving any such Plan or the assets of any Plan that individually or in the aggregate would reasonably be expected to
be materially adverse to the Company. The Plans are not presently under audit or examination (nor has notice been received by the Company,
or, to the Knowledge of the Company (after inquiring with Insperity and PEO Canada), Insperity PEO Services, L.P. (f/k/a Administaff
Companies II, LP) (“Insperity”’) or PEO Canada, of a potential audit or examination) by the IRS, the DOL, or any other Governmental Entity,
domestic or foreign, and no matters are pending with respect to a Plan under the IRS’s Employee Plans Compliance Resolution System
(EPCRS), or other similar programs.

(h) The Company has no liability in respect of post-retirement health, medical or life insurance benefits for retired, former or
current employees of the Company other than pursuant to the group health plan continuation coverage requirements of Section 4980B of the
Code and Sections 601 through 608 of ERISA or other similar applicable Law.

(1) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.16(i), the execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement by the Company and the
consummation by Company of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will not (alone or in combination with any other event) result
in an increase in the amount of compensation or benefits or the acceleration of the vesting or timing of payment of any compensation or
benefits payable to or in respect of any current or former employee, officer, director or independent contractor of the Company or any increased
or accelerated funding obligation with respect to any Plans.

(j) Schedule 4.16(j) sets forth a true, complete, up-to-date, and accurate list of all Canadian Plans, as hereinafter defined. To the
Knowledge of the Company, each Canadian Plan has been administered in accordance with its terms and all Laws applicable thereto. All
contributions and premiums required to have been paid by the Company (or on its behalf) with respect to each Canadian Plan under the terms
of such Canadian Plan have been made in a timely fashion in accordance with applicable Law and the terms of the Canadian Plan in all material
respects. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.16(j), no Canadian Plan is a “registered pension plan” as that term is defined in subsection 248(1) of
the Income Tax Act (Canada) or provides post-retirement or post-termination of employment benefits to or in respect of any employees or
former employees or their beneficiaries other than as required by Law. For purposes of this Section 4.16(j), “Canadian Plan” means any
employee benefit, health, welfare, medical, dental, pension, retirement, profit sharing, life insurance or disability plan, program, agreement and
arrangement (whether written or oral), which are sponsored, maintained or contributed to or required to be contributed to by Company, or with
respect to which the Company participates, or has any actual or potential liability or obligation, for the benefit of any current or former
employee whose primary place of employment is Canada. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the term “Canadian Plans” shall not include any
statutory benefit plans which the Company or Affiliate of the Company are required to participate in or comply with, including the Canada and
Quebec Pension Plans and plans administered pursuant to applicable health tax, workplace safety insurance, and employment insurance
legislation.
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4.17 Insurance/Bank Accounts. Schedule 4.17 lists each insurance policy maintained by the Company or its professional employer
organization (for the benefit of the Company’s employees) and each bank account of the Company, including account number. The Company
is not in material default with respect to its obligations under any such insurance policy in which it is the sole insured and all premiums due and
payable under each such insurance policy has been paid and each such insurance policy is in full force and effect. The Company has provided
notice to their insurers in accordance with the applicable insurance policies of all potential material claims which would be covered by such
policies (a list of which is set forth on Schedule 4.17) and there is no material claim pending under any of such policies as to which, to the
Company’s Knowledge, coverage has been questioned, denied or disputed by the applicable insurer.

4.18 Compliance with Laws; Credit Card Associations. Except as set forth in Schedule 4.18, the Company is in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations of applicable Governmental Entities, except where the failure to comply would not have a Material Adverse
Effect. The Company is registered by a member of and is in good standing with the Card Associations, except to the extent the failure to be in
good standing would not have a Material Adverse Effect. All approvals, filings, permits and licenses of Governmental Entities and Card
Associations (collectively, “Permits”) required to conduct the business of the Company are in the possession of the Company, are in full force
and effect and are being complied with, except for such Permits the failure of which to possess or be in compliance with would not have a
Material Adverse Effect. Except as otherwise set forth on Schedule 4.18, to the Company’s Knowledge, there is no material investigation,
proceeding or disciplinary action (including fines) currently pending, or to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened in writing against the
Company by a Card Association or its applicable agent.

4.19 Environmental Compliance and Conditions. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.19:

(a) The Company has obtained and possesses all material permits, licenses and other authorizations required under federal, state
and local laws and regulations concerning occupational health and safety, pollution or protection of the environment that were necessary to the
operation of Company’s business and were enacted and in effect on or prior to the Closing Date, including all such laws and regulations
relating to the emission, discharge, release or threatened release of any chemicals, petroleum, pollutants, contaminants or hazardous or toxic
materials, substances or wastes into ambient air, surface water, groundwater or lands or otherwise relating to the manufacture, processing,
distribution, use, treatment, storage, disposal, transport or handling of any chemicals, petroleum, pollutants, contaminants or hazardous or toxic
materials, substances or waste (“Environmental and Safety Requirements”).

(b) The Company is in compliance with all material terms and conditions of such permits, licenses and authorizations, and is
also in material compliance with all other Environmental and Safety Requirements, as applicable, or any written notice or demand letter issued,
entered, promulgated or approved thereunder.

(c) The Company has not received, within the two (2) year period prior to the date hereof, any written notice of violations or
liabilities arising under Environmental and Safety Requirements, including any investigatory, remedial or corrective obligation, relating to the
Company or its facilities and arising under Environmental and Safety Requirements, the subject of which is unresolved and which would have
a Material Adverse Effect.
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4.20 Affiliated Transactions. Except as set forth on Schedule 4.20, no officer, director or Affiliate of the Company or, to the Company’s
Knowledge, any individual in such officer’s or director’s immediate family is a party to any material agreement, contract, commitment or
transaction with the Company or has any material interest in any material property used by the Company.

4.21 Employees.

(a) The Company is a “co-employer” with Insperity in the United States and PEO Canada in Canada. The Company does not
have any employees who are hired solely as employees of Company in the United States or Canada. The Company has previously made
available to the Purchaser a complete copy of each of the Client Service Agreement dated as of January 1, 2008 (as amended, supplemented or
modified from time to time, the “Insperity Agreement”), between Insperity and the Company, and the Human Resources Service Agreement
dated as of January 19, 2006 (as amended, supplemented or modified from time to time, the “PEO Canada Agreement”), between PEO Canada
and the Company.

(b) Schedule 4.21(b) containsa true and correctand complete lista sof January 1,2014 o0 fall employees and sales
representatives employed or engaged by the Company, either directly or through Insperity. The Company has made available to Purchaser a
confidential file detailing the names of the employees and sales representatives as of January 1, 2014, their current compensation, and any
bonuses received for the twelve months ending September 30, 2013. Except as disclosed on Schedule 4.21(b), the Company has not received
any written notice of intent to terminate employment or sales representative agreement from any person listed on Schedule 4.21(b). Except as
disclosed on Schedule 4.21(b), the employment of each employee of the Company is terminable at will by the Company without any penalty,
liability, or severance obligation incurred by the Company.

(c) The Company has not, within the last three (3) years, experienced any organized slowdown, work interruption, strike, or
work stoppage by its employees. The Company is not a party to nor does it have any obligation pursuant to any oral and legally binding or
written agreement, collective bargaining or otherwise, with any party regarding the rates of pay or working conditions of any of the employees
of the Company, nor is the Company obligated under any contract, order or Law to recognize or bargain with any labor organization or union
on behalf of such employees. Neither the Company, nor any of its officers, directors, or employees (in their respective capacities as such) have
been charged or, to the Company’s Knowledge, threatened with the charge of any unfair labor practice, within the last three (3) years. Except
as set forth on Schedule 4.21(c), the Company has complied in all material respects with all applicable federal, state, local and foreign Laws
concerning the employment relationship and with all agreements relating to the employment of its employees, including applicable wage and
hour Laws, fair employment Laws, affirmative action Laws, health and safety Laws, worker compensation Laws, unemployment Laws, Laws
regarding hiring, Laws regarding termination of employment and social security Laws. There are no pending or, to the Company’s Knowledge,
threatened Labor Claims.
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(d) There is no proceeding pending before the U.S. Office of Contract Compliance Programs, the Wage and Hour Division of
the U.S. Department of Labor (the “DOL”), or any other office of the DOL or any other governmental or provincial agency or authority relating
to any employee and no such proceeding has occurred within the past five (5) years. To the Company’s Knowledge, there is no compliance
review being conducted by the U.S. Office of Contract Compliance Programs, the Wage and Hour Division of the U.S. Department of Labor
(the “DOL”) or any other office of the DOL or any other governmental or provincial agency or authority relating to any employee and no such
compliance review has occurred within the past five (5) years. The Company is not bound by any consent decree or settlement agreement
relating to employment decisions or relations with employees, independent contractors or applicants for employment. The Company is not
liable for any unpaid wages, bonuses, or commissions (other than those not yet due in the normal course of business) or any Tax, penalty,
assessment, or forfeiture for failure to comply with any of the foregoing.

(e) Except as set forth on Schedule 4.21(e), there is no outstanding policy, practice, plan, agreement or arrangement regarding
severance payments with respect to any Company employee.

(f) The account representatives, master agents and their respective subagents who provide sales representative services to
Company through its operating division known as “Payment Processing Direct” are engaged as independent contractors pursuant to Account
Representative Agreements substantially in the form of Exhibit F attached hereto. Such Account Representative Agreements may not be
terminable at will.

(g) Except for the independent contractors described in Section 4.21(f) and as set forth in Schedule 4.21(g), no Person engaged
in the Company’s business has been treated as an independent contractor by the Company within the past three (3) years. Any Person who has
been treated as an independent contractor by the Company within the past five (5) years has been classified properly as an independent
contractor under all applicable Laws and no other payment is due on behalf of such person. To the Company’s Knowledge, there are no
pending, or threatened, Labor Claims or other claims asserting that an independent contractor currently or previously engaged by the Company
has not been classified properly.

(h) The Company is in material compliance with, and has not materially violated the terms of, the Immigration Reform and
Control Act of 1986 and all regulations promulgated thereunder or immigration laws for Canada (the “Immigration Laws”). With respect to
each employee (as defined in Section 274a.1(f) of Title 9, Code of Federal Regulations) of the Company for whom compliance with the
Immigration Laws by an employer (as defined in Section 274a.1(g) of Title 9, Code o f Federal Regulations) is required, the Company has
made available to Purchaser prior to the Closing Date, copies of such employees L1-A Non-Immigrant Visa and Form I-9 and all other records,
documents or other papers which are retained with the Form 1-9 by the employer pursuant to the Immigration Laws. To the Company’s
Knowledge, within the past ten (10) years the Company has not been the subject of any inspection or investigation relating to its compliance
with or violation of the Immigration Laws. The Company has not been warned in writing, fined, or otherwise penalized by reason of any failure
to comply with the Immigration Laws, nor is any such proceeding pending or, to the Company’s Knowledge, threatened.
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(1) The Company has not effectuated (i) a “plant closing” (as defined in the Worker Adjustment and Retraining Notification Act
of 1988, as amended (the “WARN Act”) affecting any site of employment or one or more facilities or operating units within any site of
employment or facility of Company; or (ii) a “mass layoff” (as defined in the WARN Act or the California Worker Adjustment and Retraining
Notification Act) affecting any site of employment or facility of the Company; and the Company has not been affected by any transaction or
engaged in layoffs, relocations, or employment terminations sufficient in number to trigger application of any similar state or local Law or
regulation. Except as set forth in the Schedule 4.21(i), none of the Company’s employees has suffered an “employment loss” (as defined in the
WARN Act) since six (6) months prior to the Closing Date.

(j) Except as set forth in Schedule 4.21(j), the Company has complied in all material respects with all applicable Laws relating to
employee health and safety, and the Company has not received any written notice, or to the Company’s Knowledge any notice, that past or
present conditions of its assets or properties violate any applicable legal requirements.

4.22 Brokerage. Except for fees and expenses of the Persons listed on Schedule 4.22, there are no claims for brokerage commissions,
finders’ fees or similar compensation in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement based on any arrangement or
agreement made by or on behalf of the Company for which the Purchaser or the Company would be liable following the Closing. Neither the
Purchaser, Merger Sub or, following the Effective Time, the Company, shall be responsible for any of the fees and expenses of the Persons set
forth on Schedule 4.22.

4.23 N o Additional Representations. THE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF COMPANY (AND, SOLELY FOR
PURPOSES OF SECTION 4.06(A), THE MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDERS, AND SOLELY FOR PURPOSES OF SECTION 4.06(B)
THE MANAGEMENT OPTIONHOLDERS) AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT ARE THE SOLE AND ONLY
REPRESENTATIONS MADE BY COMPANY (AND, SOLELY FOR PURPOSES OF SECTION 4.06(A), THE MANAGEMENT
SHAREHOLDERS, AND SOLELY FOR PURPOSES OF SECTION 4.06(B), THE MANAGEMENT OPTIONHOLDERS) IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT, AND NONE OF COMPANY, THE MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDERS, THE
MANAGEMENT OPTIONHOLDERS NOR ANY OF THEIR RESPECTIVE AFFILIATES IS MAKING ANY OTHER
REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, OF ANY NATURE WHATSOEVER WITH RESPECT TO THE
COMPANY OR THE COMMON SECURITY HOLDERS (INCLUDING ANY OF THE ASSETS OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
PROJECTION OR FORECAST RELATING TO ANY OF THEIR RESPECTIVE BUSINESSES).

ARTICLE V

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE PURCHASER

The Purchaser represents and warrants to the Stockholders, the Optionholders, and the
Company that:
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5.01 Organization and Corporate Power. The Purchaser is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the
laws of the State of Georgia, with full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and the related transaction documents and to perform
its obligations hereunder. The Merger Sub is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of
Delaware, with full corporate power and authority to enter into this Agreement and the related transaction documents and to perform its
obligations hereunder.

5.02 Authorization. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by the Purchaser and the Merger Sub, and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, have been duly and validly authorized by all requisite action, and no other proceedings
on their part are necessary to authorize the execution, delivery or performance of this Agreement. This Agreement has been duly executed and
delivered by the Purchaser and the Merger Sub and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the Purchaser and the Merger Sub, enforceable
in accordance with its terms, except as enforceability may be limited by bankruptcy laws, other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights and
general principles of equity affecting the availability of specific performance and other equitable remedies.

5.03 No Violation. Neither the Purchaser nor the Merger Sub is subject to or obligated under its certificate of incorporation or its
bylaws, any applicable law, or rule or regulation of any Governmental Entity, or any material agreement or instrument, or any license, franchise
or permit, or subject to any order, writ, injunction or decree, which would be breached or violated in any material respect by the Purchaser’s or
the Merger Sub’s execution, delivery or performance of this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

5.04 Governmental Entities; Consents. Except for the applicable requirements of the HSR Act, neither the Purchaser nor the Merger
Sub is required to submit any notice, report or other filing with any Governmental Entity in connection with the execution, delivery or
performance by it of this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. No consent, approval or authorization of
any governmental or regulatory authority or any other party or Person is required to be obtained by the Purchaser or the Merger Sub in
connection with its execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

5.05 Litigation. There are no suits or proceedings pending or, to the Purchaser’s knowledge, threatened against the Purchaser or the
Merger Sub at law or in equity, or before or by any federal, state, municipal or other governmental department, commission, board, bureau,
agency or instrumentality, domestic or foreign, which would adversely affect the Purchaser’s or the Merger Sub’s performance under this
Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.

5.06 Brokerage. There are no claims for brokerage commissions, finders’ fees or similar compensation in connection with the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement based on any arrangement or agreement made by or on behalf of the Purchaser or the Merger Sub
for which the Company, any Stockholder or any Optionholder would be liable following the Closing.
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5.07 Purpose. The Merger Sub is a newly organized corporation, formed solely for the purpose of engaging in the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement. Prior to the date hereof, the Merger Sub has not engaged in any business activities or conducted any
operations other than in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The Merger Sub is a wholly owned Subsidiary of
the Purchaser.

5.08 Merger Sub Organizational Documents. The Articles of Incorporation of the Merger Sub, as in effect on the date of this
Agreement, include the provisions relating to the limitation of liability and exculpation of directors and indemnification of officers, directors,
employees and agents of the Company and other entities as described in Section 7.03 of this Agreement, and the Bylaws of the Merger Sub in
effect on the date of this Agreement include the provisions relating to the indemnification of officers, directors, employees and agents of the
Company and other entities as described in Section 7.03 of this Agreement.

5.09 Available Funds. Purchaser and/or Merger Sub has cash available or has existing borrowing facilities (and will continue to have
such cash available or existing borrowing facilities) that together are sufficient to enable it to consummate the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement, and to pay all consideration, fees, costs, expenses and other amounts required to be paid by Purchaser and/or Merger Sub in
connection with this Agreement.

5.10 Purchaser’s and Merger Sub’s Business Investigation. Each of Purchaser and Merger Sub has conducted an investigation of the
Company and the business of the Company in order to make an informed decision concerning the transactions contemplated hereby. Each of
Purchaser and Merger Sub has reviewed all of the documents, records, reports and other materials identified in the Schedules in the form in
which they have been made available by the Company, and is familiar with the content thereof. Each of Purchaser and Merger Sub
acknowledges that it has been given access to and has visited and examined certain properties and assets of the Company and the business of
the Company that have been made available to them and is familiar with the condition thereof. For the purpose of conducting these
investigations, each of Purchaser and Merger Sub has employed the services of its own agents, representatives, experts and consultants.

5.11 No Distribution, Investment Intent. Purchaser and Merger Sub acknowledge that the common stock of the Surviving Corporation
has not been registered under the Securities Act and that the common stock of the Surviving Corporation may not be resold absent such
registration or unless an exemption therefrom is available. Purchaser is acquiring the common stock of the Surviving Corporation for its own
account, for investment purposes only, and not with a view toward distribution thereof. Purchaser will not sell or otherwise dispose of any of
the common stock of the Surviving Corporation except in compliance with the registration requirements or exemption provisions of the
Securities Act and any other applicable securities laws. Purchaser qualifies as an “accredited investor”, as such term is defined in Rule 501(a)
promulgated pursuant to the Securities Act.
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ARTICLE VI

COVENANTS OF THE COMPANY

6.01 Conduct of the Business.

(a) From the date hereof until the Closing Date, the Company shall conduct its business in the ordinary course of business, (i)
unless the Purchaser shall have consented in writing (which consent will not b e unreasonably withheld or delayed) o r (ii) a s otherwise
contemplated hereby; provided, however, that (x) no action by the Company with respect to matters specifically addressed by any other
provision of this Section 6.01 shall be deemed a breach of this Section 6.01(a), unless such action would constitute a breach of one or more of
such other provisions and (y) the Company’s failure to take any action prohibited by Section 6.01(b) and to which the Purchaser has refused to
consent shall not be a breach of this Section 6.01(a).

(b) From the date hereof until the Closing Date, except (i) as set forth on Schedule 6.01, (ii) with respect to the exercise of
options issued as of the date hereof pursuant to existing Common Stock option plans, (iii) as otherwise expressly permitted by this Agreement,
or (iv) as consented to in writing by the Purchaser (which consent will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed), the Company shall not: (A)
issue, sell or deliver any shares of its capital stock (other than in connection with the exercise of options or warrants outstanding as of the date
hereof, provided that the Company shall provide the Purchaser with prompt written notice of any such exercise), or issue or sell any securities
convertible into, or options with respect to, or warrants to purchase or rights to subscribe for, any shares of its capital stock; (B) effect any
recapitalization, reclassification, stock dividend, stock split or like change in its capitalization; (C) amend its articles of incorporation or
bylaws; (D) make any redemption or purchase of any shares of its capital stock (other than with respect to the repurchase of shares of Common
Stock from former employees of the Company pursuant to existing agreements or pursuant to the Articles of Incorporation); (E) sell, assign or
transfer any portion of its tangible assets in excess of $300,000; (F) make any capital investment in, or any loan to, any other Person in excess
of $300,000; (G) make any capital expenditures or commitments therefore in excess of $300,000; (H) make any loan to, or enter into any other
material transaction with, any of its directors, officers, and employees; (I) grant any severance or termination pay to any officer or director in
excess of $200,000 or adopt any new severance plan; (J) make any change in its accounting methods, principles or practices, except as required
by concurrent changes in GAAP; (K) enter into any contract or agreement that would be included on Schedule 4.12 if such contract had been in
effect as of the date hereof; (L) enter into any contract or agreement for the purchase of real property or to lease property; (M) cancel any debts
owed to or claims held by the Company other than in the ordinary course of business; (N) prepare, file or amend any Tax Return inconsistent
with past practice or, on any such Tax Return, take any position, make any election, or adopt any method that is inconsistent with positions
taken, elections made or methods used in preparing or filing similar Tax Returns in prior periods; or (O) agree, in writing or otherwise, to take
any of the actions described in this Section 6.01.

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Section 6.01 or anywhere else in this Agreement, in the event that
any Optionholder exercises all or any portion of the Options held by such Optionholder following the date hereof, the Company may, in its
discretion, make a loan to such Optionholder in connection with any such exercise of Options and thereafter, the Company shall deliver to
Purchaser any modifications or updates to the Disclosure
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Schedules necessary to reflect any such exercise or change in the capitalization of the Company for purposes of making the information set
forth therein true, accurate and complete in all material respects as of the date such supplemental disclosure information is provided to
Purchaser; provided that such modification does not change the aggregate amounts to be paid by Purchaser under this Agreement
(understanding that the definition of Cash and Option Loan Amount may take into account the exercise price paid or payable by such
Optionholder upon exercise of such Options).

6.02 Access to Books and Records. From the date hereof until the Closing Date, the Company shall provide the Purchaser and its
authorized representatives (the “Purchaser’s Representative’) with reasonable access during normal business hours and upon reasonable notice
to the offices, properties, senior personnel, books and records of the Company in order for the Purchaser to have the opportunity to make such
investigation as it shall reasonably desire to make of the affairs of the Company. The Purchaser acknowledges that Purchaser and Merger Sub
are and remain bound by the Confidentiality Agreement, between the Purchaser and Company dated October 18, 2013 (the “Confidentiality
Agreement”), which terms are incorporated by reference herein.

6.03 Regulatory Filings. Company shall make or cause to be made all filings and submissions under the HSR Act and any other
material laws or regulations applicable to the Company for the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein. The Purchaser shall
coordinate and cooperate with the Company in exchanging such information and providing such assistance as the Company may reasonably
request in connection with all of the filing. The Company and the Purchaser shall share equally in all filing fees, provided that each such party
shall be responsible for the fees of its own respective advisors in connection with such filing.

6.04 Conditions. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to
cause the conditions set forth in Section 3.01 to be satisfied and to consummate the transactions contemplated herein as soon as reasonably
possible after the satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Article III (other than those to be satisfied at the Closing itself).

6.05 Exclusive Dealing. Except in connection with (i) any exercise of options issued as of the date hereof to acquire Common Stock or
(i1) any issuance of Common Stock pursuant to an agreement set forth on Schedule 6.01, during the period from the date of this Agreement
through the Closing or the earlier termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 9.01, neither the Company nor any representative of the
Company shall take any action to encourage, initiate or engage in discussions or negotiations with, or provide any information to, any Person
(other than the Purchaser and the Purchaser’s representatives) concerning any purchase of the shares of Common Stock or any merger, sale of
substantially all of the assets of the Company or similar transactions involving the Company (other than assets sold in the ordinary course of
business). The Company shall promptly notify the Purchaser of any contact from any Person which would violate this Section 6.05 if the
Company or any representative of the Company were to engage in discussions with such Person.
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6.06 Notification. From the date hereofuntilthe Closing Date, i fthe Company becomes aware of any variances from the
representations and warranties contained in Article IV that would cause a condition set forth in Section 3.01(a) not to be satisfied, the Company
shall disclose to the Purchaser in writing such variances in the form of updated Disclosure Schedules, provided that any such disclosure shall
not qualify or modify any of the representations and warranties in Article IV, nor shall such disclosure modify or amend Purchaser’s right to
seek a remedy for a breach of any representation or warranty contained in this Agreement, or limit, restrict, or broaden the Purchaser’s right to
terminate this Agreement in accordance with the terms herein.

6.07 Consents. Subject to Section 7.07, from the date hereof until the Closing Date, the Company shall use its commercially reasonable
efforts to (a) obtain all approvals or consents for those contracts identified on Schedule 6.07 on terms that shall not adversely affect the
Company’s, Purchaser’s or the Surviving Corporation’s rights under such applicable contract and (b) assign that certain Lease dated June 30,
2009 (as amended, supplemented or modified from time to time), between Bica Jessee Adventures, LLC and the Company regarding the
property at 2815 Jefferson Street, Carlsbad, California, from the Company, as Lessee to Charles R. Smith. Notwithstanding the foregoing, for
purposes of this Section 6.07, “commercially reasonable efforts” shall not include any requirement of the Company or any of its affiliates to
expend money, commence, defend or participate in any litigation, offer or grant any accommodation (financial or otherwise) to any other
Person, or suffer the loss of any material right or benefit.

6.08 FIRPTA Certificate. At the Closing, the Company shall deliver to the Purchaser a certificate substantially in the form of Exhibit G,
duly completed and executed by the Company, stating thatthe Companyisnotandhasnotbeena United States real property holding
corporation during the applicable period specified in Code Section 897(c)(1)(A)(ii), dated as of the Closing Date and in form and substance
required under Treasury Regulations Section 1.897-2(h), so that the Purchaser is not required to withhold any portion o f the Purchase Price
hereunder. The Purchaser’s only remedy for the Company’s failure to provide such certificate will be to withhold from the payments to be
made pursuant to this Agreement any required withholding Tax under Section 1445 of the Code.

ARTICLE VII

COVENANTS OF THE PURCHASER

7.01 Access to Books and Records. From and after the Closing, the Purchaser shall, and shall cause the Company to, provide the
Representative and its authorized representatives with access (for the purpose of examining and copying), during normal business hours and
upon reasonable notice, to the books and records of the Company with respect to periods or occurrences prior to or on the Closing Date in
connection with any matter relating to or arising out of this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby.

7.02 Notification. From the date hereofuntilthe Closing Date, i fthe Purchaser becomes aware of any variances from the
representations and warranties contained in Article V that would cause a condition set forth in Section 3.02(a) not to be satisfied, the Purchaser
shall disclose to the Company in writing such variances in the form of updated Disclosure Schedules, provided that any such disclosure shall
not modify or amend Company’s right to seek a remedy for a breach of any representation or warranty contained in this Agreement, or limit,
restrict, or
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broaden the Company’s right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with the terms herein.

7.03 Director and Officer Liability and Indemnification.

(a) All rights to indemnification and exculpation (including the advancement of expenses) from liabilities for acts or omissions
occurring at or prior to the Closing (including with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement) existing as of the date hereof in
favor of the current or former directors, officers and employees of the Company, as provided in the Articles of Incorporation, the bylaws, other
organizational documents, or any indemnification agreements of the Company and pursuant to applicable Law shall survive the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement and shall continue in full force and effect without amendment, modification or repeal in accordance with their
terms for a period of not less than six (6) years after the Closing; provided, however, that if any claims are asserted or made within such
period, all rights to indemnification (and to advancement of expenses) hereunder in respect of any such claims shall continue, without
diminution, until disposition of any and all such claims. For a period of six (6) years after the Closing, the Purchaser shall not, and shall not
permit the Company to amend, repeal or otherwise modify any provision in the Surviving Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws
relating to the exculpation or indemnification of any officers and/or directors (unless required by law) relating to the period prior to the
Effective Time, it being the intent of the parties that the officers and directors of the Company prior to the Effective Time shall continue to be
entitled to such exculpation and indemnification to the full extent of the law.

(b) For a period of six (6) years after the Closing, the Purchaser shall, or shall cause the Surviving Corporation to, maintain
director and officer liability insurance which insurance shall provide coverage for the individuals who were officers and directors of the
Company prior to Closing comparable to the policy or policies maintained by the Company immediately prior to the Closing for the benefit of
such individuals. As the sole means of satisfying Purchaser’s obligation under this Section 7.03(b), Company shall acquire, at or before
Closing, at commercial rates, and at Purchaser’s expense, a prepaid insurance policy or policies (i.e., “tail coverage”) which policy or policies
allows for notification of circumstance, has a minimum 60 day post reporting period, and provides directors and officers and EPL coverage as
contained in the Company’s policy in effect as of the Closing for an aggregate period of not less than six (6) years with respect to claims
arising from acts, events or omissions that occurred at or prior to the Closing, including with respect to the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement. The foregoing provision is a contract right in favor of the current and former directors and officers of Company and shall not be
adversely effected by any modification to the Surviving Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of the Company after the date
hereof.

(¢) The provisions of this Section 7.03 are (i) intended to be for the benefit of, and shall be enforceable by, each Person entitled
to indemnification pursuant to this Section 7.03, and each such person’s heirs, legatees, representatives, successors and assigns, it being
expressly agreed that such Persons shall be third party beneficiaries of this Section 7.03 and (ii) shall not be subject to amendment by the
parties to this Agreement. The indemnification obligations provided under this Section 7.03 are primary and the indemnified Persons under this
Section 7.03 shall not be obligated to pursue claims that exist under any other agreement or document which may provide such Person with any
rights of indemnification or exculpation.
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(d) Purchaser, Merger Sub and the Surviving Corporation hereby acknowledge that the indemnified Persons under this Section
7.03 may have certain rights to indemnification, advancement of expenses and/or insurance provided by current shareholders, members, or
other Affiliates of the Company or its sharcholders (“Indemnitee Affiliates”) separate from the indemnification obligations of Purchaser,
Merger Sub and the Surviving Corporation hereunder. Purchaser, Merger Sub and the Surviving Corporation hereby agree (i) that the
Surviving Corporation is the indemnitor of first resort (i.e., its obligations to the indemnified Persons under this Section 7.03 are primary and
any obligation of any Indemnitee Affiliate to advance expenses or to provide indemnification for the same expenses or liabilities incurred by
the indemnified Persons under this Section 7.03 are secondary), (ii) that Purchaser, Merger Sub and the Surviving Corporation hereby shall be
required to advance the full amount of expenses incurred by the indemnified Persons under this Section 7.03 and shall be liable for the full
amount of all expenses, judgments, penalties, fines and amounts paid in settlement to the extent legally permitted, without regard to any rights
the indemnified Persons under this Section 7.03 may have against any Indemnitee Affiliate, and (iii) that Purchaser, Merger Sub and the
Surviving Corporation irrevocably waive, relinquishes and releases the Indemnitee Affiliates from any and all claims against the Indemnitee
Affiliates for contribution, subrogation or any other recovery of any kind in respect thereof.

7.04 Employment and Benefit Arrangements.

(a) Immediately following the Closing, all of the employees who, at the Closing Date, were employed by the Company, either
directly or through its co-employer relationship with Insperity, or its Affiliates, other than the employees listed on Schedule 7.04 (the
“Continuing Employees™), will continue as employees of the Surviving Corporation or its Affiliate. Purchaser shall provide Continuing
Employees with such compensation and benefit plans, programs, arrangements, agreements and policies as are provided to similarly situated
employees of the Purchaser. The Purchaser shall take all actions required so that eligible employees of the Company shall receive service credit
for service with the Company prior to the Closing Date for eligibility and vesting purposes under any employee benefit plans and arrangements
sponsored by the Purchaser. The Purchaser shall waive any applicable waiting periods, pre-existing conditions or actively-at-work
requirements and shall give such employees credit under the new coverages or benefit plans for deductibles, co-payments and out-of-pocket
payments that have been paid during the year in which such coverage or plan modification occurs. Except with respect to those Persons set
forth on Schedule 7.04(a)(i), if the employment of any employee of the Company is terminated within six (6) months following the Closing,
the Purchaser shall, subject to Section 8.02, pay (or cause the Surviving Corporation to pay) such employee a severance benefit that shall in no
event be less than the severance benefit that would be derived from the Severance Matrix set forth on Schedule 4.21(e) attached hereto. The
Purchaser shall be solely responsible for any obligations arising under Section 4980B of the Code with respecttoall “M&A qualified
beneficiaries” as defined in Treasury Regulation §54.4980B-9. This Section 7.04 shall survive the consummation of the Merger at the Effective
Time, is intended to benefit the Company, the Surviving Corporation, the employees of the Company, and the Surviving Corporation, and shall
be binding on all successors and assigns of the Purchaser and the Surviving Corporation. Employees who are on approved leaves of absence,
including disability leave, workers’ compensation leave, or any statutorily authorized leave, such as parental, family, medical, and military
leave, shall be Continuing Employees. Schedule 7.04 contains a list of all Employees who are, as of January 1, 2014, on approved leaves of
absence or who are not yet on approved leave
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but who have, as of January 1, 2014, made a written request for a leave of absence, including disability leave, workers’ compensation leave, or
any statutorily authorized leave, such as parental, family, medical, and military leave.

(b) As of the Closing Date, the Surviving Corporation shall assume and be responsible for any and all liabilities related to the
Continuing Employees and the transfer of the Continuing Employees to the Surviving Corporation, including, without limitation, any payroll,
vacation, compensation, sick leave, severance, payments, costs under the Consolidated Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1986, as amended, and
all similar amounts. As of the Closing Date, the Surviving Corporation shall comply with any notice or filing requirements under the WARN
Act or any similar state or local plant-closing or severance laws and shall be responsible for any and all liabilities for any failure to comply
therewith including, without limitation, in regard to the Continuing Employees.

7.05 Regulatory Filings.

(a) Subject to the Company’s cooperation in accordance with Section 6.03, the Purchaser shall, within six (6) Business Days of
the date hereof, make or cause to be made all filings and submissions required of the Purchaser under the HSR Act or any other laws or
regulations applicable to the Purchaser for the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein. The Purchaser shall promptly comply
with any additional requests for information, including requests for production of documents and production of witnesses for interviews or
depositions by any Governmental Entities. In addition, the Purchaser shall cooperate in good faith with the Governmental Entities and
undertake promptly any and all reasonable action required to complete the transactions contemplated by this Agreement expeditiously and
lawfully, provided that Purchaser shall have no obligation to take any action that (a) would require the divestiture of any of it or its Affiliates’
business, product lines or assets or involve any material requirement or restriction on any of it or its Affiliates’ businesses, product lines or
assets; (b) would require any material modification o fthe existing capital structure o fthe Purchaser or any of its Affiliates; (c) would
reasonably likely have a Material Adverse Effect on the Purchaser or any of its Affiliates; or (d) would reasonably likely have a Material
Adverse Effect on the Company. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, if a suit or other action is threatened or instituted by any
government authority or any other entity challenging the validity or legality or seeking to restrain the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement, the Purchaser and Merger Sub shall use their commercially reasonable efforts to avoid, resist, resolve or, if
necessary, defend such suit or action. The Purchaser shall assist and cooperate with the Company in preparing and filing all documents required
to be submitted by the Company or its affiliates to any Governmental Entities in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby and in
obtaining any governmental or third party consents, waivers, authorizations or approvals which may be required to be obtained by the
Company in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby (which assistance and cooperation shall include timely furnishing to the
Company all information concerning the Purchaser and/or its Affiliates that counsel to the Company reasonably determines is required to be
included in such documents or would be helpful in obtaining such required consent, waiver, authorization or approval). The Company and
Purchaser shall share equal responsibility for all filing fees under the HSR Act and under any such other laws or regulations applicable to the
Purchaser. The Purchaser shall have no obligation to cause the filings under the HSR Act to be considered for grant of “early termination.” The
Company shall not cause the filings under the HSR Act to be considered for grant of “early termination.” The parties shall also file any post-
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transaction notices as may be required by such Governmental Entities within the time periods prescribed by applicable Law. Purchaser and the
Company shall keep each other apprised of the status of any communications with, and any inquiries or requests for additional information
from, any Governmental Entities and use commercially reasonable efforts to comply promptly with any such inquiry or request.

(b) Each of the Company and Purchaser will (i) reasonably cooperate with each other in connection with any investigation or
other inquiry relating to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement; (ii) reasonably keep the other party or its counsel informed of any
communication received by such party from, or given by such party to any other Governmental Entity and of any communication received or
given in connection with any proceeding by a private party, in each case regarding the transactions contemplated by this Agreement; (iii)
promptly respond to and certify substantial compliance with any inquiries or requests received from any Governmental Entity for additional
information or documentation; (iv) reasonably consult with each other in advance of any meeting or conference with any Governmental Entity,
and to the extent permitted by any Governmental Entity and reasonably determined by such party to be appropriate under the circumstances,
give the other Parties or their counsel the opportunity to attend and participate in such meetings and conferences; and (v) permit the other party
or its counsel to the extent reasonably practicable to review in advance, and in good faith consider the views of the other party or its counsel
concerning, any submission, filing or communication (and documents submitted therewith) intended to be given by it to any Governmental
Entity.

(c¢) Notwithstanding the foregoing, Purchaser will use its commercially reasonable efforts to take such actions as may be
required to cause the expiration of the waiting or notice periods under the HSR Act with respect to the transactions as promptly as possible after
the execution of this Agreement and to avoid the entry of, or to effect the dissolution of, any decree, order, judgment, injunction, temporary
restraining order or other order in any suit or proceeding, that would otherwise have the effect of preventing or materially delaying the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. For purposes of this Section 7.05(¢c), the “reasonable action” of Purchaser
shall include opposing any motion or action for a temporary, preliminary or permanent injunction against the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement.

7.06 Conditions. The Purchaser shall use all commercially reasonable efforts to cause the conditions set forth in Section 3.02 to be
satisfied and to consummate the transactions contemplated herein as soon as reasonably possible after the satisfaction of the conditions set forth
in Article I1I (other than those to be satisfied at the Closing itself).

7.07 Consents. Purchaser acknowledges that certain consents and waivers with respect to the Merger may be required from parties to
contracts to which the Company is a party and that, except to the extent obtained pursuant to Section 3.01(f) and Section 6.07, such consents
and waivers have not been obtained. Purchaser agrees that none of the Representative nor any of the Common Security Holders or their
respective affiliates shall have any liability whatsoever to Purchaser or the Surviving Corporation arising out of or relating to the failure to
obtain any consents or waivers or deliver any notices that may be required in connection with the Merger or because of the breach or
termination of any contract as a result thereof. Purchaser further agrees that no representation, warranty or covenant of the Company contained
herein shall be breached or deemed breached, and no condition shall be deemed not satisfied, as a result of (a) the failure to obtain any such
consent, approval or waiver, (b) any such breach or termination or (c) any action commenced
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or threatened by or on behalf of any Person arising out of or relating to the failure to obtain any such consent or any such breach or termination.

7.08 Release. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, effective as of the Effective Time, in consideration of the
mutual covenants and agreements contained herein, each of Purchaser, Merger Sub, the Surviving Corporation and their respective Subsidiaries
hereby releases, waives and forever discharges each Common Security Holder, the Representative and their respective Affiliates, and each of
their respective officers, directors, employees, shareholders, partners, members, managers, agents and representatives from any and all actions,
causes of action, demands, suits, agreements, liabilities, or Losses of any type, based on any fact or circumstance arising from such Common
Security Holder’s past or current ownership, as applicable, of the Common Stock or Options or other equity securities of the Company or their
management of the Company (including any claims relating to actual or alleged breaches of fiduciary or other duties by the Company’s
directors, officers or shareholders), whether based on contract or any applicable Law (including tort, statute, local ordinance, regulation or any
comparable law) in any jurisdiction; provided, that none of Purchaser, Merger Sub, the Surviving Corporation or their respective Subsidiaries
are releasing or discharging any such Persons from (i) the obligations and agreements established pursuant to this Agreement, (ii) any
obligations or agreements relating to the employment of such Person by the Company and (iii) criminal misconduct or intentional fraud.

ARTICLE VIII

INDEMNIFICATION

8.01 Survival of Representations, Warranties, Covenants, Agreements and Other Provisions. Except to the extent a different period is
expressly set forth herein, the covenants (that were required to be performed prior to the Closing), representations and warranties set forth in
this Agreement shall survive the Closing and shall terminate eighteen (18) months after the Closing (the “Survival Period Termination Date™),
provided that the representations and warranties contained in Sections 4.01, 4.02, 4.05, 4.06, 4.11, 5.01, and 5.02 shall survive until the
applicable statute of limitations for any claim made in connection therewith. No claim for indemnification hereunder for breach of any such
covenants (that were required to be performed prior to the Closing), representations and warranties may be made after the expiration of such
survival period, provided that any claim that is made prior to the Survival Period Termination Date shall be deemed timely made even if such
claim continues beyond the Survival Period Termination Date. Such funds as are necessary to address a claim made prior to the Survival
Period Termination Date shall remain in the Indemnity Escrow Account following the Survival Period Termination Date, if necessary, to
satisfy any potential Losses from such claim that is made prior to the Survival Period Termination Date. Without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, it is the specific intention of the parties that the Survival Period Termination Date constitutes a limitation of and modification of the
statute of limitations time period otherwise applicable to any claims arising under this Agreement.
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8.02 Indemnification from the Escrow Account for the Benefit of the Purchaser.

(a) Except in accordance with Section 8.02(d) or for Losses arising on account of fraud, from and after the Closing (but subject
to the provisions of this Article VIII and the Escrow Agreement), the Purchaser shall be entitled to assert, as its sole and exclusive remedy for
any action relating (directly or indirectly) to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby and only in accordance with the terms of
this Agreement and the Escrow Agreement, claims against the Indemnity Escrow Account, excluding any interest or dividends earned thereon,
in respect of any loss, liability, damage or expense (“Losses”) suffered or incurred by the Purchaser or any of its Affiliates, or their respective
officers, directors, partners, members, employees, agents, representatives, successors and permitted assigns (the “Purchaser Indemnified
Parties”) to the extent arising from (i) any non-fulfillment or breach of any representation, warranty, covenant, agreement or other provision set
forth herein by the Company or in any exhibit, Schedule or certificate delivered by Company hereunder, (ii) any payments made by the
Surviving Corporation or an Affiliate pursuant to Schedule 8.02(a)(ii) not to exceed an amount equal to $500,000 in the aggregate, (iii) any
payments made by the Surviving Corporation or any Affiliate pursuant to Schedule 8.02(a)(iii) not to exceed an amount equal to fifty percent
(50%) ofany such payments, or (iv) the circumstances set forth on Schedule 8.02(a)(iv). Notwithstanding the foregoing, no claims by the
Purchaser under Section 8.02(a)(i) (except for claims with respect to any non-fulfillment or breach of Section 4.11 or 10.4) shall be so asserted
unless and until the aggregate amount of Losses under Section 8.02(a)(i) (except for claims with respect to any non-fulfillment or breach of
Section 4.11 or 10.4) that would otherwise be payable hereunder from the Indemnity Escrow Account exceeds on a cumulative basis an
amount equal to $3,000,000 (the “Deductible”), following which only Losses in excess of the Deductible shall be payable to the Purchaser. No
claims by the Purchaser under Section 8.02(a)(i) with respect to claims with respect to any non-fulfillment or breach ofSection 4.11 or 10.4
shall be so asserted unless and until the aggregate amount of Losses under Section 8.02(a)(i) with respect to claims with respect to any non-
fulfillment or breach of Section 4.11 or 10.4 that would otherwise be payable hereunder from the Indemnity Escrow Account exceeds on a
cumulative basis an amount equal to $250,000 (the “Tax Deductible”), following which only Losses in excess of the Tax Deductible shall be
payable to the Purchaser. None of the Purchaser or the Purchaser Indemnified Parties shall make any claim with respect to, or be entitled to
indemnification for, any Loss that has been taken into account in the calculation of the Actual Working Capital in accordance with Section
1.11. The liability of the Common Security Holders under the Indemnity Escrow Account shall be joint and several.

(b) Except in accordance with Section 8.02(d) or for Losses arising on account of fraud, recovery against (i) the Indemnity
Escrow Account pursuant to this Section 8.02, and (ii) the Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Account pursuant to Section 1.11, constitute the
Purchaser’s and the Purchaser Indemnified Parties’ sole and exclusive remedy for any and all Losses or other claims relating to or arising from
this Agreement or in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, including in any exhibit, Schedule or certificate delivered
hereunder, and Purchaser’s claims against the Indemnity Escrow Account and Purchase Price Adjustment Account shall be limited, in the
aggregate, to the amounts originally deposited into such accounts, and Purchaser shall have no claim to any interest, dividends, or other
earnings accruing to such accounts, all of which shall belong to the Common Security Holders.

43



(c) Except in accordance with Section 8.02(d) or for Losses arising on account of fraud, the Purchaser may not avoid the
limitations on liability set forth in this Article VIII by seeking damages for breach of contract.

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Management Shareholders, on account of their respective Common Stock, and the
Management Optionholders on account of their respective Options, shall severally indemnify the Purchaser Indemnified Parties, and hold them
harmless against any Losses which the Purchaser Indemnified Parties may suffer or sustain as a result of any breach of the representation and
warranty in Section 4.06 made by such party with respect to their shares or Options, as the case may be. The liability o fthe Management
Shareholders for a breach of the representation and warranty in Section 4.06(a) shall be several and the maximum liability of the Management
Shareholders for a breach of the representation and warranty in Section 4.06(a) shall be equal to the consideration actually received by such
Management Shareholder on account of the Common Stock held by them at the Effective Time, inclusive of amounts ultimately payable to
such Person from the Holdback Amount, Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Account, and Indemnity Escrow Account. The liability of the
Management Optionholders for a breach of the representation and warranty in Section 4.06(b) shall be several and the maximum liability of
each Management Optionholder for a breach of the representation and warranty in Section 4.06(b) shall be equal to the consideration actually
received by such Management Optionholder on account of the Options held by them at the Effective Time, inclusive of amounts ultimately
payable to such Person from the Holdback Amount, Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Account, and Indemnity Escrow Account.

(e) All payments made from the Indemnity Escrow Account or in connection with Section 8.02(d) shall be treated by the parties
as an adjustment to the proceeds received by the Common Security Holders pursuant to Article I hereof. Following the Survival Period
Termination Date, the Allocation Schedule shall be updated by the Representative to reflect any adjustments to the Per Share Initial Merger
Consideration.

8.03 Indemnification by the Purchaser for the Benefit of the Stockholders and Optionholders. The Purchaser shall indemnify the
Representative, the Stockholders and Optionholders, and their respective Affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, partners, members,

employees, agents, representatives, successors and permitted assigns (collectively, the “Stockholder Indemnified Parties”) and hold them
harmless against any Losses which the Stockholder Indemnified Parties may suffer or sustain, as a result of: (a) any breach of any
representation or warranty of the Purchaser or the Merger Sub under this Agreement, (b) any nonfulfillment or breach of any covenant,
agreement or other provision by the Purchaser or the Merger Sub, and (c) any claim or suit brought against any of the Stockholder Indemnified
Parties at any time on or after the Closing Date relating solely to actions taken by the Purchaser or the Company on or after the Closing Date
other than any claim or action by the Purchaser pursuant to Section 8.02 relating to any breach by any of the Company or the Management
Shareholders.
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8.04 Mitigation. Each Person entitled to indemnification hereunder shall use commercially reasonable efforts to mitigate all losses,
costs, expenses and damages after becoming aware of any event which could reasonably be expected to give rise to any losses, costs, expenses
and damages that are indemnifiable or recoverable hereunder or in connection herewith. In connection with any Losses for which an
Indemnitee may seek indemnification under this Article VIII, such Indemnitee shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to seek and pursue
any available insurance coverage or other claims against third parties that such Indemnitee may have in respect of such Losses, provided that
such Indemnitee shall be entitled to assert and recover on its claim for indemnification while seeking and pursuing such coverage or other
claim. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that a breach by the Company of Section 4.16 relates in any way to a breach by Insperity or
PEO Canada of any contract, agreement or arrangement between (a) Insperity and the Company or (b) PEO Canada and the Company, the
Representative shall have the right, but not the obligation, to (1) control, commence and bring any such claim against Insperity or PEO Canada
on behalf of the Surviving Corporation and/or the Common Security Holders, or (2) cause Surviving Corporation to assign to Representative,
on behalf of the Common Security Holders, any and all claims that the Surviving Corporation may have with respect to any such breach by
Insperity or PEO Canada. In the event the Representative seeks to exercise its rights under the preceding sentence, the Representative shall
notify the Purchaser in writing.

8.05 Defense of Third Party Claims. Any Person making a claim for indemnification under Section 8.02 or Section 8.03 (an
“Indemnitee”) shall notify the indemnifying party (an “Indemnitor”) and the Representative (on behalf of the Common Security Holders), if
applicable, of the claim in writing promptly after receiving written notice of any action, lawsuit, proceeding, investigation or other claim
against it (if by a third party), describing the claim, the amount thereof (if known and quantifiable) and the basis thereof. Any Indemnitor shall
be entitled to participate in the defense of such action, lawsuit, proceeding, investigation or other claim giving rise to an Indemnitee’s claim for
indemnification at such Indemnitor’s expense, and at its option shall be entitled to assume the defense thereof by appointing a reputable
counsel reasonably acceptable to the Indemnitee to be the lead counsel in connection with such defense. Any Indemnitor shall continue to be
entitled to assert any limitation on any claims contained herein, and the Indemnitee shall be entitled to participate in the defense of such claim
and to employ counsel of its choice for such purpose at the Indemnitee’s expense. If the Indemnitor shall control the defense of any such claim
then the Indemnitor shall be entitled to settle such claim; provided, that, the Indemnitor shall obtain the prior written consent of the Indemnitee
(which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed) before entering into any settlement of a claim or ceasing to defend such claim if,
pursuant to or as a result of such settlement or cessation, injunctive or other equitable relief will be imposed against the Indemnitee or if such
settlement does not expressly and unconditionally release the Indemnitee from all liabilities and obligations with respect to such claim, without
prejudice. The Representative (on behalf of the Common Security Holders) shall act on behalf of all Indemnitors in the case of all third party
claims with respect t o which the Purchaser i s seeking indemnification from the Common Security Holders under Section 8.02. If the
Indemnitor makes any payment on any claim pursuant to Section 8.02, the Indemnitor shall be subrogated, to the extent of such payment, to all
rights and remedies of the Indemnitee to any insurance benefits or other claims of the Indemnitee with respect to such claim.
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8.06 Determination of L.oss Amount. The amount of any Loss subject to indemnification under Section 8.02 or Section 8.03 shall be
calculated net of (i) any Tax Benefit realized by an Indemnitee arising from the incurrence or payment of any Loss and (ii) any insurance
proceeds or any indemnity, contribution or other similar payment actually received by the Indemnitee from any third party with respect thereto,
provided that Purchaser shall have no obligation to seek recovery under any insurance policy issued to Purchaser or one of its Affiliates other
than Company, and Company shall, until the Survival Period Termination Date, either (i) renew and not cancel any such policy maintained by
Company as of the Closing Date at least until the Survival Period Termination Date or (ii) obtain insurance policies providing for substantially
similar coverage at least until the Survival Period Termination Date. In the event that an insurance or other recovery is made by any
Indemnitee with respect to any Loss for which any such Person has been indemnified hereunder, then a refund equal to the aggregate amount of
the recovery shall be made promptly to the Representative, on behalf of the Common Security Holders. Except for Losses arising on account
of fraud, in no event shall any Person be entitled to recover or make a claim for any amounts in respect of consequential, diminution in value,
incidental or indirect damages, lost profits or punitive damages and, in particular, no “multiple of profits” or “multiple of cash flow” or similar
valuation methodology shall be used in calculating the amount of any Losses.

8.07 Updating Company Disclosure Schedule. The Company may, by written notice to the Purchaser, provide any additions or
modification of the Disclosure Schedules necessary to make the information set forth therein true, accurate and complete (the “Supplemental
Disclosures”). The Supplemental Disclosures may relate only to matters arising between the date hereof and the Closing Date and shall not
modify or amend Purchaser’s right to seek a remedy for a breach of any representation or warranty contained in this Agreement or limit, restrict
or broaden the Purchaser’s right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with the terms herein. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company
may modify Schedule 4.05 in connection with the exercise by any Optionholder of such Optionholder’s Options following the date hereof and
prior to the Closing Date; provided that such modification does not change the aggregate amounts to be paid by Purchaser under this
Agreement (understanding that the definition of Cash and Option Loan Amount may take into account the exercise price paid or payable by
such Optionholder upon exercise of such Options).

ARTICLE IX

TERMINATION
9.01 Termination. This Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Closing:
(a) by the mutual written consent of the Purchaser and the Company;

(b) by the Purchaser, if there has been a violation or breach by the Company of any covenant, representation or warranty
contained in this Agreement that has prevented the satisfaction of any condition to the obligations of the Purchaser at the Closing and such
violation or breach has not been waived by the Purchaser or cured by the Company within fifteen (15) Business Days after receipt by the
Company of written notice thereof from the Purchaser or, if the nature of such breach is such that it would not be susceptible to cure within
fifteen (15) days, then such time as would be reasonably required for Company to effect such cure, but in no event more
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than thirty (30) days.

(c) by the Company, if there has been a violation or breach by the Purchaser or the Merger Sub of any covenant, representation
or warranty contained in this Agreement that would prevent the satisfaction of any condition to the obligations of the Company at the Closing
and such violation or breach has not been waived by the Company or cured by the Purchaser within fifteen (15) Business Days after receipt by
the Purchaser of written notice thereof by the Company or, if the nature of such breach is such that it would not be susceptible to cure within
fifteen (15) days, then such time as would be reasonably required for Company to effect such cure, but in no event more than thirty (30) days;

(d) by the Purchaser if the transactions contemplated hereby have not been consummated on or before the Outside Date,
provided that termination will not be available under this Section 9.01(d) to the Purchaser if the Purchaser’s action or failure to act has been a
principal cause of or resulted in the failure of the transactions contemplated hereby to have been consummated on or before the Outside Date
and such action or failure constitutes a breach of this Agreement; or

(e) by the Company if the transactions contemplated hereby have not been consummated on or before Outside Date, provided
that termination will not be available under this Section 9.01(e) to the Company if the Company’s action or failure to act has been a principal
cause of or resulted in the failure of the transactions contemplated hereby to have been consummated on or before the Outside Date and such
action or failure constitutes a breach of this Agreement.

9.02 Effect of Termination.

(a) In the event this Agreement is terminated by either the Purchaser or the Company as provided above, the provisions of this
Agreement shall immediately become void and of no further force and effect (other than this Section 9.02, Section 10.01, and Article XTI and
Article XII hereof which shall survive the termination of this Agreement), and there shall be no liability on the part of either the Purchaser, the
Merger Sub, the Company, the Representative, the Stockholders or the Optionholders to one another, except for willful breaches of this
Agreement prior to the time of such termination. For avoidance of doubt, the phrase “willful breach” means and shall be interpreted throughout
this Agreement to mean that the “willfully breaching” party acted purposely with the conscious objective of breaching this Agreement.

(b) Upon any such termination by the Company or Purchaser, Purchaser and Merger Sub shall destroy or return to the Company
all documents and other materials received from the Common Security Holders or the Company, whether so obtained before or after the date
hereof and all confidential information received by Purchaser and Merger Sub (and their respective representatives) with respect to the business
of any Common Security Holder or the Company and shall remain subject to the Confidentiality Agreement.
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ARTICLE X

ADDITIONAL COVENANTS

10.01 Representative.

(a) Appointment. In addition to the other rights and authority granted to the Representative elsewhere in this Agreement, upon
and by virtue of the approval of this Agreement by the requisite holders of Common Stock, all of the Common Security Holders collectively
constitute and irrevocably appoint the Representative as their agent and representative to act from and after the date hereof, and to do any and
all things and execute any and all documents which may be necessary, convenient or appropriate to facilitate the consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including: (i) execution of the documents and certificates pursuant to this Agreement; (ii) receipt
of payments under or pursuant to this Agreement and disbursement thereof to the Common Security Holders and others, as contemplated by
this Agreement, including receipt of payments made to the Representative under Sections 1.11, 8.02 or 10.04; (iii) payment of amounts due to
the Purchaser pursuant to Sections 1.11 or 8.02 to the extent funds are available from the Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Account and/or
Indemnity Escrow Account; (iv) receipt and forwarding of notices and communications pursuant to this Agreement; (v) administration of the
provisions of this Agreement; (vi) giving or agreeing to, on behalf of all or any of the Common Security Holders, any and all consents, waivers,
amendments or modifications deemed by the Representative, in its sole and absolute discretion, to be necessary or appropriate under this
Agreement, and the execution or delivery of any documents that may be necessary or appropriate in connection therewith; (vii) amending this
Agreement or any of the instruments to be delivered to the Purchaser pursuant to this Agreement; (viii) (A) disputing or refrain from disputing,
on behalf of each Common Security Holder, relative to any amounts to be received by such Common Security Holder under this Agreement or
any agreements contemplated hereby, any claim made by the Purchaser under this Agreement or other agreements contemplated hereby, (B)
negotiate and compromise, on behalf of each such Common Security Holder, any dispute that may arise under, and exercise or refrain from
exercising any remedies available under, this Agreement or any other agreement contemplated hereby, and (C) execute, on behalf of each such
Common Security Holder, any settlement agreement, release or other document with respect to such dispute or remedy; and (ix) engaging
attorneys, accountants, agents or consultants on behalf of the Common Security Holders in connection with this Agreement or any other
agreement contemplated hereby and paying any fees related thereto.

(b) Authorization. Notwithstanding Section 10.01(a), in the event that the Representative is of the opinion that it requires
further authorization or advice from the Common Security Holders on any matters concerning this Agreement, the Representative shall be
entitled to seek such further authorization from the Common Security Holders prior to acting on their behalf. In such event, each Common
Security Holders shall vote in accordance with their relative Pro Rata Share and the authorization of a majority of such Pro Rata Share shall be
binding on all of the Common Security Holders and shall constitute the authorization of the Common Security Holders. The appointment of
the Representative is coupled with an interest and shall be irrevocable by any Common Security Holder in any manner or for any reason. This
authority granted to the Representative shall not be affected by the death, illness, dissolution, disability, incapacity or other inability to act of
any principal pursuant to any applicable law.
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(c) Actions by the Representative: Resignation: Vacancies. The Representative may resign from its position as Representative at
any time by written notice delivered to the Purchaser and the Common Security Holders. If there is a vacancy at any time in the position of the
Representative for any reason, such vacancy shall be filled by the majority vote in accordance with the method set forth in Section 10.01(b)
above.

(d) No Liability. All acts of the Representative hereunder in its capacity as such shall be deemed to be acts on behalf of the
Common Security Holders and not of the Representative individually. The Representative, in such Person’s capacity as a Representative only,
shall not have any liability for any amount owed to the Purchaser pursuant any term or provision of this Agreement. The Representative shall
not be liable to the Company, the Purchaser or the Merger Sub, in his or its capacity as the Representative, for any liability of a Stockholder,
Optionholder, or otherwise or for anything which it may do or refrain from doing in connection with this Agreement. The Representative shall
not be liable to the Common Security Holders, in his or its capacity as the Representative, for any liability of a Common Security Holders or
otherwise or for any error of judgment, or any act done or step taken or omitted by it in good faith or for any mistake in fact or law, or for
anything which it may do or refrain from doing in connection with this Agreement except in the case of the Representative’s gross negligence
or willful misconduct. The Representative may seek the advice of legal counsel in the event of any dispute or question as to the construction of
any of the provisions of this Agreement or its duties hereunder, and it shall incur no liability in its capacity as the Representative to the
Purchaser, the Merger Sub, the Company, or the Common Security Holders, and shall be fully protected with respect to any action taken,
omitted or suffered by it in good faith in accordance with the advice of such counsel. The Representative shall not by reason of this Agreement
have a fiduciary relationship in respect of any Common Security Holders, except in respect of amounts received on behalf of the Common
Security Holders. Neither the Purchaser, the Merger Sub, or, following the Effective Time, the Company, shall have any liability or obligation
with respect to the actions or omissions of the Representative or be responsible for any fees or expenses of the Representative.

(e) Expenses. Any expenses or taxable income incurred by the Representative in connection with the performance of its duties
under this Agreement shall not be the personal obligation of the Representative but shall be payable by and attributable to the Common
Security Holders based on each such Person’s Pro Rata Share. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Representative
shall be entitled and is hereby granted the right to set off and deduct any unpaid or non-reimbursed expenses and unsatisfied liabilities incurred
by the Representative in connection with the performance of its duties hereunder from amounts delivered to the Representative pursuant to this
Agreement. The Representative may from time to time submit invoices to the Common Security Holders covering such expenses and liabilities
and, upon the request of any Common Security Holder, shall provide such Common Security Holder with an accounting of all expenses and
liabilities paid.

(f) Distributions. Any amounts distributed by the Representative pursuant to this Agreement to the Stockholders (other than in
respect of any Dissenting Shares) and the Optionholders shall be distributed based upon their respective Pro Rata Share, net of (i) any
obligations incurred by the Representative in connection with the performance of its duties under this Agreement, including obligations, if any,
to the Purchaser pursuant to Sections 1.11 or 8.02 and (ii) expenses of the Representative set off and deducted in accordance with Section

10.01¢e).
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10.02 Disclosure Generally. All Disclosure Schedules attached hereto are incorporated herein and expressly made a part of this
Agreement as though completely set forth herein. All references to this Agreement herein or in any of the Disclosure Schedules shall be
deemed to refer to and qualify this entire Agreement, including all Disclosure Schedules.

10.03 Non-solicitation, Non-recruitment and Non-competition. The parties hereto specifically acknowledge and agree that the
following covenants and agreements are made and given by Charles R. Smith and each of the Management Optionholders severally, and not
jointly, in connection with the sale of the Company and the goodwill associated therewith and in order to protect and preserve to the Purchaser
the benefit of its bargain in the purchase of the Company and its goodwill, that the remedy at law for any breach of the following covenants
shall be inadequate, and that the Purchaser, in addition to any other relief available to it, shall be entitled to seek temporary and permanent
injunctive relief without the necessity of posting any bond in connection with issuance of such temporary or permanent injunction. In the event
that the provisions of this Section 10.03 exceed the limitation provided by applicable Law, then the parties hereto agree that such provisions
shall be reformed to set forth the maximum limitations permitted.

(a) From the Effective Time through and including the date that is two (2) years from the Effective Time, Charles R. Smith and
the Management Optionholders, severally and not jointly, shall not, individually or collectively, directly or indirectly, on their own behalf or on
behalf of any other Person, without the prior written consent of Purchaser, solicit or induce any employee of the Company, regardless of
whether the Company employs the individual directly oras “co-employer” with Insperity, t o terminate his o r her relationship with the
Surviving Corporation (or an Affiliate of the Surviving Corporation) or to enter into employment with any other Person. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, nothing in this Section 10.03(a) shall prohibit or otherwise restrict Charles R. Smith and any Management Optionholder, directly or
indirectly, from (i) making any general solicitation for employment if not specifically directed to such employees of the Company or (ii)
soliciting any Person whose employment with the Company has terminated following the six-month anniversary of such termination.

(b) Charles R. Smith and the Management Optionholders acknowledge and agree that the Company engages in the Competitive
Services throughout the United States. From the Effective Time through and including the date that is three (3) years from the Effective Time,
Charles R. Smith and the Management Optionholders, each severally and not jointly, shall not, individually or collectively, directly or
indirectly, on each such Person’s own behalf or on behalf of any other Person, without the prior written consent of Purchaser, engage in
Competitive Services or operate, manage, control or own an interest in any Person that is engaged in Competitive Services or participate in the
ownership, management, operation or control of any Person that is engaged in Competitive Services, provided, however, that nothing in this
Section 10.03 shall prohibit Charles R. Smith or the Management Optionholders from acquiring or holding, for investment purposes only, less
than five percent (5%) of any class of securities that are listed for trading on any securities exchange or in the over-the-counter market.
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(¢) From the Effective Time through and including the date that is three (3) years from the Effective Time, Charles R. Smith
and the Management Optionholders, severally and not jointly, shall not, individually or collectively, directly or indirectly, on their own behalf
or on behalf of any other Person, without the prior written consent of Purchaser, (i) solicit, divert, take away, or attempt to solicit, divert or take
away, a Protected Customer for the purpose of providing or selling Competitive Services or (ii) induce or cause a Protected Customer to
terminate its relationship with the Company (even if such Protected Customer is transferred to an Affiliate of the Company after the Effective
Time).

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the obligations of Charles R. Smith and the Management
Optionholders under this Section 10.03 are several and independent of the obligations of each other. In the event of a breach by a Charles R.
Smith or any Management Optionholder of the obligations arising under this Section 10.03, a claim for damages may be asserted only against
such breaching party, and no other party shall have any liability or responsibility for such breach or any damages arising therefrom.

10.04 Tax Matters.

(a) Responsibility for Filing Tax Returns.

(1) If the taxable year of the Company does not automatically end as of the end of the Closing Date, then, to the extent
permitted under the applicable Law, Purchaser and the Company shall elect to cause the taxable year of the Company to terminate as of
the end of the Closing Date. The Representative shall prepare or cause to be prepared and file or cause to be filed all Tax Returns of the
Company due (after taking into account all appropriate extensions) on or prior to the Closing Date (the “Seller Prepared Returns™). The
Representative shall provide each Seller Prepared Return to the Purchaser for its review and comment at least twenty (20) Business
Days prior to the date on which such Tax Return is to be filed, and the Representative shall make changes to each such Tax Return as
are reasonably requested by the Purchaser. The Purchaser shall prepare or cause to be prepared and file or cause to be filed all Tax
Returns of the Company due after the Closing Date (the “Purchaser Prepared Returns”). To the extent that a Purchaser Prepared Return
relates to a Pre-Closing Tax Period, such Tax Return shall be prepared in a manner consistent with past practice, except as otherwise
required by applicable Law. The Purchaser shall provide each Purchaser Prepared Return to the Representative for its review and
comment at least twenty (20) Business Days prior to the date on which such Tax Return is to be filed, and the Purchaser shall make
changes to each such Tax Return as are reasonably requested by the Representative.

(i1) Without the prior written consent of the Representative (which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or
delayed), neither the Purchaser, the Surviving Corporation nor any of their Affiliates shall make or change any Tax election, adopt or
change any accounting method, file any Tax Return (including amended Tax Returns), surrender any right to claim a refund of Taxes or
take any other action if such election, adoption, change, amendment, surrender or action could have the effect of (A) increasing the Tax
liability of the Common Security Holders or any of their respective direct or indirect owners, (B) increasing the amount that any
Purchaser Indemnified Party may seek indemnity for under this Agreement, or (C) decreasing any amount payable to the Common
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Security Holders pursuant to any provision of this Section 10.04.

(iii) The Purchaser, the Surviving Corporation and the Representative agree (A) to treat any Transaction Deductions paid
or accrued on or before the Closing Date as deductible in a Pre-Closing Tax Period and that no party shall apply the “next day rule”
under Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-76(b)(1)(ii)(B) to such deductions and (B) to properly make an election under Revenue
Procedure 2011-29 to deduct seventy percent (70%) of any Transaction Deductions that are success-based fees as defined in Treasury
Regulations Section 1.263(a)-5(f).

(b) Closing Date Course of Business. For the portion of the Closing Date after the time of Closing, other than transactions
expressly contemplated hereby, the Purchaser shall cause the Surviving Corporation to carry on its business only in the ordinary course in the
same manner as heretofore conducted.

(c) Cooperation on Tax Matters. The Purchaser, the Company, the Surviving Corporation and the Representative shall cooperate
fully, as and to the extent reasonably requested by the other party, in connection with the filing of any Tax Returns of the Company, the filing
and prosecution of any Tax claims, the calculation of any refunds or credits for which the Common Security Holders are entitled to under
Section 10.04(e), and any audit, litigation or other proceeding with respect to Taxes. Such cooperation shall include the retention and (upon the
other party’s request) the provision of records and information which are reasonably relevant to any such audit, litigation or other proceeding
and making employees available on a mutually convenient basis to provide additional information and explanation of any material provided
hereunder. The Purchaser, the Company, the Surviving Corporation and the Representative agree to retain all books and records with respect to
Tax matters pertinent to the Company and the Surviving Corporation relating to any taxable period beginning before the Closing Date until the
expiration of the statute of limitations (and to the extent of any extensions thereof) of the respective taxable periods, and to abide by all record
retention agreements entered into with any Governmental Entity.

(d) Apportionment of Taxes. In the case of any taxable period that includes, but does not end on, the Closing Date (a “Straddle
Period”), the parties agree as follows: (i) the amount of any Taxes based on or measured by income or receipts, sales or use Taxes, employment
Taxes or withholding Taxes of the Company for a the Pre-Closing Tax Period shall be determined based on an interim closing of the books as
of the close of business on the Closing Date and (ii) the amount of any other Taxes of the Company for a Straddle Period that relates to a Pre-
Closing Tax Period shall be deemed to be the amount of such Tax for the entire taxable period multiplied by a fraction the numerator of which
is the number of days in the taxable period ending on the Closing Date and the denominator of which is the number of days in such Straddle
Period.
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(e) Tax Refunds. Any non-income Tax refunds that are received by or on behalf of the Company, and any amounts credited
against non-income Tax to which the Surviving Corporation becomes entitled to, that, in each case, relate to a Pre-Closing Tax Period (except
to the extent such refunds or credits represent receipts of Tax assets reflected as assets in the determination of Actual Working Capital which
shall be for the account of the Surviving Corporation) shall be paid to the Representative (less any required Tax withholding) on behalf of the
Common Security Holders when such refund is received or such credit is actually realized. Promptly upon receipt of any such Tax refund, and
in no event later than five (5) Business Days after receipt by the Purchaser, the Surviving Corporation or any of their Affiliates, the Purchaser
will, and will cause the Surviving Corporation to, deliver and pay over, by wire transfer of immediately available funds, such Tax refunds to
the Representative (on behalf of the Common Security Holders). The Representative shall have the right to remit a portion of such Tax refunds
to the Surviving Corporation in each case where a Common Security Holder is subject to withholding of Taxes on such payment, and in each
such case the Surviving Corporation (or the Purchaser) shall cause withholding and remittance of required Taxes to be made with respect to
such amounts and the net payments to be promptly paid to the applicable Common Security Holders. The Purchaser will, and will cause the
Surviving Corporation to, execute such documents, take reasonable additional actions and otherwise reasonably cooperate as may be necessary
for the Purchaser or the Surviving Corporation to perfect their rights in and obtain the Tax refunds contemplated by this Section 10.04(e). For
purposes of clarity, the Purchaser shall be entitled to all income Tax refunds received after the Closing by or on behalf of the Company or
Surviving Corporation.

(f) Transfer Taxes. All transfer, value added, excise, stock transfer, stamp, recording, registration and other substantially similar
Taxes and fees incurred in connection with the Merger and other transactions contemplated hereby (collectively, ““ Transfer Taxes™) shall be
paid by the Purchaser.

(g) Amendments of Income Tax Returns. Purchaser shall not amend or permit to be amended any income Tax Return of the
Company for a Pre-Closing Tax Period without the review and approval of the Representative prior to the filing of such amendment, and the
Purchaser shall make changes to each such amended Tax Return as are reasonably requested by the Representative.

ARTICLE XI
DEFINITIONS
11.01 Definitions. For purposes hereof, the following terms when used herein shall have the respective meanings set forth below:

“Actual Cash” means Cash set forth in the Final Closing Statement.

“Actual Indebtedness” means Indebtedness set forth in the Final Closing Statement
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“Actual Residual Amount” means Residual Amount set forth in the Final Closing Statement; provided, however, that in the
event that Closing occurs on the last day of the month, then, for purposes of determining the “Actual Residual Amount”, all residuals through
the Closing Date shall be determined by the amount actually paid to Company with respect to such residuals in the month immediately
following the Closing Date. In the event that Closing occurs on a day other than the last day of a month, then, for purposes of determining the
“Actual Residual Amount”, the actual amount of the residuals accrued as of the Closing Date shall be deemed to be equal to the sum of the
following:

(i) The amount actually paid to the Company by parties other than Third Party Processors with respect to such residuals
for the month in which the Closing occurred, divided by 30 (or, if the Closing occurs in February, 28) and the result thereof multiplied
by the number of days elapsed from the first day of such month to the Closing Date, inclusive (to address residuals payable by parties
other than the Third Party Processors); plus

(i1) An amount equal to (A) (1) the actual transaction dollar volume with respect to the Third Party Processors for the
period beginning on the first day of the subject month and continuing through the Closing Date, inclusive, divided by (2) the actual
transaction dollar volume with respect to the Third Party Processors for the period beginning on the first day of the subject month and
continuing through the end of said month, inclusive multiplied by (B) the amount actually paid to Company by Third Party Processors
with respect to such residuals for said month (to address residuals payable by Third Party Processors).

“Actual Transaction Costs” means Transaction Costs set forth in the Final Closing Statement.

“Actual Working Capital” means Working Capital set forth in the Final Closing Statement.

“Affiliate” ofany particular Person means any other Person controlling, controlled by or under common control with such
particular Person, where “control” means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct the management and policies of a Person
whether through the ownership of voting securities, contract or otherwise.

“Adjustment Amount” means an amount, which may be a negative number, equal to the sum of (a) Actual Working Capital
minus Estimated Working Capital, (b) Estimated Indebtedness minus Actual Indebtedness, (c) Estimated Transaction Costs minus Actual
Transaction Costs, (d) Actual Cash minus Estimated Cash and (f) Actual Residual Amount minus Estimated Residual Amount.

“Affiliated Group” means an affiliated group as defined in Section 1504 of the Code (or any analogous combined, consolidated
or unitary group defined under state, local or foreign income Tax law) of which the Company is or has been a member.

“Business Day” means any day on which national banks are open for business in the city of New York, New York.
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“California Code” shall mean the California Corporations Code, as amended.

“Card Association” means MasterCard International, Inc., VISA U.S.A., Inc., VISA International, Inc., Discover, JCB,
American Express, Diners Club, Voyager, Carte Blanche and any other material card association, debit card network or similar entity with
whom the Company may directly or indirectly have a sponsorship agreement.

“Cash” means, with respect to the Company, as of the close of business on the Closing Date, all cash, cash equivalents, and
marketable securities held by the Company at such time (including reserve deposits held by third parties on behalf of the Company in an
amount not to exceed $300,000).

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Common Security Holders” means all of the Stockholders and Optionholders, and “Common Security Holder” means any one
of such Persons.

“Common Stock” means the Company’s common stock outstanding at the Effective Time.

“Company’ s Knowledge” and “Knowledge of the Company” as used herein means the actual knowledge of Charles R. Smith,
John Malnar, John Myers, Jeffrey Dorman, Charles Reigel, Joseph Monteil, or Philip Wimberly.

“Competitive Services” means the services the Company provides as of the Effective Time which consists of the provision of
payment processing services to merchant customers in the United States.

“Confidential Information” means all information that relates to Company or that is used in Company’s business and that (a)
derives actual or potential economic value from not being generally known to the public or other persons who can obtain economic value from
its disclosure or use, and (b) is the subject of reasonable efforts on the part of Company to maintain the secrecy thereof.

“DGCL” shall mean the Delaware General Corporation Law, as amended.

“Dissenting Share” means any share of Common Stock held of record by any stockholder who or that has exercised his, her, or
its appraisal rights under the California Code.

“Escrow Agent” means Citibank, N.A.

“Fully Diluted Number of Shares” shall equal the number of shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding as of the Effective
Time and shall be calculated assuming that all in-the-money Options are vested and exercised as of immediately prior to the Effective Time.

“GAAP” means United States generally accepted accounting principles applied in a manner consistent with those used by the
Company in prior periods.
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“Governmental Entity” means any federal, national, state, foreign, provincial, local or other government or any governmental,
regulatory, administrative or self-regulatory authority, agency, bureau, board, commission, court, judicial or arbitral body, department, political
subdivision, tribunal or other instrumentality thereof.

“Indebtedness” means, as of any particular time, without duplication, the unpaid principal amount of, and accrued interest on, all
indebtedness for borrowed money of the Company (excluding obligations incurred in the ordinary course of business with respect to
interchange funding from sponsor banks). For the avoidance of doubt, Indebtedness shall exclude guarantees, performance bonds, bid bonds,
letters of credit and other surety obligations, capitalized leases, earnout obligations, other obligations in respect of the deferred purchase price
of property or services and non-compete or similar payments arising from acquisitions.

“Labor Claims” means claims, charges, citations, hearings, consent decrees, or litigation concerning: wages, compensation,
bonuses, commissions, awards, or payroll deductions; equal employment or human rights violations regarding race, color, religion, sex,
national origin, age, disability, veteran’s status, marital status, genetic information, or any other recognized class, status, or attribute under any
federal, state, local or foreign equal employment Law prohibiting discrimination; representation petitions or unfair labor practices; grievances
or arbitrations pursuant to current or expired collective bargaining agreements; occupational safety and health; workers’ compensation;
wrongful termination, negligent hiring, invasion of privacy or defamation; immigration or any other claim based on the employment
relationship or termination of the employment relationship.

“Law” means any law, rule, regulations, judgment, injunction, order, decree or other restriction of any court or Governmental
Entity.

“Liens” means liens, security interests, charges or encumbrances.

“Loan Amount” means, with respect to any Stockholder, the outstanding principal plus accrued and unpaid interest on any loans
outstanding that are payable to the Company by such Stockholder that were incurred in connection with such Stockholder’s exercise of options
to purchase Common Stock granted under an employee stock option plan or arrangement of the Company.

“Management Loan Amount” means, solely with respect to Charles R. Smith and Maryanne Elizabeth Smith, or their successors,
as Trustees of the 2003 Charles and Maryanne Smith Family Trust dated September 25, 2003, the outstanding principal plus accrued and
unpaid interest on that certain the Smith Promissory Note.

“Material Adverse Effect” means any effect, change, event, circumstance or development that has a material adverse effect or
impact on (a) the business, financial condition, or financial performance of Company, taken as a whole, or (b) the ability of Company to
consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement prior to the Outside Date; provided, however, that in no event shall any material
adverse change, event, circumstance or development with respect to, or effect resulting from, any of the following, alone or in combination, be
deemed to constitute a Material Adverse Effect: (i) changes after the Agreement Date in the United States or global economy or capital markets
in general that do not
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have a materially disproportionate effect on Company as compared to other electronic payment processing related companies, (ii) changes after
the Agreement Date that affect generally the electronic payment processing industry that do not have a materially disproportionate effect on
Company as compared to other electronic payment processing related companies, (iii) changes after the Agreement Date in applicable law or in
GAAP, (iv) any decline in customer orders, or any resignation of any employees that is attributable to the announcement of the Merger, (v)
failure(s) by Company to meet internal operating projections or forecasts, or published revenue or earnings predictions, (vi) any act or threat of
terrorism or war, any armed hostilities or terrorist activities, any threat or escalation of armed hostilities or terrorist activities or any
governmental or other response or reaction to any of the foregoing, and (vii) subject to the satisfaction of the closing condition contained in
Section 3.01(h), any effects resulting from any legal proceeding against the Company by the stockholders of Company challenging or seeking
to restrain or prohibit the consummation of the Merger.

“Merchant” means a Person receiving services under a Merchant Agreement as of the Closing Date.

“Merchant Agreement” means an agreement either (a) between a Person and the Company, among others, pursuant to which the
customer is provided with payment processing services, or (b) between a Person and a third party other than the Company, pursuant to which
the Person is provided with payment processing services and the Company receives a residual or other type of payment in connection with such
services.

“Non-Recourse Party” means, with respect to a party to this Agreement, any of such party’s former, current and future equity
holders, controlling persons, directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, Affiliates, members, managers, general or limited partners,
or assignees (or any former, current or future equity holder, controlling person, director, officer, employee, agent, representative, Affiliate,
member, manager, general or limited partner, or assignee of any of the foregoing).

“Option” means each option (whether vested or unvested) to purchase Common Stock granted under any employee stock option
plan or arrangement of the Company, or otherwise.

“Option Exercise Amount” means the aggregate amount that would be payable to Company by all Optionholders upon full
exercise of all outstanding in-the-money Options immediately prior to their cancellation pursuant to Section 2.02(c).

“Option Loan Amount” means the aggregate amount of all outstanding Loan Amounts.
“Optionholder” means a holder of one or more Options.

“Permitted Liens” means (i) statutory liens for current Taxes or other governmental charges not yet due and payable or the
amount or validity of which is being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings by the Company and for which ap propriate reserves
have been established in accordance with GAAP; (ii) mechanics ’, carriers’, workers’, repairers’ and similar statutory liens arising or incurred
in the ordinary course of business for amounts which are not delinquent and which are not, in dividually or in the aggregate, significant; (iii)
zoning,
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entitlement, building and other land use regulations imposed by governmental agencies having jurisdiction over the Leased Real Property
which are not violated by the current use and operation o fthe Leased Real Property; (iv) covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements and
other similar matters of record affecting title to the Leased Real Property which do not materially impair the occupancy or use of the Leased
Real Property for the purposes for which it is currently used or proposed to be used in connection with the Companies’ businesses; (v) public
roads and highways; (vi) matters which would be disclosed by an inspection or accurate survey of each parcel of real property; (vii) liens
arising under worker’s compensation, unemployment insurance, social security, retirement and similar legislation; (viii) liens arising in
connection with sales of foreign receivables; (ix) liens on goods in transit incurred pursuant to documentary letters of credit ; (x) purchase
money liens and liens securing rental payments under capital lease arrangements; (xi) other liens arising in the ordinary course of business and
not incurred in connection with the borrowing of money and (xii) liens, the existence of which would not reasonably be expected to have a
Material Adverse Effect.

“Person” means an individual, a partnership, a corporation, a limited liability company, an association, a joint stock company, a
trust, a joint venture, an unincorporated organization or a governmental entity or any department, agency or political subdivision thereof.

“Per Share Initial Merger Consideration” means the amount equal to the Initial Merger Consideration Calculation Amount
divided by the Fully Diluted Number of Shares.

“Pre-Closing Tax Period” means a taxable period ending on or prior to the Closing Date and, in the case of a taxable period
beginning on or prior to, and ending after, the Closing Date, the portion of such taxable period ending on the Closing Date.

“Pro Rata Share” means, with respect to any Common Security Holder (excluding Common Stock held by the Company as
treasury stock and excluding any Dissenting Shares), the quotient obtained by dividing (a) the aggregate number of outstanding shares of
Common Stock held by such Common Security Holder immediately prior to the Effective Time assuming the exercise of all outstanding in-
the-money Options held by such Common Security Holder immediately prior to the Effective Time, as the case may be, by (b) the aggregate
number of outstanding shares of Common Stock immediately prior to the Effective Time assuming the exercise of all outstanding in-the-
money Options immediately prior to the Effective Time.

“Protected Customers” means any Person to whom Company has sold or provided, or attempted to sell or provide, its products
or services during the two (2) years immediately prior to the Effective Time.

“Reseller Agreement” means an agreement between the Company and a Person who resells enterprise software systems
whereby, among other provisions, the Person refers merchants (e.g. customers of such enterprise software systems) to the Company for the
provision of payment processing services, either by the Company or a third party.
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“Residual Amount” means the amount of the residuals of the Company earned but not received by the Company as of the
Closing Date.

“Smith Promissory Note” means that certain Secured Promissory Note dated May 28, 2011, by Charles R. Smith and Maryanne
Elizabeth Smith, or their successors, as Trustees of the 2003 Charles and Maryanne Smith Family Trust dated September 25, 2003 in favor of
the Company in the original principal amount of $2,000,000, as amended, supplemented or modified from time to time.

“Stockholder” means a holder of Common Stock.

“Subsidiary” means, with respect to any Person, any corporation of which a majority of the total voting power of shares of stock
entitled (without regard to the occurrence of any contingency) to vote in the election of directors, managers or trustees thereof is at the time
owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by such Person or one or more of the other Subsidiaries of such Person or a combination thereof, or
any partnership, association or other business entity of which a majority of the partnership or other similar ownership interest is at the time
owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by such Person or one or more Subsidiaries of such Person or a combination thereof. For purposes
of this definition, a Person is deemed to have a majority ownership interest in a partnership, association or other business entity if such Person
is allocated, directly or indirectly, a majority of the gains or losses of such partnership, association or other business entity or is or controls,
directly or indirectly, the managing director or general partner of such partnership, association or other business entity.

“Target Working Capital” means $1,000,000.

“Tax” or “Taxes” means any federal, state, local or foreign income, gross receipts, franchise, estimated, alternative minimum,
add-on minimum, sales, use, transfer, real property gains, registration, value added, excise, natural resources, severance, stamp, occupation,
premium, windfall profit, environmental, customs, duties, real property, special assessment, personal property, capital stock, social security,
unemployment, disability, payroll, license, employee or other withholding, escheat or other tax, of any kind whatsoever, including any interest,
penalties or additions to tax or additional amounts in respect of the f oregoing.

“Tax Benefit” means any refund, credit or other reduction in otherwise required Taxes payable, currently or in the future
(including any reduction in estimated Tax payments).

“Tax Returns” means any return, report, information return or other document (including schedules or any related or supporting
information) filed or required to be filed with any Governmental Entity or other authority in connection with the determination, assessment or
collection of any Tax or the administration of any laws, regulations or administrative requirements relating to any Tax.

“Third Party Processors” means First Data Merchant Services Corporation and its Affiliates, Global Payments Inc., and its
Affiliates (prior to the Closing Date), Paymentech LLC, and its Affiliates, American Express and its Affiliates, and Discover Financial
Services, LLC, and its Affiliates.
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“Transaction Costs” means (without duplication and solely to the extent that any of the following obligations have not been paid
by the Company immediately prior to the Closing, and to the extent that such obligations are not included as a current liability in Working
Capital) all costs incurred by Company in connection with negotiating and consummating the transaction contemplated by this Agreement,
including (i) all accounting, legal, and banking fees and (ii) severance payments to employees of the Company arising from, or required to be
paid by Company in connection with and as a result of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

“Transaction Deductions” means, without duplication, any deduction permitted for income Tax purposes attributable to (i) the
exercise or payment of Options (and related employment Taxes), (ii) the payment of any Indebtedness (including deductions attributable to
capitalized fees, interest and original issue discount) on or around the Closing Date, and (iii) the payment of any other Transaction Costs
(including, without limitation, accounting, legal and banking fees).

“Working Capital” means (a) the current assets (which shall be calculated excluding Cash) of the Company using the line items
set forth on Schedule 11.01(a), less (b) the current liabilities of the Company using the line items set forth on Schedule 11.01(a) (which shall
be calculated excluding (i) the Residual Amount, (ii) Transaction Costs, and (iii) Indebtedness (both the current and long term portions), in
each case as of the close of business on the Closing Date and calculated pursuant to the Accounting Policies in accordance with Section
1.10(c); provided, however, notwithstanding anything in Schedule 11.01(a) to the contrary, for purposes of calculating “Working Capital,” in
no event shall the determination of Working Capital include (y) any deferred Tax items or (z) any liability for accruals or reserves established
under any GAAP methodology or other accounting rules relating to contingent Taxes or uncertain Tax positions. An example of the application
of this Working Capital definition as of a hypothetical Closing Date is set forth on Exhibit H.

The following terms have the meaning ascribed to them in the Sections referenced:

Term Section
Accounting Policies 1.10(c)
Agreement of Merger 1.01(b)
Allocation Schedule 1.10(b)
Canadian Plans 4.16(j)
Chapter 13 1.02(e)
Closing 2.01
Closing Balance Sheet 1.11(a)
Closing Date 2.01
Closing Transactions 2.02
Confidentiality Agreement 6.02
Continuing Employees 7.04
DE Certificate of Merger 1.01(b)
Deductible 8.02(a)
Disclosure Schedules Article IV
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Term

Dispute Resolution Procedure
Dissenting Shares

DOL

Effective Time
Environmental and Safety Requirements
ERISA

Escrow Agreement

Escrow Amount

Escrow Fund

Estimated Cash

Estimated Closing Balance Sheet
Estimated Closing Statement
Estimated Indebtedness
Estimated Residual Amount
Estimated Transaction Costs
Estimated Working Capital
Final Closing Statement
Final Determination Date
Financial Statements
Goodwin

Holdback Amount

Hopkins

HSR Act

Immigration Laws
Indemnitee Affiliates
Indemnitor

Indemnitee

Indemnity Escrow Account
Indemnity Escrow Amount
Independent Accounting Firm

Initial Merger Consideration Calculation Amount

Insperity

Intellectual Property

IRS

Key Contracts

Latest Balance Sheet
Leased Real Property
Letter of Transmittal
Losses

Management Shareholders
Merger

Objection Notice

Option Letter of Transmittal
Outside Date

Pension Plans

Section
1.11(c)
1.02(e)
4.16(d)
1.01(b)
4.19(a)
4.16(a)
1.05(a)(i)
2.02()
1.05(a)(i)
1.10(a)(iv)
1.10(a)(i)
1.10(a)
1.10(a)(ii)
1.10(a)(vi)
1.10(a)(v)
1.10(a)(ii)
1.11(c)
1.11(e)
4.07
12.20(a)
1.05(a)
12.20(a)
4.15
4.21(h)
7.03(d)
8.05

8.05
2.02()

2.02(f)
1.11(c)
1.02(a)
4.16(g)
4.13(a)
4.16(b)
3.01(H)
4.07
4.10(b)
1.02(b)(i)
8.02(a)
Preamble
1.01(a)
1.11(b)
1.02(b)(ii)
2.01
4.16(a)
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Term Section

Permits 4.18

Plans 4.16(a)
Privileged Communications 12.20(d)
Proceeding 12.11
Proposed Closing Statement 1.11(a)
Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Account 2.02(e)
Purchase Price Adjustment Escrow Amount 2.02(e)
Purchaser Indemnified Parties 8.02(a)
Purchaser Prepared Returns 10.04(a)(1)
Purchaser’s Representative 6.02
Schedule Article IV
Seller Parties 12.20(b)
Seller Prepared Returns 10.04(a)(1)
Stockholder Indemnified Parties 8.03
Straddle Period 10.04(d)
Subsequent Merger Consideration Payments 2.03
Supplemental Disclosures 8.07
Survival Period Termination Date 8.01
Surviving Corporation 1.01(a)
Transfer Taxes 10.04(f)
Unclaimed Amounts 1.02(f)
WARN Act 4.21(1)
Welfare Plans 4.16(a)

11.02 Other Definitional Provisions.

(a) Accounting Terms. Accounting terms which are not otherwise defined in this Agreement have the meanings given to them
under GAAP. To the extent that the definition of an accounting term defined in this Agreement is inconsistent with the meaning of such term
under GAAP, the definition set forth in this Agreement will control.

(b) Successor Laws. Any reference to any particular Code section or any other law or regulation will be interpreted to include
any revision of or successor to that section regardless of how it is numbered or classified.

ARTICLE XII

MISCELLANEOUS

12.01 Press Releases and Communications. No press release or public announcement related to this Agreement or the transactions
contemplated herein, or prior to the Closing any other announcement or communication t o the employees, customers o r suppliers o f the
Company, shall be issued or made by any party hereto without the joint approval of the Purchaser and the Representative, unless required by
law (in the reasonable opinion of counsel) in which case the Purchaser and Representative shall have the right to review such press release,
announcement or communication prior to issuance, distribution or publication, provided that the Purchaser and its Affiliates shall be entitled to
respond to questions about the Agreement or the
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transactions contemplated herein from analysts or investors without the Representative’s consent.

12.02 Expenses. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the Stockholders and Optionholders, on the one hand, and the
Purchaser and Merger Sub, on the other hand, shall pay all of their own expenses (including attorneys’ and accountants’ fees and expenses) in
connection with the negotiation of this Agreement, the performance of their obligations hereunder and the consummation of the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement.

12.03 Notices. All notices, demands and other communications to be given or delivered under or by reason of the provisions of this
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given (a) when personally delivered, (b) when transmitted via telecopy (or
other facsimile device) to the number set out below if the sender on the same day sends a confirming copy of such notice by a recognized
overnight delivery service (charges prepaid), (c) the day following the day (except if not a Business Day then the next Business Day) on which
the same has been delivered prepaid to a reputable national overnight air courier service or (d) the third Business Day following the day on
which the same is sent by certified or registered mail, postage prepaid. Notices, demands and communications, in each case to the respective
parties, shall be sent to the applicable address set forth below, unless another address has been previously specified in writing:

If to Purchaser and Merger Sub: With a copy to (which does not constitute notice):
Global Payments, Inc. Mark F. McElreath

10 Glenlake Parkway — North Tower Alston & Bird

Atlanta, Georgia 30328 90 Park Avenue

Attention: Corporate Secretary New York, NY 10016

Facsimile: (770) 829-8265 Facsimile: (212) 210-9444
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If to Representative:

PPI Representative, LLC
4136 Garfield Street
Carlsbad, California 92008
Attention: Charles R. Smith

Company (before Closing):

Payment Processing, Inc.

8200 Central Avenue

Newark, CA 94560

Attention: Charles Smith, CEO

With a copy to each of (which does not constitute notice):

Lloyd A. Schmidt, Esq.
Hopkins & Carley

70 South First Street

San Jose, California 95113
Facsimile.: (408) 998-4790

and

Goodwin Procter LLP

The New York Times Building

620 Eighth Avenue

New York, New York 10018

Facsimile: (212) 355-3333

Attention: Ilan S. Nissan, Esq. and Jared B. Spitalnick, Esq.

With a copy to (before Closing) (which does not constitute
notice):

Lloyd A. Schmidt, Esq.

Hopkins & Carley

70 South First Street

San Jose, California 95113
Facsimile.: (408) 998-4790

and

Goodwin Procter LLP

The New York Times Building

620 Eighth Avenue

New York, New York 10018

Facsimile: (212) 355-3333

Attention: Ilan S. Nissan, Esq. and Jared B. Spitalnick, Esq.

12.04 Assignment. This Agreement and all of the provisions hereof shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto
and their respective successors and permitted assigns, except that neither this Agreement nor any o fthe rights, interests o r obligations
hereunder may be assigned or delegated by the Management Shareholders, Management Optionholders, the Company, the Purchaser or the
Merger Sub without the prior written consent of the other parties hereto.

64



12.05 Severability. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid
under applicable law, but if any provision of this Agreement is held to be prohibited by or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be
ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provision or the remaining provisions
of this Agreement.

12.06 References. The table of contents and the section and other headings and subheadings contained in this Agreement and the
exhibits hereto are solely for the purpose of reference, are not part of the agreement of the parties hereto, and shall not in any way affect the
meaning or interpretation of this Agreement or any exhibit hereto. All references to days or months shall be deemed references to calendar days
or months. All references to “$” shall be deemed references to United States dollars. Unless the context otherwise requires, any reference to a
“Section,” “Exhibit,” “Disclosure Schedule” or “Schedule” shall be deemed to refer to a section of this Agreement, exhibit to this Agreement or
a schedule to this Agreement, as applicable. The words “hereof,” “herein” and “hereunder” and words of similar import referring to this
Agreement refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision of this Agreement. The word “including” or any variation
thereof means “including, without limitation” and shall not be construed to limit any general statement that it follows to the specific or similar
items or matters immediately following it.

12.07 Construction. The language used in this Agreement shall be deemed to be the language chosen by the parties hereto to express
their mutual intent, and no rule of strict construction shall be applied against any Person. Any information set forth in any Schedule or
incorporated in any Section of the Agreement shall be considered to have been set forth in each other Schedule and shall be deemed to modify
the representations and warranties in Article IV of the Agreement whether or not such representations and warranties refer to such Schedule. In
the event a subject matter is addressed in more than one representation and warranty in Article IV, the Purchaser and the Merger Sub shall be
entitled to rely only on the most specific representation and warranty addressing such matter. The specification of any dollar amount or the
inclusion of any item in the representations and warranties contained in this Agreement or the Disclosure Schedules or Exhibits attached hereto
is not intended to imply that the amounts, or higher or lower amounts, or the items so included, or other items, are or are not required to be
disclosed (including whether such amounts or items are required to be disclosed as material or threatened) or are within or outside of the
ordinary course of business, and no party shall use the fact of the setting of the amounts or the fact of the inclusion of any item in this
Agreement or the Disclosure Schedules or Exhibits in any dispute or controversy between the parties as to whether any obligation, item or
matter not described or included in this Agreement or in any Schedule or Exhibit is or is not required to be disclosed (including whether the
amount or items are required to be disclosed as material or threatened) or is within or outside of the ordinary of business for purposes of this
Agreement. The information contained in this Agreement and in the Disclosure Schedules and Exhibits hereto is disclosed solely for purposes
of this Agreement, and no information contained herein or therein shall be deemed to be an admission by any party hereto to any third party of
any matter whatsoever (including any violation of law or breach of contract).

12.08 Amendment and Waiver. Any provision of this Agreement or the Disclosure
Schedules (except as contemplated by Sections 6.01(c), 6.06 and 8.07) or Exhibits hereto may be amended or waived only in a writing signed
by the Purchaser, the Company, and the Representative. No waiver of any provision hereunder or any breach or default thereof shall extend to
or affect in
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any way any other provision or prior or subsequent breach or default.

12.09 Complete Agreement. This Agreement and the documents referred to herein (including the Confidentiality Agreement) contain
the complete agreement between the parties hereto and supersede any prior understandings, agreements or representations by or between the
parties, written or oral, which may have related to the subject matter hereof in any way.

12.10 Waiver of Trial by Jury. THE PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT EACH HEREBY WAIVES, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT
PERMITTED BY LAW, ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY OF ANY CLAIM, DEMAND, ACTION, OR CAUSE OF ACTION (A)
ARISING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR (B) IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH OR RELATED OR INCIDENTAL TO THE
DEALINGS OF THE PARTIES HERETO IN RESPECT OF THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OF THE TRANSACTIONS RELATED
HERETO, IN EACH CASE WHETHER NOW EXISTING OR HEREAFTER ARISING, AND WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT,
EQUITY, OR OTHERWISE. THE PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT EACH HEREBY AGREES AND CONSENTS THAT ANY SUCH
CLAIM, DEMAND, ACTION, OR CAUSE OF ACTION SHALL BE DECIDED BY COURT TRIAL WITHOUT A JURY, AND THAT
THE PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT MAY FILE A COPY OF THIS AGREEMENT WITH ANY COURT AS WRITTEN EVIDENCE
OF THE CONSENT OF THE PARTIES HERETO TO THE WAIVER OF THEIR RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY.

12.11 Prevailing Party. In the event any litigation or other court action, arbitration or similar adjudicatory proceeding (a “Proceeding”)
is commenced or threatened by a party to enforce its rights under this Agreement, other than pursuant to Section 1.11, against another party, the
party that is the prevailing party in such Proceeding shall be entitled to reimbursement from the non-prevailing party of all fees, costs and
expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs, incurred by the prevailing party in such Proceeding.

12.12 Purchaser Deliveries. The Purchaser agrees and acknowledges that all documents or other items delivered or made available to
the Purchaser’s Representative shall be deemed to be delivered or made available, as the case may be, to the Purchaser for all purposes
hereunder.

12.13 Delivery by Facsimile or Electronic Mail. This Agreement and any signed agreement entered into in connection herewith or
contemplated hereby, and any amendments hereto or thereto, to the extent signed and delivered by means of a facsimile machine or by means
of electronic mail, shall be treated in all manner and respects as an original contract and shall be considered to have the same binding legal
effects as if it were the original signed version thereof delivered in person. At the request of any party hereto or to any such contract, each other
party hereto or thereto shall re-execute original forms thereof and deliver them to all other parties. No party hereto or to any such contract shall
raise the use of a facsimile machine or electronic mail to deliver a signature or the fact that any signature or contract was transmitted or
communicated through the use of facsimile machine or electronic mail as a defense to the formation of a contract and each such party forever
waives any such defense.
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12.14 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, any one of which need not contain the signature of more
than one party, but all such counterparts taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

12.15 Governing Law. All issues and questions concerning the construction, validity, interpretation and enforceability of this
Agreement and the exhibits and schedules hereto shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of Delaware,
without giving effect to any choice of law or conflict of law rules or provisions (whether of the State of Delaware or any other jurisdiction) that
would cause the application of'the laws o fany jurisdiction other than the State of Delaware; provided, however, the laws of the States of
California and Delaware shall apply with respect to all corporate actions and procedures related to approval of the Merger, consummation of
the Merger, and dissenter’s rights in such States, as applicable.

12.16 Jurisdiction. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, any suit, action or proceeding seeking to enforce any
provision of, or based on any matter arising out of or in connection with, this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby shall be
brought in the United States District Court for the District of Delaware, or any other court of the State of Delaware, and each of the parties
hereto hereby consents to the jurisdiction of such courts (and of the appropriate appellate courts therefrom) in any such suit, action or
proceeding and irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any objection which it may now or hereafter have to the laying of the
venue of any such suit, action or proceeding in any such court or that any such suit, action or proceeding which is brought in any such court has
been brought in an inconvenient forum. Process in any such suit, action or proceeding may be served on any party anywhere in the world,
whether within or without the jurisdiction of any such court. Without limiting the foregoing, each party agrees that service of process on such
party as provided in Section 12.03 shall be deemed effective service of process on such party.

12.17 No Recourse. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement or otherwise, the parties to this Agreement agree on their own
behalf and on behalf of their respective Subsidiaries and Affiliates that no Non-Recourse Party of a party to this Agreement shall have any
liability relating to this Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated herein.

12.18 Specific Performance.

(a) Each of the parties hereto acknowledges that the rights of each party to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby
are unique and recognizes and affirms that in the event of a breach of this Agreement by any party, money damages may be inadequate and the
non-breaching party may have no adequate remedy at law. Accordingly, the parties agree that, prior to Closing, such non-breaching party shall
have the right, in addition to any other rights and remedies existing in their favor at law or in equity, to enforce their rights and the other party’s
obligations hereunder not only by an action or actions for damages but also by an action or actions for specific performance, injunctive and/or
other equitable relief (without posting of bond or other security).

(b) To the extent any party hereto brings any action, claim, complaint or other proceeding, ineachcase, before any
Governmental Entity to enforce specifically the performance of the terms and provisions of this Agreement prior to the Closing, the Outside
Date shall automatically be extended by (i) the amount of time during which such action, claim,
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complaint or other proceeding is pending, plus twenty (20) Business Days, or (ii) such other time period established by the court presiding
over such action, claim, complaint or other proceeding.

12.19 Exhibits and Schedules. The Exhibits and Schedules attached hereto are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.

12.20 Waiver of Conflicts; Privilege.

(a) Acknowledgment of Prior Representation. Each of the parties hereto acknowledges and agrees that Goodwin Procter LLP
(“Goodwin”) and Hopkins & Carley (“Hopkins”) have each acted as counsel to the Company, the Representative and each of the Common
Security Holders in connection with the negotiation of this Agreement and consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, and in that
connection not as counsel for any other person, including Purchaser, Merger Sub or the Surviving Corporation.

(b) Consent to Future Representation. Purchaser and Merger Sub hereby consent and agree to, and agree to cause the Surviving
Corporation and its Subsidiaries to consent and agree to, Goodwin and Hopkins representing the Representative and/or any of the Common
Security Holders (collectively, the “Seller Parties™) after the Closing, including with respect to disputes in which the interests o fthe Seller
Parties may be directly adverse to Purchaser and its Subsidiaries (including the Surviving Corporation), and even though Goodwin and/or
Hopkins may have represented the Company in a matter substantially related to any such dispute, or may be handling ongoing matters for the
Company. Purchaser and Merger Sub further consent and agree to, and agree to cause the Surviving Corporation and its Subsidiaries to consent
and agree to, the communication by Goodwin and/or Hopkins to the Seller Parties in connection with any such representation of any fact
known to Goodwin and/or Hopkins arising by reason of Goodwin’s and/or Hopkins’ prior representation of the Company or any of its
affiliates.

(c) Waiver of Conflicts. In connection with the foregoing, each of Purchaser and Merger Sub hereby irrevocably waives and
agrees not to assert, and agrees to cause the Surviving Corporation and its Subsidiaries to irrevocably waive and not to assert, any conflict of
interest arising from or in connection with (i) Goodwin’s and/or Hopkins’ prior representation of the Company or any of its affiliates and (ii)
Goodwin’s and/or Hopkins’ representation of the Representative and the Common Security Holders prior to and after the Closing.

(d) Definition and Ownership of Privileged Communications. Each of Purchaser and Merger Sub further agrees, on behalf of
itself and, after the Closing, on behalf of the Surviving Corporation and its Subsidiaries, that all communications in any form or format
whatsoever between or among Goodwin and/or Hopkins, on the one hand, and the Company, the Representative and/or any Common Security
Holder, or any of their respective directors, officers employees or other representatives, on the other hand, that relate in any way to the
negotiation, documentation and consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or any dispute arising under this Agreement
(collectively, the “Privileged Communications”) shall be deemed to be attorney-client privileged and that the Privileged Communications and
the expectation of client confidence relating thereto belong solely to the Representative and the Common Security Holders, shall be controlled
by the Representative on behalf of the Common Security Holders and shall not pass to or be claimed by Purchaser, Merger Sub, the Surviving
Corporation or any of their Subsidiaries.
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(e) Exclusions for Third Party Claims and Legally Required Disclosure. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that a
dispute arises between Purchaser, Merger Sub or the Surviving Corporation or any of their respective Subsidiaries, on the one hand, and a third

party other than the Representative or a Common Security Holder, on the other hand, Purchaser, Merger Sub or the Surviving Corporation may
assert the attorney-client privilege to prevent the disclosure of the Privileged Communications to such third party; provided, however, that none
of Purchaser, Merger Sub or the Surviving Corporation or any of their respective Subsidiaries may waive such privilege without the prior
written consent of the Representative. In the event that Purchaser, Merger Sub or the Surviving Corporation or any of their respective
Subsidiaries is legally required by governmental order or otherwise to access or obtain a copy of all or a portion of the Privileged
Communications, Purchaser shall promptly (and, in any event, within five (5) Business Days), to the extent not legally prohibited, notify the
Representative in writing (including by making specific reference to this Section) so that the Representative can seek a protective order and
Purchaser agrees to use all commercially reasonable efforts to assist therewith.

(f) No Duty to Disclose Privileged Communications. To the extent that files or other materials maintained by Goodwin and/or
Hopkins constitute property of its clients, only the Representative and the Common Security Holders shall hold such property rights and
Goodwin and/or Hopkins shall have no duty to reveal or disclose any such files or other materials or any Privileged Communications by reason
o fany attorney-client relationship between Goodwin and/or Hopkins, on the one hand, and Purchaser, Merger Sub or the Surviving
Corporation or any of their Subsidiaries, on the other hand.

(g) Prohibition on Access to or Use of Privileged Communications. Each of Purchaser and Merger Sub agrees that it will not,
and that it will cause Purchaser, Merger Sub, the Surviving Corporation and their Subsidiaries and their respective employees, directors,
officers, agents and representatives not to, (i) access or use the Privileged Communications, including by way of review of any electronic data,
communications or other information, or by seeking to have the Representative or any Common Security Holder waive the attorney-client or
other privilege, or by otherwise asserting that Purchaser, Merger Sub, the Surviving Corporation or any of their respective Subsidiaries has the
right to waive the attorney-client or other privilege or (ii) seek to obtain the Privileged Communications from Goodwin and/or Hopkins.

12.21 Acknowledgment of Purchaser and Merger Sub. Each of the Purchaser and Merger Sub acknowledges that it has relied on the
representations and warranties o f the Company (and, solely for purposes of Section 4.06(a), the Management Shareholders, and solely for
purposes of Section 4.06(b), the Management Optionholders) expressly and specifically set forth in this Agreement, including the Schedules
(and updated Schedules) in making its determination to proceed with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Such representations
and warranties by the Company (and, solely for purposes of Section 4.06(a), the Management Shareholders, and solely for purposes of Section
4.06(b), the Management Optionholders) constitute the sole and exclusive representations and warranties of the Company (and, solely for
purposes of Section 4.06(a), the Management Shareholders, and solely for purposes of Section 4.06(b), the Management Optionholders) to the
Purchaser in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby, and each of the Purchaser and Merger Sub understands, acknowledges and
agrees that all other representations and warranties of any kind or nature, expressed or implied, are specifically disclaimed by the Company,
the Management Shareholders and the Management Optionholders and are not being relied on by the Purchaser or
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Merger Sub. In connection with the Purchaser’s investigation of the Company, the Purchaser has received certain future projections, including
future projected statements of operating revenues and income from operations of the Company and certain future business plan information.
Each ofthe Purchaser and Merger Sub acknowledges that there are uncertainties inherent in attempting to make such future estimates,
projections and other forecasts and plans, that each of the Purchaser and Merger Sub is familiar with such uncertainties and that each of the
Purchaser and Merger Sub is taking full responsibility for making its own evaluation of the adequacy and accuracy of all future estimates,
projections and other forecasts and plans so furnished to it, including the reasonableness of the assumptions underlying such future estimates,
projections and forecasts. Accordingly, each of the Purchaser and Merger Sub hereby acknowledges that none of the Company, the
Management Shareholders or the Management Optionholders (or any of their respective Affiliates, stockholders, partners, members, manager,
trustees, employees, directors, officers, agents or representatives) are making any representation or warranty with respect to such future
estimates, projections and other forecasts and plans, including the reasonableness of the assumptions underlying such future estimates,
projections and forecasts, and each of the Purchaser and Merger Sub hereby disclaims any reliance on such future estimates, projections and
other forecasts and plans.

12.22 No Third Party Beneficiaries. Except with respect to the Common Security Holders or as otherwise set forth in Section 7.03,
Section 7.08 and ARTICLE VIII, this Agreement is for the sole benefit of the parties hereto and their heirs, legatees, representatives,
successors and permitted assigns and nothing herein expressed or implied shall give or be construed to give to any Person, other than the
parties hereto and such assigns, any legal or equitable rights hereunder.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement and Plan of Merger on the day and year first above
written.

Company: PAYMENT PROCESSING, INC

By: /s CHARLES R. SMITH
Name: Charles R. Smith
Title: Chief Executive Officer




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement and Plan of Merger on the day and year first above
written.

Purchaser: GLOBAL PAYMENTS, INC.

By: /s/ JEFFREY S. SLOAN
Name: Jeffrey S. Sloan
Title: Chief Executive Officer




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement and Plan of Merger on the day and year first above
written.

Merger Sub: PUMA ACQUISITION CORP.

By: /s/ JEFFREY S. SLOAN
Name: Jeffrey S. Sloan
Title: President




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement and Plan of Merger on the day and year first above
written.

Representative: PPI REPRESENTATIVE, LLC, solely in its capacity as the

By: /s CHARLES R. SMITH
Name: Charles R. Smith
Title: Member

Management Shareholders: Charles Richard Smith and Maryanne Elizabeth
Smith, or their successors, as Trustees of the 2003
Charles and Maryanne Smith Family Trust dated September 25, 2003, solely for
purposes of Sections 4.06(a), 8.02(d) and10.01

By: /s/ CHARLES R. SMITH
Name: Charles R. Smith
Title: Trustee

By: /ss MARYANNE ELIZABETH SMITH
Name: Maryanne Elizabeth Smith
Title: Trustee

Tranquilo Management, LLC , solely in its capacity as Trustee of Buenas Olas
Trust, solely

for purposes of Sections 4.06(a), 8.02(d) and 10.01

By: /s/ JEFFREY DORMAN

Name: Jeffrey Dorman

Title: Member Manager

By: /sy MARYANNE ELIZABETH SMITH
Name: Maryanne Elizabeth Smith

Title: Member Manager

Charles R. Smith: CHARLES R. SMITH, solely for purposes of Section 10.03

/s/ CHARLES R. SMITH
Charles R. Smith




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement and Plan of Merger on the day and year first above

written.

Management Optionholder: JOSEPH MONTEIL, solely for purposes ofSections 4.06(b), 8.02(d), 10.01,
and 10.03
/s/ JOSEPH MONTEIL

Joseph Monteil



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement and Plan of Merger on the day and year first above
written.

Management Optionholder: PHILIP WIMBERLY, solely for purposes ofSections 4.06(b), 8.02(d),
10.01, and 10.03

/s/ PHILIP WIMBERLY
Philip Wimberly




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement and Plan of Merger on the day and year first above

written.

Management Optionholder: JOHN MYERS, solely for purposes of Sections 4.06(b), 8.02(d), 10.01, and
10.03
/s/ JOHN MEYERS

John Meyers



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement and Plan of Merger on the day and year first above
written.

Management Optionholder: CHARLES RIEGEL, solely for purposes of Sections 4.06(b), 8.02(d),
10.01, and 10.03

/s/ CHARLES RIEGEL
Charles Riegel




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeffrey S. Sloan, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Global Payments

Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a—
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

<)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this report is being prepared;

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)

b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

By: /s/ Jeffrey S. Sloan

Date: April 3, 2014

Jeffrey S. Sloan
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, David E. Mangum, certify that:

1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Global Payments

Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a—
15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

<)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this report is being prepared;

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)

b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

By: /s/ David E. Mangum

Date: April 3, 2014

David E. Mangum
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
§ 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Global Payments Inc. on Form 10-Q for the period endedFebruary 28, 2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, Jeffrey S. Sloan, Chief Executive Officer of Global Payments Inc. (the “Company”), and David E.
Mangum, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.

/s/ Jeftrey S. Sloan /s/ David E. Mangum
Jeffrey S. Sloan David E. Mangum
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Global Payments Inc. Global Payments Inc.
April 3, 2014 April 3, 2014

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to Global Payments Inc. and will be retained by Global Payments Inc. and

furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.



